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CORPORATE PROFILE
2wl i gr

The Company is an established property developer in the PRC focusing on
developing quality residential properties in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
for customers of all ages.

In pursuing the development strategy of “based in Nanjing, cultivate the
Yangtze River Delta and radiate the urban area”, the Company has successfully
expanded its real estate development business from Nanjing to other cities in
the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis. The Group persists in its core
development strategy of “leading quality, excellent services and innovative
future”, which is aimed at developing quality property products “with healthy,
comfortable, smart and convenient living environment for customers of all
ages”. As one of the top 100 real estate developers in China, the Company has
been recognised by the Jiangsu Real Estate Association as one of the top 50
enterprises in the real estate development industry of Jiangsu Province in
terms of comprehensive strength consecutively for 17 years since 2002 and
ranked second on such list in 2018.

As of 31 December 2019, the Company had 40 projects located in nine cities in
the PRC, including Nanjing, Wuxi, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Xuzhou, Zhenjiang,
Ma'anshan, Hefei and Taizhou, and a land bank with an aggregate estimated
GFA of approximately 5,220,000 sq.m., out of which the land bank with interests
attributable to the Group amounted to approximately 4,300,000 sq.m. The
high-quality land bank has laid a solid foundation for the Company’s future
growth. In 2019, the total contracted sales and the total contracted GFA
recorded by the Group together with its joint ventures and associates
amounted to approximately RMB19,821.4 million and 1,129,071 sg.m.,
respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of 107.7% and 125.1%,
respectively, with the average contracted selling price of approximately
RMB17,555 per sg.m. In 2019, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB9,092.5
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 79.3%. GFA delivered amounted
to approximately 439,865 sq.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 120.5%.

The Group adopts standardised development procedures to accelerate the
turnover rate of properties and promote efficient operations while ensuring
product quality. For customers of different ages, the Group specifically
designed five series of high-quality residential properties, being “Yi series”,
“Shang series”, “Zhi series”, “Zhong series” and “He series” to meet various needs
of the elderly, the younger generation, middle-income households, home
upgraders and upper-middle income households. In the meantime, the Group
introduces more flexibility to its business development by expanding into the
health and wellness industry and commercial real estate under a diversified

development strategy.
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CORPORATION HONOURS AND AWARDS

Top 100 Real Estate Developers in China in 2020 (ranking 90th)

Ranking second in the real estate development industry of Jiangsu
Province in terms of comprehensive strength in 2018

Specialised Chinese Real Estate Enterprise with Excellence in Operation in 2020
Top 20 Growing Enterprises in China’s Real Estate industry in 2019

Chinese Real Estate Enterprise Professional Feature Award in 2019

Quality Chinese Real Estate in 2019

Market Leader for Digitalization in the Chinese Real Estate Market 2019

The Most Valuable Real Estate Enterprise for the Year in the Billboard of the
Most Valuable Real Estate Enterprises of China for 2019

e The “Core Competitiveness Award” and “Best Investor Relations Award” of
China Enterprise Elite in 2019

PROJECT HONOURS AND AWARDS

Peaceful the Paradise Healthcare Community
Pioneer of the Housing and Urban-Rural Construction System in Jiangsu
Province for 2019
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Yuan Stream Mansion Project
Winner Award for Space category in Interior Design of the American
Architecture Master Prize (AMP) for 2019
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MILESTONES
R

MARCH 2019 - 3H

Listing of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange

The Listing introduced new financing channels to the
Company which was conducive to the optimization of
its financial structure, enhancement of corporate
governance and brand influence.
PNEEBZAERLS
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APRIL 2019 - 4H

The first investor reverse roadshow was
successfully held

FIhE S —IRRE AR @R

*  Yungu Tianjing Mansion, the Company’s first
project in Hangzhou, was sold out upon its launch

ERABAMMEMEERE —EARRABEHEE

Official launch of various projects

Official launch of Yuexi Mansion (joint development with CIFI
Real Estate), Land Parcel C of Huijian Weilai,and Changjiang Fu
ZIEBEREMH

WOERBIEEB EARM (S BEE) - 8 RARKC
WIREREME RIEER EXEM

Official engagement of the Xianlin Lishui Campus
of Nanjing Foreign Language School in the
Airport Exhibition Town Project in Lishui District
BRIEZFERIUM D RFKREERABRKE
BAER/NEERE
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MAY 2019 -5H

Various projects reported impressive sales
performance on their launch

Launch of Yuexi Mansion and further launch of Dream
Mansion

ZEEE AR A
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JUNE 2019 -6 H

Convened the first annual general meeting after
Listing
BHELTRERRREAFRE
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Strategic cooperation with the Riverside Group

Bk EREZERBRKEE

Impressive sales performance of various projects
during Yincheng Good Housing Festival

Launch of Changjiang Fu, Rongyue Dongfang in Yixing
and further launch of Honor Mansion

SRR 7 EHI 50 B AEH

RIEEEHAR HEERERABEEER TEX
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Mass delivery of various projects at a delivery
rate over 95%

Delivery of Dream Mansion, Honor Mansion and phase ||
of Dongyue Mansion
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JULY 2019 -7H

Acquisition of the entire equity interests of
Zhejiang Lin’an Zhongdu Properties Limited and
Hangzhou Zhongdu Qingshan Wonderland Hotel
Company Limited

At a total consideration of RMB2.43 billion with a total
GFA of 656,000 sg. m., the acquisition will expand the
land bank of the Group and enhance its sustainable
development.
WENTERZPHEXERARRAMPESE L
BABEEERD A RE
BREARK243ET HEERERESETH
K REAKERR DR - WA FEERE

Won the bidding of a land parcel located in the
core area of Nanjing for commercial and
residential purpose

The land parcel situated at Central Road, Xuanwu
Avenue, Xuanwu District, Nanjing City is worth a total
consideration of RMB2.51 billion with a total planned
GFA of 166,000 sq.m., which will be developed into
residential and commercial properties.
BE—RURBRERRLER BT
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Continuing impressive sales of various projects
The launch of phase | (shop units) of Dream Mansion and
Yungu Tianjing Mansion in Zhejiang
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AUGUST 2019 - 8H

- Entered into a cooperative development
agreement with China Fortune and Xiaguan
Urban Cons. & Dev. to jointly invest in the
development of the land parcel in Lishui, Nanjing
HESERE THARZZSFERARHE  HER
EREREURKI SR
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SEPTEMBER 2019 - 9H

Impressive sales of RMB4.15 billion recorded in a
single month with the launch of various projects

EZ2 0N

BERARBEARYMNS5ET

OCTOBER 2019 - 10H

+  Won the bidding of a land parcel located in Liuhe,
Nanjing for residential purpose
The land parcel situated at Liuhe District, Nanjing City was
acquired by the Group and Nanjing State-owned Real
Estate at a total consideration of RMB1.03 billion with a
total planned GFA of approximately 230,000 sg.m., which
will be developed into residential properties.
BRE—RURBERAEGZEEMHM
MG RERTAGR AEEEFERAREESR
BE RREARKI03ET  RBREEEEL
BEFTK  BERAEEME

Won the bidding of a land parcel located in the
core area of Nanjing for medical purpose

The land parcel situated at Xincheng Jiangkang Industrial
Park, South of Qinhuai District, Nanjing City is worth a
total consideration of RMB260 million with a total
planned GFA of 150,000 sg.m., which will be developed
into a medical complex.
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Completed sales of the remaining units of Yungu
Tianjing Mansion
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NOVEMBER 2019 - 11 H

The Company has been included in the MSCI
China All Shares Small Cap Index
It will expand the Shareholder base, increase the stock
liquidity of the Company and enhance the Company’s
reputation in the capital market.
BRAMSAFEZRENERIEEXD KR
ﬁﬂ%%%ﬁﬂ%k%%w EnmmE T - 12
Tﬁﬁﬁm%mﬂ%F

MSCI~

DECEMBER 2019 - 12 H

The successful issue of US$100,000,000 senior
notes further expanded overseas financing
platforms

HYBEB1BERBARE  E—SHRBIRNE
¥&

The Second Investor Day & Nanjing Project
Reverse Roadshow was successfully held
BOERE - AREENNBEREREBERD
2

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors

HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang

Executive Directors

MA Baohua
ZHU Li
WANG Zheng
SHAO Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan
LAM Ming Fai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHEN Shimin (Chairman)
CHAN Peng Kuan
HUANG Qingping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CHAN Peng Kuan (Chairman)
CHEN Shimin
MA Baohua

COMPANY SECRETARY
WONG Yu Kit

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

MA Baohua
ZHU Li

REGISTERED OFFICE

Sertus Chambers

Governors Square, Suite #5-204,

23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue

P.O.Box 2547, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Part of 19-21 Floors

Block A Yincheng Plaza
289 Jiangdongbeilu
Nanjing

People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4502, 45/F

Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road
Admiralty

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

p.C.Woo & Co.

12/F, Prince’s Building
No. 10 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited
40/F, Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
45 2R

PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEARIERLT
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) — Hong Kong Branch PR TERIT (M) —BEDTT
29/F, ICBC Tower O

3 Garden Road IR

Central TEEB 3R

Hong Kong TRRITRE29E
China Merchants Bank — Hong Kong Branch BERIT — BADIT
31/F, Three Exchange Square e

8 Connaught Place IR

Central FRELEI5 8%

Hong Kong R EZE=311&

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China — Nanjing West Branch

289 Jiangdongbeilu
Gulou District
Nanjing

Bank of Jiangsu — Head Office, Sales Department
26 Zhonghualu

Qinhuai District

Nanjing

Agricultural Bank of China — Nanjing Jianye Branch
207 Jiangdongzhonglu

Jianye District

Nanjing

Bank of Communications — Jiangsu Branch
218 Lushan Road

Jianye District

Nanjing

China Construction Bank — Nanjing Zhongshan Branch
9 Hongwubeilu

Xuanwu District

Nanjing

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

www.yincheng.hk

PR T REIRTT — MR 1T
B

HiER

JT ALK 289 5%

TTERIRTT — MRITEEES
A Rm

=R

FREERR 0655

PEEEIRT —EREHST
B

EHE

ST ER A& 207 5%

ZRBIT — IIERE DT
B Rm

=)

B LLFE 2185R

PEIERIRIT — B RPILXIT
FRm

ZHE

HEAEEE 955

NGE R

www.yincheng.hk

COMPANY’S INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 1 TR & & B8 & 2B P

Tel: (852) 3107 0066
E-mail: ir@yincheng.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A 5 4 22

Revenue in 2019 was RMB9,092.5 million, representing an increase of 79.3% as compared to RMB5,070.1 million in 2018.
2019 F W BARKE 90925 AETT + 2018 FMARKE 50701 BEITTILINT79.3% °

Gross profit in 2019 was RMB1,479.3 million, which was stable compared to RMB1,470.1 million in 2018. Gross profit margin in
2019 was 16.3%, indicating a decrease of 12.7 percentage points as compared to that in 2018.
019FEFAARKE14793BETT - H2018FMARK 14701 BETTHALL - BHFBTE - 2019FEFEH163% -
B2018F N 127(AF B ©

Profit and total comprehensive income in 2019 was RMB360.4 million, representing a decrease of 27.2% as compared to
RMB495.3 million in 2018. Net profit margin in 2019 was 4.0%, indicating a decrease of 5.8 percentage points as compared to
thatin 2018.

019 B AR 2 ERABER/RARKE3604BET * R2018FN AR 4953 B ETTIRE T 27.2% © 2019 F 5 F
KR40% 2018 F T HESSEBDE ©

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company in 2019 was RMB150.3 million, representing a
decrease of 66% as compared to RMB442.4 million in 2018.
019F ARRHA ARG REEKRELEAARK 150388 - B2018FMHARB 41424 B E TR D 66% °

Earnings per Share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company in 2019 was RMBO0.11 per Share.
019FARFEBERTEAREERENBEBRARELI1T -

Contracted sales amount in 2019 was RMB19,821.4 million, representing an increase of 107.7% as compared to that in 2018;
contracted sales GFA in 2019 was 1,129,071 sq.m., indicating an increase of 125.1% as compared to that in 2018.
019FGRHECHEA/ARK 198214 BETT » W2018F R 107.7% : 2019F & A HEREEER1,129071 F 75
K 820184 EFH125.1% °

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.0232 per Share of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.
BB REHZ2019F 128431 BIEFE 2 REPKREER00232/8 T -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A 5 R 22

For the year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 20184 20174 20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INFET ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue g 9,092,472 5,070,094 4,675,644 2,502,980 2,090,887
Profit and total comprehensive FREHNEREEBALE

income for the year 360,360 495,322 390,609 369,664 198,553
Profit and total comprehensive RNRBER ANEEFR

income for the year attributable to | & & E U A 4458

owners of the Company 150,309 442 440 420,219 348,144 91,700

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 F 2018 4F 20174 2016 4F 201545

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WNohiiwel ARBTT ARBTE ARETT ARETR

Non-current assets ERBEE 4,071,505 2,023,454 1,168,676 960,823 585,525
Current assets RBEE 30,451,129 23,516,121 14,736,021 13,086,745 9,058,889
Non-current liabilities Enas 6,427,683 5,269,889 4,337,300 3,094,971 530,194
Current liabilities REaE 24,068,146 17,859,387 9,580,952 9,119,147 7,130,822
Net assets BERE 4,026,805 2,410,299 1,986,445 1,833,450 1,983,398
Total equity BiEs 4,026,805 2,410,299 1,986,445 1,833,450 1,983,398

Total equity attributable to owners — ZKA B A A JE(L kR
of the Company 2,508,818 1,568,599 1,330,859 1,573,182 1,809,989

SR B AE B R A A 11
—E-NFER



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV 8

HUANG Qingping
=ES

Chairman

E=]

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present you with the annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, our business review of 2019
and outlook for 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW OF 2019

2019 was a year with complicated domestic and international economic
environment. The growth of the economy faced a downward pressure and the
property industry had to operate under the pressure of strict government
control. Along with changes in the market and industry policies, the
competitive landscape and business challenges faced by real estate companies
had also changed significantly. With continuous implementation of long-term
management policies under the guiding principle of “no speculation of
residential properties and adopting different policies for different cities”, the
overall growth rate of the property market in the PRC has clearly slowed down
against the policy of “Three Stabilities” which stabilises land prices, housing
prices and market expectations. The era of high growth has come to an end. At
present, the property market is at a high level of RMB15 trillion in annual sales.
The growth of the primary market has slowed down, while the size of the
secondary market has expanded, gradually developing into a phase where
both markets could develop simultaneously. Although there was a temporary

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd
Annual Report 2019
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

recovery in the property market in the first quarter, subsequent tightening of
the financing environment made financing more difficult for real estate
enterprises, which was demonstrated by significantly increased financing costs,
shrinked development profits, lowered turnover of cash flow and significantly
increased operating pressure. Due to changed industry trends under the
control policies and reliance on financial leverage which limit development,
the growth model of real estate enterprises has gradually returned to
being development-oriented, product-oriented and service-oriented.
Competitiveness of such real estate enterprises which focus on property
development could gradually be reflected in their inherent brand influences,
product development capability, customer service and management capability
for their property developments. The industry has progressively transitioned
from the era of rapid growth to the era of quality growth.

Evident effect of expansion in scale and heightened
turnover with a significant increase of 79.3% in revenue

Against an industry environment full of pressure and challenges, on the
premise of adopting strict control on operating risks, the Group has leveraged
on its market advantages in the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, improved
its overall competitiveness in product development, operation services and
brand quality, overcame growth bottlenecks, insisted in maintaining high-
quality turnover, continued to strive ahead, achieved scale expansion and
pushed for steady development of various businesses. During the year, the
Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB9,092.5 million, representing a
significant increase of 79.3% as compared to RMB5,070.1 million in 2018, which
indicates the effect of the Group’s heightened turnover strategy. With a
decrease in gross profit margin of delivered properties and the corresponding
increase in land appreciation tax accrued under the PRC tax laws due to the
increase in delivered properties, the Group's net profit and total
comprehensive income for the year amounted to RMB360.4 million,
representing a decrease of 27.2% as compared to that in 2018. The profit and
total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company in 2019
was RMB150.3 million, representing a decrease of 66.0% as compared to that in
2018, which was mainly due to the fact that properties delivered, including
Honor Mansion, Bejoy Villa, Hui Mountain International Community and Tang
Dynasty Mansion were developed through cooperative development projects,
and the shareholding percentages of the Group in such projects were in
general lower than its shareholding percentages in properties delivered in
2018. The gross profit margin decreased by 13.0 percentage points to 16.3%
and the net profit margin decreased by 5.8 percentage points to 4.0%.

Meanwhile, as the asset size of the Company has further expanded, its total
assets significantly increased by 35.2% to RMB34,523 million and its total equity
increased by 67.1% to RMB4,026.8 million. Furthermore, as the Company
continues to focus on maintaining a stable financial leverage, the net gearing
ratio of the Company significantly decreased to 160.6% by the end of 2019 as
compared to that in 2018.

e

EREENABNK - BEEITRTBNEL -
EREEBRERT  KEREEENERTE
BRI - B E IR RAE A A O 3R 2IF %
NARA  EmZEL  RBELHKERE
FHERZELENBRF NEELBHEASNEN
mIEFET - EmITERN - TEPRBES R
FBEERRES - TEEERTASRIERFBA -
BEESEEIERRA -

FEBERRSABEMEER
WA KIEE R 79.3%

H¥E T mENMREWITERIE  AEETE
BERlEERRARRT  BERMERI=
AMNMOERHTMSEED  TELRE EER
% mEREEFERSEEET N kY
RS - BESnEs@E  TEHRGER &
BTHEER  SBEBELHEE - FAR - K
EESBREHARE 0025 BHEIT © 82018
FHARES50701 BB TARIER793% + %
RAKEE S RAEREE RN - BEXMAY
¥MEMNETRE  RAFEARXNMELRMIZ
JR AR B A T B TR B AR FE B 38 B E e 4
e FAREEZFMEREZEBALBELAA
RHEE3604 BB IT * 820185 TN [& 27.2% © 722019
F - AREHEEAEGFIEREZERALER
ARES03BBEIT  B2018F NE660% @ £
EHREXMNYE(BREESRE - HIHR
B BEBRCRMEER) S REIERR
HERE  MASBERZEBEENRRE >
B EER20I8FMINMENZTRE DL ©
EMETERIBZOEBDEE163%  FFEE
TRES8MET P BIE40% o

B AREEREE TR BEEKNE
BR352%E AREE34523H ST BIEIE
Re7T1nEARE40268F 8L A 5%
RARFER TN HFMSERKEER 2
AI20I9F R FERNBEERRISFRBEZET

& Z=160.6% °

BABRARERAT 3
—E-NEFH



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV R8s

Leading sales performances of multiple projects with
the total contracted sales increased by 107.7%

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the contracted sales and the contracted
sales GFA of the Group together with its joint ventures and associates amounted
to RMB19,821.4 million and 1,129,071 sq.m., respectively, representing a year-
on-year increase of 107.7% and 125.1%, respectively, both hitting record highs.
The composite annual growth rate (CAGR) of the contracted sales from 2017 to
2019 was 83.2%. In addition to Nanjing, Wuxi, Suzhou, Zhenjiang and
Ma'anshan, there were unprecedented sales in Hangzhou, Xuzhou and Hefe;,
which demonstrates that the Group's development strategy has gained market
recognition and provided a driving force for further increase in future earnings.
Some projects have made new breakthroughs, for example, the Group's
residential project, Honor Mansion, in Nanjing recorded contracted sales of
RMB4,456.1 million, a record high for a single project, with an average price of
approximately RMB30,037. The residential project of Huijian Weilai in the Lishui
district, Nanjing recorded contracted sales of RMB2,912.6 million in half a year
since its commencement of sales, marking an insurmountable leading position
in its regional market. Excellent performance of many other projects could also
be demonstrated by the fact that they were sold out once they were launched.

Focused on five major regional markets and acquired a
number of core land parcels and high-quality land
parcels

Adhering to its development strategy of “based in Nanjing, cultivate the
Yangtze River Delta and radiate the urban area”, the Group further invested in
the five major regional markets, being Nanjing, Southern Jiangsu, Zhejiang,
Huaihai and Anhui. In 2019, the Group acquired a total of ten parcels of lands,
including high-quality land parcels with great potential for development in
Xuanwumen in Nanjing, Qingshan Lake in Hangzhou, and Liuhe in Nanjing,
which increased its land bank for development in the next few years. As at 31
December 2019, the Group, together with its joint ventures and associates, had
a land bank with a total GFA of 5,220,478 sq.m., out of which the land bank
attributable to the Group amounted to 4,303,691 sq.m., which were mainly
located in the core cities of the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis, including
Nanjing, Wuxi, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Hefei, Zhenjiang, Ma'anshan, Xuzhou and
Taizhou. The Group gradually established itself into a property developer with
residential properties as its focus and with development capabilities in various
properties, including commercial buildings, apartments, hotels and leisure
properties.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Based in Nanjing and with presence across the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis, the Group's developmental strength and industry position have
been recognised by the industry. We ranked 90th among the “Top 100 Real
Estate Developers in China in 2020" in terms of comprehensive strength for the
year ended 2019 according to the Enterprise Research Institute of
Development Research Centre of the State Council, Real Estate Research
Institute of Tsinghua University and China Index Academy. The Group was also
recognised by the Jiangsu Real Estate Association as one of the top 50
enterprises in the real estate development industry of Jiangsu Province in
terms of comprehensive strength consecutively for 17 years since 2002 and
ranked the second successively on such list in 2018. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group was awarded the “Top 20 Growing Enterprises in
China's Real Estate Industry in 2019".

Promoted quick turnover and efficient operating
strategies and achieved continuous improvement in
comprehensive strength

The Group adopts standardised development procedures to accelerate the
turnover rate of properties and promote efficient operations. The goal is usually
to start pre-sale within eight months from the acquisition of land. While striving
to shorten the development cycle, it also stresses human-centred design and
quality control to strike a balance between quantity and quality. In 2019, the
Group's project operation efficiency has improved significantly, which is
demonstrated by the fact that the average duration required to obtain the
“Four Permits” was shortened to 4.8 months, and the average duration for
initial sale was shortened from 8.3 months in 2018 to 7.2 months in 2019.
Meanwhile, the Group’s customer ratings continued to be an industry
benchmark with an overall satisfaction of 91 points and customer loyalty of 74
points, all reaching historical highs.

Successfully entered into the overseas capital market
and diversified financing channels

On 6 March 2019, the Group was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which opened up new financing channels to
provide strong support to its future development. The successful listing is
conducive to the Group’s optimization of its financial structure, enhancement
of corporate governance and brand influence, it motivates the Company to
embark on a new track for rapid development. In November 2019, the Group
was included in the MSCI China All Shares Small Cap Index, which shows
recognition of the Company’s performance and value in the capital market. It is
anticipated that our Shareholder base shall expand and the Company’s trading
volume shall increase, resulting in the increased investment value of the
Company and an enhanced reputation in the capital market. In December
2019, the Group successfully issued US$100,000,000 senior notes for the first
time to further expand its overseas financing platform.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2020

During the Chinese New Year of 2020, the outbreak of a public health
emergency, COVID-19, resulted in shutdowns and suspension of production in
the PRC. Suspension of trading in sales offices affected the overall sales plan for
real estate developers in January and February 2020. The Group has fully
resumed its operation at the end of February 2020. The resumption of all
constructions and sales has been made in active compliance with the local
government's requirements for resumption. Since the Company'’s properties
launch plans are scheduled in the second quarter and beyond, the overall
impact of the epidemic has been manageable, and the Company remains
optimistic about the contracted sales for the year.

In 2020, as there will still be various uncertainties in the overall real estate
market in the PRC, such as trade war, economic downturns, volatility of the
global stock market due to the sharp decline in crude oil prices, and the
lingering of COVID-19, coupled with tightening credit and accelerated
acquisition and integration in the industry, small and medium-sized private real
estate enterprises will continue to face tremendous operating pressure.
Therefore, it is especially important to clearly understand its own positioning
and formulate a suitable development strategy.

While the Group currently has room for expansion, the Group's excellent
goodwill and reputation in the market, historical and deep-rooted economic
development potential in the region, strong market foundation, solid
established developmental and operational capabilities, and quality property
products “with healthy, comfortable, smart and convenient living environment
for customers of all ages” have laid a sound foundation for sustainable and
stable development. The Group has strategically started to accelerate the
accumulation of land bank in 2017, and has entered into the market of high-
growth cities including Hangzhou and Suzhou through cooperation with
experienced local real estate developers. As of the end of 2019, the Group's
interest in GFA under development was 2,054,399 sq.m., and its interest in
planned GFA of future development was 1,694,100 sg.m..

Looking forward to 2020, the Group will continue to focus on the high-growth
regional market along the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis, maintain its
strategic strengths, and gradually establish the Group’s product and brand
advantages in regional markets through the strategy to enhance market
penetration. It will also seize opportunities that are in line with the Group'’s
investment strategy to focus on the development of small and medium-sized
projects with great development potentials, and to achieve large-scale
developments through the high turnover model, so as to increase its scale and
strength. While seizing opportunities in the external market, the Group will take
proactive steps to reform so as to optimise its organisational system, to
improve management efficiency and to enhance business management. By
adjusting the performance assessment mechanism, the Group will stimulate
the enthusiasm and morale of its employees to enhance the overall
competitiveness of the Group.

1 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

External environment in the future is full of uncertainties. Opportunities and
challenges coexist, so do hopes and difficulties. The Group will continue to
seize development opportunities and minimise various risks through self-
reform and continuous innovation. It will also be empowered in the future and
keep up with changes by putting effect in enhancing its internal capabilities
and improving quality and efficiency, thus achieving sustainable and high-
quality development over time.

The successful listing marks the beginning of a new developmental milestone
on an enhanced platform for the Group. The Group is able to continue to grow
and develop because of the talents it possesses. Therefore, adhering to its
original culture of “create platforms and cultivate talents”, the Group has been
implementing the talent training policy of “to invest is to invest in talents”,
transforming soft power into hard power, and creating a platform for
employees to show their talents and achieve career goals. Finally, on behalf of
the Board, | would like to express my most sincere gratitude to all employees
who have worked hard and fulfilled their responsibilities over the years. At the
same time, we are deeply grateful to our customers, Shareholders and friends
who care about and support us. In the future, the Group will continue to
analyse and seize market opportunities and firmly walk the path of efficient
operations, and to create more fruitful returns for our Shareholders and
employees.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
HUANG Qingping
Chairman

Nanjing, China
15 April 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR ) o i % o3 A

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company's shares were
listed on the Stock Exchange on 6 March 2019. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the subsidiaries of the Company now comprising the Group
were involved in property development, hotel operations and property
investment.

Property Development

The Group is an established property developer in the PRC focusing on
developing quality residential properties in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
for customers of all ages. The Group commenced its property development
operations in Nanjing and successfully expanded its footprint to other cities in
the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis, including Wuxi, Suzhou, Zhenjiang,
Hangzhou, Ma‘anshan and Hefei.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group continued to focus on
developing quality residential properties in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
while expanding its footprint to other cities in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis, including Xuzhou and Taizhou. The Group believes that the
unique geographical advantages of the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis will
remain substantial in the future. Due to the prosperous economic
development and growing population in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis,
the residential properties development market has significant growth potential.
The Group will continue to focus on the Nanjing market in the future and
strategically expand its reach in other cities in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis, further accelerating asset turnover and improving operational
efficiency while maintaining property quality, and strive to become the leading
quality property developer catered to customers of all ages in the Yangtze
River Delta Megalopolis.

CONTRACTED SALES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, contracted sales amount of the Group
together with its joint ventures and associates amounted to RMB19,821.4
million, an increase of 107.7% as compared to that for the year ended 31
December 2018, which was mainly attributable to the increase in contracted
sales GFA of the Group together with its joint ventures and associates to
1,129,071 sq.m. for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase
of 125.19% as compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the ASP recorded in the contracted
sales of the Group together with its joint ventures and associates was
RMB17,555 per sq.m., while that recorded for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB19,029 per sg.m.. Such decrease was mainly due to the average
price of the projects launched during 2019 being lower than that of the
projects launched in 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contracted sales from Nanjing, Wuxi, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Taizhou, Xuzhou,
Hefei, Zhenjiang and Ma'anshan contributed to 57.7%, 14.2%, 7.0%, 8.0%, 1.0%,
3.5%, 3.7%, 3.2% and 1.7% respectively of the total contracted sales of the
Group together with its joint ventures and associates in 2019.

The following table sets out the geographic breakdown of the contracted sales
of the Group together with its joint venture and associates in 2019 with
comparative figures in 2018.

o PR o i K o3 A

20196 » FAR - & - BN - BN - B
M AR BT EREBILNGOEED I
AEEEREGERRRBEQREGNIHER
BAH)57.7%  142% ~ 7.0% > 8.0% * 1.0% * 3.5%
3.7% ~ 3.2% K 1.7% °

TR AEEBREALELERBE AR
2019F A #IHE 2 IRRRAE - S [F 2018 F HY
LT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019 % of For the year ended 31 December 2018 % of
City wm HE2019F12A31AILEE contracted HE0BFNANBILEE contracted
Contracted Contracted Contracted FIESTM Contracted  Contracted  Contracted salesin
GFA sold sales ASP 2019 GFA sold sales ASP 2018
152019 1520184
BHHE &H AHHE EELELR B8 AHHEE
BEEE AHHE THEE ELlA REER AHEE  THEE BAt

sqm. RMB’000 RMB/sq.m. sg.m. RMB000  RMB/sq.m.

AR®TRT/ N

X ARETR ThHxk TAk AREFR Ak
Nanjing AR 584,090 11,433,340 19,575 57.7% 215,640 5,033,455 23342 52.7%
Wuxi E:37) 216,282 2,820,405 13,040 14.2% 167,871 2,574,626 15,337 27.0%
Suzhou N 50,885 1,386,410 27,246 7.0% 33,488 784860 2437 8.2%
Hangzhou M 61,376 1,591,420 25,929 8.0% - - - 0%
Taizhou am 9,827 191,110 19,447 1.0% - - - 0%
Xuzhou &I 74,964 686,840 9,162 3.5% - - - 0%
Hefei & 52,746 750,440 14,227 3.7% - - - 0%
Zhenjiang T 39,362 625,420 15,889 3.2% 51,899 790,800 15,237 8.3%
Ma'anshan 551 39,539 336,000 8,498 1.7% 32,690 360,820 11,038 3.8%
Total a@st 1,129,071 19,821,385 17,555 100.0% 501,588 9,544,561 19,029 100.0%

GFA Delivered and Revenue Recognised from Sale of
Properties

For the year ended 31 December 2019, total GFA delivered amounted to
439,865 sg.m., representing an increase of 120.5% from 199,523 sq.m. for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Revenue recognised from sale of properties
increased by 77.5% from RMB5,067.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to RMB8,996.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, accounting
for 98.9% of the Group's total revenue. ASP recognised for the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB20,452 per sq.m., representing a 19.5% decrease from
RMB25,396 per sq.m. in 2018, primarily due to the lower ASP of Sheltered
Mansion and Hui Mountain International Community.

The increase in revenue derived from sale of properties was primarily due to
delivery of Honor Mansion, Dongyue Mansion, Sheltered Mansion, Kinma Q+
Community and Bejoy Villa commenced in 2019, with revenue generated
accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the properties delivered by the  #ZE 201912 A3 B IFEE » "EE D T
Group mainly included Honor Mansion, Dongyue Mansion, Sheltered Mansion, #%>XE@IEFE S KIE - REFT - BT -
Kinma Q+ Community and Bejoy Villa. The following table sets forth the details  kinma Q+ & & A4ALIBEEF « T XEH 5| R FTRER

of the revenue recognised from the sale of properties of the Group by RIAEEIRIBA BRSO MR EYENED B
geographical location for the periods indicated. UGS S o B

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

2019 2018
GFA Recognised GFA  Recognised
Revenue  delivered ASP Revenue delivered ASP
2 2R BER SR
ks  EFEEE 2 THYEE s BEERE TR
RMB'000 sq.m. RMB/sq.m. RMB'000 sq.m. RMB/sg.m.
AR®RT/ AREETRL/
ARET R K S| ARETT FhHx FIR

Nanjing BR
Peaceful Paradise ZHERR 175,413 5,563 31,532 3,369,626 96,543 34,903
Blue Stream Town BEREB 63,927 4,692 13,625 1,248,965 84,620 14,760
Dongyue Mansion RER 868,710 21,120 41,132 273,761 6,580 41,605
Ideal Palace —A 94,929 8,348 11,371 35,452 2,771 12,794
Honor Mansion ELXIE 3,796,526 141,130 26,901 - - N/A
TEA
Kinma Q+ Community Kinma Q+ 4t [& 939,645 44,743 21,001 - - N/A
TEA
Zhongshan Jingdian Park s - - N/A 4,744 773 6,137

FEA
Long Island Xi Park REBREY - - igm 19,397 766 25322
TEHA

Long Island Qin Park REBREDE 48 12 4,000 1,166 159 7,333
Xidi International Community  Fa3z BIFR 80 - 506 506 68 7,441
Bejoy Villa I IREE 632,717 21,409 29,534 - - -
6,571,995 247,017 26,605 4,953,617 192,280 25,763

Wuxi 57
Tianyuan Mansion RITHR 207 - - 56,848 3,320 17,123
Canal Park 24 2,016 396 5,091 49,060 3,209 15,288
Hui Mountain International 2| LI BB 4 & 489,023 80,138 6,102 - - N/A
Community TEA
Mountain View Village 1L B SR - - - 7,550 714 10,574
Sheltered Mansion ELi; 1,469,969 78,361 18,759 - - -
1,961,215 158,895 12,343 113,458 7,243 15,665

Zhenjiang 5T
Tang Dynasty Mansion BRET 462,918 33,953 13,634 - - -
462,918 33,953 13,634 - - -
Total et 8,996,128 439,865 20,452 5,067,075 199,523 25,39
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Properties under Development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion. Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value. Upon completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had properties under development of
RMB16,166.5 million, representing a decrease of 7.1% from RMB17,397.7 million
as at 31 December 2018. The decrease was primarily due to the change in land
bank and property development activities which are in line with the business
of the Group.

Completed Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale represent the completed development properties
ready for sale and were unsold at the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had completed properties held for sale of
RMB6,227.5 million, representing an increase of 193.2% from RMB2,123.8
million as at 31 December 2018. The increase was primarily due to the
completion of the construction of Honor Mansion, Bejoy Villa and Yuan Stream
Mansion, which were transferred from properties under development to
completed properties held for sale in 2019. The Group has obtained the
construction completion certificates in respect of all completed properties held
for sale.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT FOR PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENTS

The Group provides various project management services to property projects
developed by associates and joint ventures of the Group, including but not
limited to engineering, procurement, design, cost control and customer services.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue generated from the Group's
project management services was RMB79.7 million.

HOTEL OPERATIONS

Through the acquisition of companies under the Lin'an Project (as defined
below) during the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group undertook to
maintain the continued business operation of the Hotel. For details of the Lin'an
Project, please see the paragraph headed “Liquidity, Financial and Capital
Resources — Material Acquisition and Disposal — Lin'an Project” of this section.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, income generated from the operation
of the Hotel was RMB13.5 million.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT
Rental Income

The Group's rental income for the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB3.2
million, representing an increase of 6% compared to the rental income of
RMB3.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The rental income
remained stable for the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to that for
the year ended 31 December 2018

Investment Properties

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had two investment properties with a total
GFA of 72,931 sq.m.. The Group had commenced the leasing of one investment
property with a total GFA of 4,244 sq.m..
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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R2019F 12 A31H » REBWMKEMEBR

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group as at 31 December 2019

are as follows: N
GFA Attributable
Project BEME interest to
No. company name Project name Location Land use term Usage Sq.M. the Group
R BEARER ERAR 3t T fEAEFH i} Thk  AEBEEGER
1. Nanjing Eastern Senior Living ~ Elderly apartments of No. 3 Maqun Avenue, Qixia District, 50years, expiringon ~ Commercial 68,687 75%
Health quustry Co, Ltd. Peaceful Paradise Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 27 August 2065
BREIEEREEE EERARER TEITHEERTEERFHAESR 0% - 2065F G 68,687 75%
ERBEBRRF 8 A 278515
2. Nanjing Xicheng Real Estate ~ Gymnastic centre of Xidi ~ No. 126-1 Hengshan Road, Jianye District, 50 years, expiring on Commercial 4244 100%
Co, Ltd. International Community  Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 10 July 2053
B A EERMNE [pil s FEIIEREERMEHEEIR S0+ 2053%F S 4244 100%
BRRA I 126-15% 7R10BE54
LAND BANK T b

R20194F  REBRE= Al RIFEER I
85 T 1R R - ARG MO T AR A 787,200 oK ¢
MAGET B EmETERT 51938636 F K o
REINAEFEHE2019F 12431 B ILEEH

In 2019, the Group continued its expansion in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis and acquired ten land parcels with an aggregate site area of
787,209 sq.m., and the estimated total GFA is expected to be 1,938,636 sq.m..
The table below sets forth the particulars of the newly acquired land parcels by

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019. WeBE IR 2 5515 o
Average
land cost
Land parcel/ Project name/ Estimated (Based on the
No. City Project company name Land use Site area total GFA Land premium estimated GFA)
L iHEA
fat (RIEAEET
&% Hm it/ HE BB/ EEARER T A& hitHE BEEER TiitiESE BEREHE)
sq.m. sg.m. RMB million RMB/sq.m.
ARWET/
TRk ThKk ARBRER Ak
. Property projects developed by subsidiaries of the Group
AEEHBEATERNYEER
1 Nanjing Shantui Parcel Scientific research/office 30,500 104,742 115 1,098
BR I0:3:u7 Bt/ WoE
2 Nanjing Xuanwu Gate Parcel Residential/retail/office 38,258 166,093 2,510 15112
BR ZRPIHR FE/BE/WLE
3 Nanjing 2019G63 Parcel Medical 26,748 148,860 260 1,747
BR 2019663152 BE
4 Hangzhou Qingshanhupan Residential/retail 364,380 655,859 2,530 3858
il HILHm tE/26
5 Wuxi Jiuduhui Residential 11,400 24,595 75 3,049
5 NEE FE
6 Xuzhou Qingyunfu Residential 58,563 167,782 350 2,086
&I HER =
Sub-total /Mg 529,849 1267931 5,840 4,606
L. Property projects developed by associates and joint ventures of the Group
AEEHE ARG ECEBBNNEER
1 Taizhou Junlanfu Residential/ retail 34,120 106,640 643 6,032
aM 1) Tx/%%
2 Nanjing Yuelufu Residential 62,798 205,904 728 3536
BR RER i
3 Nanjing Huilingweilai Residential 58,745 127,777 450 3522
R BEARK e
4 Nanjing Shangtang Yihefu Residential 101,697 230,384 1,030 4471
2 L REA iz
Sub-total  /J\ET 257,360 670,705 2,851 4,251
Total wct 787,209 1,938,636 8,691 4,483

2 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The total contracted land price of the newly acquired land parcels in 2019 was
RMBB8,691 million. The average cost of the land parcels acquired in 2019 was
RMB4,483 per sgq.m..

PROPERTIES DEVELOPED BY THE GROUP AND
ITS JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 40 projects located in nine cities in the
PRC, of which 28 projects are developed and owned by the Group and the
remaining 12 projects are developed and owned by the Group's joint ventures
and associates. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a land bank with an
aggregate estimated GFA of 5,220,478 sg.m., out of which the land bank with
interests attributable to the Group amounted to 4,303,691 sq.m.. The following
table sets forth the GFA breakdown of the Group's property portfolio as at 31
December 2019 in terms of geographical location:

o PR o i K o3 A

2019F FUEH RN A L ERBEAEARE
8691 B & JT ° 2019 FF P Y B8 b 58 A9 S 9 ik A
BARBE 448370, F K o

GRS RS S T
NGEETTE

MR2019F 128318 AEBHEENRPEH9
T T AI40EIER - EF28RIEE RASE
FrEzELES T R2EBEEHRAEENS
BEhERBEARMELER - B 2019F 12
A318 AEEBEA G REEMIES220478
FRHARR I MER  HREAAEERTZNL
Mo E A 4,303,691 F K o TREIIAEEH
B EEAF 2019912 A31 B AMIEI B 2
DHEEMIERAL

Completed
GFA
available Planned
for sale/ GFA of

Number of leasable  GFA under future % of land
City W projects GFA" development development Total GFA® reserve

BRIM
AfHE/ RRBER 1
Gk 2| RSN i0EE] BEE Tt fEE
EEHA EEREER" BEEE BEEE [ R

SQ.M. sq.m. SQ.M. SQ.M.
Property projects developed 7 B & 2 A1B %
by the Company’s HYEER
subsidiaries

Nanjing MR 15 311428 829,302 444969 1,585,698 304%
Wuxi &5 6 154010 276,805 125,945 556,760 10.7%
Suzhou &N 1 25,337 - - 25337 0.5%
Hangzhou Al 2 30,014 126,400 683,373 839,787 16.1%
Xuzhou M 2 - 151,066 167,782 318,848 6.1%
Zhenjiang T 2 12715 281,840 69,240 363,795 7.0%
Sub-total Mgt 28 533,504 1,665,413 1,491,309 3,690,225 70.7%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR ) o i % o3 A

Completed
GFA
available Planned
for sale/ GFA of
Number of leasable  GFA under future % of land
City WH projects GFA™ development development Total GFA® reserve
E2RIN
THHE/ RRBE 1k
G | RSN ] BER TifEE
BHYA EEEER" BEEE BEHE mE? R
SQ.M. sq.m. Sq.M. SQ.M.
Property projects developed A& M¥RKE DT
by joint ventures and HRNYEEE
associates
Nanjing B 5 43,393 187,990 436,288 667,671 12.8%
Wuxi g 1 - 28,064 - 28,664 0.5%
Suzhou M 3 - 117,753 - 117,753 2.3%
Hefei = 1 - 119975 - 119,975 2.3%
Ma‘anshan S&11 1 - 358,095 131,455 489,550 94%
Taizhou A 1 - 106,640 - 106,640 2.0%
Sub-total Nt 12 43,393 919,117 567,743 1,530,253 29.3%
Sub-total attributable to KEBENL NG N/A 21,689 388,986 202,791 613,466 N/A
the Group TEA TEA
Total land reserves 1 it 40 576,897 2,584,530 2,059,052 5,220,478 100.0%
Total land reserves AREELR N/A 555191 2,054,399 1,694,100 4,303,691 N/A
attributabletothe Group T ibf{E TEA TEA
Notes: BT -
1) Includes saleable GFA remaining unsold and leasable GFA. (1) BEAESLVEELEAB LA LHEEERE -

2) Total land reserves equals to the sum of (i) the total GFA available for sale and total 2 BEHIEESHR T SENEN () 2R IYWE

leasable GFA for completed properties; (ii) total GFA for properties under development; At HEREEmE LA HHAEERE ¢ i)
and (iii) total GFA for properties held for future development. For properties held by the FEE R WM @REmME NGB IEHBEAR
Group's joint ventures and associates, total GFA attributable to the Group are calculated MENBREEE BAKEEELERBER

based on the Group's equity interest in the respective projects.

24 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by RMB4,022.4 million or 79.3% from
RMBS5,070.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB9,092.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly as a result of increase in
revenue derived from sale of properties. Revenue derived from sale of
properties increased by RMB3,929.0 million or 77.5% from RMB5,067.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB8,996.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The increase in revenue derived from sale of properties
was primarily due to increased revenue contributed by the delivery of Honor
Mansion, Dongyue Mansion, Sheltered Mansion, Kinma Q+ Community and
Bejoy Villa.

The table below sets forth each component of the Group’s revenue and their
respective percentage of total revenue for the periods indicated.

Bt ¥ O B
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AEENKZEBAEZE2018F12A31BIEFE
MAREES0701 BETTEIMARK 402458
Lk 793% ZE = 2019 12 A31 HIEFERA
R 002sBEL  NEBHRYEEESHE
I zs38 00 - 2R BV E KNG BB ZE 20184F
ANBEIEFENARES067.1 8 & LM
ARM39200BE T 77.5% EH E20195F 12
A3BEIEFEMNAREES961 B&ETT ° HEY
EMBREENEERARINEARE  &E
EHT ~ BAT © Kinma O+t [@ MR REFR S
REVURESIE N -

TR B AR B PR B R e s O B AR BB 9 DA
REZBERKRESEA DL

2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
% of Total % of Total Year-over-
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Year Change
e g fhBY
g Aotk Iz Bo Ciisd=d
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T U ARBTFIT % %
Sale of properties MEIEE 8,996,128 98.9 5,067,075 99.9 77.5
Project management income T8 B B IE UL A 79,679 0.9 - - 100
Hotel operations B S &8 13,460 0.1 - - 100
Rental income HEWA 3,205 0.1 3,019 0.1 -
Total et 9,092,472 100.0 5,070,094 100.0 778

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales mainly comprised cost of property sales which was
directly associated with the revenue from the sale of properties, which
represented direct construction costs, land acquisition costs and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowings for the purpose of property
development during the period of construction.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's cost of sales increased by RMB4,013.1 million or 114.8% from
RMB3,600.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB7,613.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to the
Company'’s acquisition of additional interests in the then associates holding
Dongyue Mansion and Kinma Q+ Community in the first half of 2018, which
caused (i) both companies to become subsidiaries of the Company; and (i) the
differences (i.e. acquisition premiums) between the consideration paid upon
acquisition and the carrying amounts of the acquired companies’ net assets to
be included in the cost of developed projects. Both companies delivered
projects in 2019, and the acquisition premiums were carried forward to cost of
sales resulting in the increase of such cost. Such increase was also due to the
fact that the Company recognised a large amount of revenue in 2019 and the
related cost of sales was recognised in the same period.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit was stable. The Group’s
gross profit margin decreased from 29.0% for the year ended 31 December
2018 to 16.3% for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was primarily due
to the lower gross profit attributable to the sales of Honor Mansion, the
revenue of which accounted for 42.2% of that from sales of properties.

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains primarily consist of interest income from
bank deposit and forfeiture of deposits, government grants and investment
income of business combination achieved in stages and others.

The Group's other income and gains decreased by RMB258.3 million or 79.7%
from RMB324.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB65.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to the
decrease in investment income from business combinations achieved in stages
and the lowered investment gain on fair value change of Kinma Q+
Community and Dongyue Mansion, as compared to that in 2018.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses mainly represented staff costs,
advertising and business development expenses, office expenses and others.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB57.7 million or
24.3% from RMB237.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
RMB295.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly due
to the increase in advertising expenses and staff costs.

o PR o i K o3 A

AEBRHEEKAAHEZ=2018F 12318 LE
FEMARKE36000EETIEMA R 40131
BEBIITHKI148% 2 EH E2019F 12 A31HIEF
EMAREK 7613288 EDNEEHARAR
A 20184F EH+F U A R E M KKinma
Q+ 413 A& B & A R ERSME RS » 1T E ()
MERARKARRBINEB AT K (i) AU EER
TR ELEMKEBAREEFENEREREY
M= G EE) ST ASHEIEE KA °
MEARR2019FZXNIEE - WERERER
SHER A B A BRI - BREMIIER
AR B R 20194 B W52 K 58 UK 55 K [F) HA i 3R
TERESEE A o
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EHEMNEXHEZE2018E12 A3 BILEER
200% N EEH E2019F12A31H IEFEH
163% * HEBHRESRRHENENRLD -
MmE R FERFEEEHEE R 422% o

HA WA R Wz

AEBEEAMWA R E T EBRERBITEROF
BIA RN S - BISMBI R OEBIEER
BAGRERANREAM -

REBEMEMIARKZEHEZE2018F12 A
STHIEFENAREIMEETHIARE
2583 H B ILEK797% EE E2019F 12 A31 H
HFEMARESSEHEL  NEBHRDHE
R ¥ A FEUS MR B W AUR 2 K Kinma Q+
HEMRENATFEEDELENEERER
2018 g o

HERDHAX
AEENHERD WA EBHETIRA &
EREBRRAY  WARHLREM

REERNHEERDHASAEZE2018F12 A
STHIEFENARE2373EE TR MARE
577 BB TR 243% EHE2019F 12 431 B 1E
FEMARK20G0BETL EDNEEHRE
EB KRB TAAEM -

SR B AE B R A A

“z-nEEH OO



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR ) o i % o3 A

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily comprised staff costs, travel and
entertainment expenses, professional fees, office expenses, other taxes and
surcharges, depreciation and amortisation and others.

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by RMB39.1 million or 11.8%
from RMB331.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB292.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to the
successful Listing of the Company and the decrease in listing expenses
incurred while stricter expense control was performed in 2019.

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses mainly comprised one-off expenses including
financial guarantee, contract expenses, compensation to customers, charitable
donation expenses, exchange loss and others.

The Group's other expenses increased by RMB6.9 million or 43.4% from
RMB15.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB22.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to the recognition
of exchange loss.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The Group's fair value gains on investment properties increased by RMB91.5
million or 618.2% from RMB14.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to RMB106.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly
generated from the increase in fair value of Peaceful Paradise.

Finance Costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses for bank and other
borrowings and pre-sales deposits net of capitalised borrowing costs relating
to properties under development.

The Group's finance costs decreased from RMB254.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to RMB167.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
which was primarily due to the capitalisation of interest-bearing borrowings
and other borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Share of Gains/Loss on Joint Ventures and Associates

The Group's share of loss on joint ventures decreased by RMB4.3 million or
21.8% from a loss of RMB19.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
a loss of RMB15.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was
mainly due to the profit of cooperative projects.

The Group's share of gains on associates decreased by RMB30.0 million or
26.9% from a gain of RMB111.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to a gain of RMB81.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was
mainly attributable to the lower gross profit margin of the delivered projects
operated by joint ventures and associates.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses represent PRC corporate income tax and LAT payable by
the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC.

The Group's income tax expenses increased by RMB13.3 million or 2.3% from
RMB566.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB579.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 which was mainly due to the increase of
LAT under the PRC tax law.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

The Group's profit for the year decreased by RMB134.9 million or 27.2% from
RMB495.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to RMB360.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group's net profit margin decreased
from 9.8% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 4.1% for the year ended 31
December 2019, which was mainly due to (i) the decrease in gross profit
margin for the year ended 31 December 2019; (i) the increase in selling and
distribution expenses caused by increased sales of properties for the year
ended 31 December 2019; and (jii) the decrease in the share of profits of joint
ventures and associates as the shareholding percentages of the Group in such
companies which delivered properties in the year ended 31 December 2019
were in general lower than that in the year ended 31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Property development is capital-intensive and the Group expects to continue
to incur a high level of capital expenditures for project development in the
foreseeable future. The Group funds its business operations both through cash
flows generated from its business operations and through external financing,
primarily including bank and other borrowings.

The Group's primary uses of cash are for the payment of acquisition of land use
rights, construction costs, staff costs and various operating expenses.

Cash Positions

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB2,894.3 million (31 December 2018: RMB1,589.2 million), pledged deposits
of RMB0.03 million (31 December 2018: RMB7.4 million) and restricted cash of
RMB1,137.1 million (31 December 2018: RMB122.8 million).

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade receivables of RMB1.5 million,
compared to RMB2,000 as at 31 December 2018. The trade receivables are
unsecured and non-interest-bearing. Same as 31 December 2018, the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 were neither past due nor impaired and
less than 1 year based on the invoice date.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total bank and other borrowings of
RMB10,500.0 million, compared to RMB10,191.4 million as at 31 December
2018. The Group's borrowings were mainly denominated in Renminbi.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth the Group's total debts as at the dates indicated.

o PR o i K o3 A

TREINNARARAEENEREER

As at 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
ON:L-BAN (ARETT)
Current: ENER :
Bank loans — secured IRITER — HEA 200,000 =
Other loans — secured HihER — /5 A 373,000 906,000
Other loans — unsecured HEER — BT 697,620 =
Current portion of long term bank loans — secured & EJSRTTE A ENEAEE S — A HE I 2,863,036 3,009,980
Current portion of long term other loans — secured = HAE fth & 5 8 BN HA %S 9 — A5 1K 48 634,163 1,384,083
Current portion of long term other REAHth E A ENERER D — I
loans — unsecured 150,000 -
Total current borrowings BNHAfE TR 4a 58 4,917,819 5,300,063
Non-current: FERNHR
Bank loans — secured IRITER — BHEH 3,485,634 4,791,341
Other loans — secured HEMER — HEH 2,093,506 -
Other loans — unsecured HihE — EFH 3,000 100,000
Total @t 10,499,959 10,191,404

The following table sets forth the repayment schedule of the Group’s
borrowings as at the dates indicated.

TREHRATR B HIA KB S R IE 5K ]

2%0

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(AEET ) EON:N: &)
Repayable within one year AR—FERNEER 4,917,819 5,300,063
Repayable in the second year BRE_—FEER 2,316,179 2,573,458
Repayable within two to five years BRMERFAEE 2,810,431 2,317,883
Repayable after five years ARDEEER 455,530 -
Sub-total /g 5,582,140 4,891,341
Total HE 10,499,959 10,191,404
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o PR ) o i % o3 A

The following table sets out the range of interest rates for the Group’s
borrowings as at the dates indicated.

TREFINFR B AR EUME R REHE -

As at 31 December

M®12A318
2019 2018
2019 F 20185
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERAR B F &
(%) (%)
Current: BIHA :
Bank loans — secured HITER — BHEA 8.00 -
Other loans — secured HEmER— BEA 11.50-12.40 11.37-14.30
Other loans — unsecured EME R — EIKHE 12.50 -
Current portion of long term bank loans — secured & EASR1TE Z A BIEAEE D — AT 4.72-6.81 5.23-6.27
Current portion of long term other loans — secured & EAH fth & i) BN EREE > — A 8.38-13.00 8.50-10.00
Current portion of long term other REAH th & A BNERER D — KR
loans — unsecured 7.50-15.00 -
Non-current: JEENHA :
Bank loans — secured WITER — A 4.72-6.81 4.83-6.65
Other loans — secured HiE® — FEHA 7.00-13.00 -
Other loans — unsecured Hih B — KA 15.00 7.50

The Group's certain secured borrowings were secured by the pledges of the
asset portfolio which includes investment properties, prepaid land lease
payments, properties under development and completed properties held for
sale.

Notes Issue

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2019
(the “Notes Issue Announcement’), on 18 December 2019, the Company
entered into various placing and other agreements in connection with the
issue and sale of the US$100,000,000 12.5% senior notes due 2020 to be issued
by the Company. For further details, please refer to the Notes Issue
Announcement.

The gross proceeds from the notes issue was US$100,000,000. The Company
intended to use the net proceeds from the notes issue for refinancing certain
existing indebtedness of the Company and general corporate purposes. As at
31 December 2019, the net proceeds remained unutilised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Risks

The Group is exposed to market risks from changes in market rates and prices,
such as interest rates, credit and liquidity.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate
risk. The Group manages its interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings
and other borrowings.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness of a
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. The Group has no
concentrations of credit risk in view of its large number of customers. The
Group did not record any significant bad debt losses during the year ended 31
December 2019. The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
mainly comprise restricted cash and pledged deposits, financial assets included
in prepayment, deposits and other receivables, and amounts due from related
companies, arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

Key Financial Ratios

The Group's current ratio remained relatively stable at 1.3 and 1.3 as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019 respectively. The Group's net gearing
ratio (net debt over total equity) decreased from 351.5% as at 31 December
2018 to 160.6% as at 31 December 2019, primarily due to the increase in the
Group's cash reserves and total equity as at 31 December 2019 as compared to
that as at 31 December 2018. The Company completed the Listing and the
global offering on the Listing Date.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Contingent Liabilities
Mortgage Guarantees

The Group provides mortgage guarantees to banks in respect of the mortgage
loans they provided to the Group's customers in order to secure the repayment
obligations of such customers. The mortgage guarantees are issued from the
date of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released upon the earlier of (i)
the transfer of the relevant real estate ownership certificates to the customers,
or (ii) the settlement of mortgage loans by the customers. If a customer
defaults on the mortgage loan, the Group is typically required to repurchase
the underlying property by paying off the mortgage loan. If it fails to do so, the
mortgagee banks will auction the underlying property and recover the balance
from the Group if the outstanding loan amount exceeds the net foreclosure
sale proceeds.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to the customers of its completed properties held for sale.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case of default on
mortgage payments by the customers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and
penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to those banks. Under the above
arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the banks as collaterals
for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage repayments by these
customers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise the
pledged properties through open auction. The Group's guarantee period starts
from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the
issuance and registration of property ownership certificates to the purchasers,
which will generally be available within one to two years after the customers
take possession of the relevant properties.

As at 31 December 2019, the material contingent liabilities incurred for the
Group's provision of guarantees to financial institutions in respect of the
mortgage loans they provided to the Group’s customers was RMB5,258.7
million, compared with RMB2,887.1 million as at 31 December 2018.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year ended 31
December 2019 in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. The
Board considered that in case of default on payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties would be sufficient to repay the outstanding
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore
no provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

The Directors confirm that the Group has not encountered defaults by
customers in which it provided mortgage guarantees that, in aggregate, had a
material adverse effect on the Group'’s financial condition and results of
operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in connection
with financial facilities granted to the related companies. As the total guarantee
amount of RMB1,569,000,000 as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMB871,651,000) was secured by the pledges, the Board considered no
financial guarantee provision was needed in respect of the guarantees.

Legal Contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its ordinary
course of business from time to time. The Group believes that no liabilities
resulting from these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition or operating results.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's capital expenditures it had contracted
but yet provided for was RMB6,848.1 million, compared to RMB5,952.1 million
as at 31 December 2018.

Off-Balance Sheet Commitments and Arrangements

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019,
the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital issued or agreed to be
issued, bank overdrafts, loans, debt securities, borrowings or other similar
indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances (other than normal trade bills),
acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, finance leases or hire
purchase commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

As at the date of this annual report, net proceeds not utilised are held in bank
deposits and it is intended that they will be applied in the manner consistent
with the proposed allocations in the Prospectus.

Significant Investments Held

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not hold any significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Employees

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 927 employees. The Group
offers employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic
salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. It contributes to social insurance for its employees, including medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing funds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Use of Proceeds from the Initial Public Offering

The Company completed the global offering and its Shares were successfully
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 6 March 2019. On 3 April
2019, as a result of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus)
being partially exercised, 29,914,000 new Shares were allotted and issued at
the offer price of HK$2.38 per Share. The total net proceeds raised from the
global offering (after issuance of the Shares pursuant to the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option) after deducting all the underwriting commissions,
transaction levy and trading fee (as applicable) and all other listing expenses in
connection with the global offering was approximately HK$855.8 million,
which is intended to be utilised for the intended purposes as set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Set out
below is the progress of the actual use of the net proceeds from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2019, which is consistent with the proposed allocation
disclosed in the Prospectus:

BXRARBERERERAR

RRABTEREEREE - BEBRMNL2019F3 A
6 AFEB R PTEARAT) £ © 72019F4 438 -
MBI E (TR BRER)ESLDT
5+ #29,914,000 [ FT R D IR FRRARH B EE
238 L ERL B R AT o KRR FT B B E
® REBBERRSHE (WER) KA Hi e
PHRBEFEN EMRAXE  2REEMER
EFE (RETEBREIERERTIRNE) & &
58558 B BB WHHIZRAER [ KRt
BIMFTSRERE ] — OB ZRERARE
Be TX#EMNE ETHEZ2019F12A31H

SRIBFRER

BME - A ARSI
HENREHE—H

Intended allocation
(based on total Actual utilised
net proceeds of amount as at
HK$855.8 million) 31December 2019
Intended usage as disclosed in the Prospectus (approximately) (approximately)
BESE
(EREFERE R2019%12A31H
FHe55.8HBET) ERDRAESE
RRERFAEEZRERR (%) (B4)
Construction costs for the development of property projects, namely Honor Mansion, 60% of total net proceeds HKS$513.5 million

2017G63 Ninghai Road Parcel and Huijian Weilai.
HEMFER (ZAXE 2017663 BB KK E B AR HRRAA -

Repayment of all or any part of certain existing bank and other borrowings:

BRAEIIAHIE TRERTREME -

(i) bank borrowing with outstanding balance of approximately RMB477.4 million
with a floating interest rate of 0.6% above the PRC inter-bank loan prime rate per
annum and maturity date of 21 June 2026, which is used for payment of
development cost for the relevant project company® e,

) KREREBROARB77488TEHNERO% - SRPERTHER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Intended usage as disclosed in the Prospectus

RRERFHE2RERR
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(ifi)

(iv)

(iv)

bank borrowing with outstanding balance of approximately RMB241.1 million
with a floating interest rate of 0.6% above the PRC inter-bank loan prime rate per
annum and maturity date of 21 June 2026, which is used for payment of
development cost for the relevant project company™«?;
AERERVARB U BELOFHNER06% - ®RTERTHER
BEERFHNE) BR2026%F 6 A21 REEBMBRTERARNABEE QA
HORB BB AR RTR 95D

bank borrowing with outstanding balance of approximately RMB399.8 million
with a fixed interest rate of 6.27% above the PBOC benchmark rate per annum
and maturity date of 11 June 2021, which is used for payment of development
cost for the relevant project company;

AERERNARE3998BET (BENER627%  BRTPEARRT
MEEEME) BR 202166 A1 BEERNRITEFTARNEHEEE R A
FERANRK

bank borrowing with outstanding balance of approximately RMB163.4 million
with a floating interest rate of 5.0% above the PBOC benchmark rate per annum
and maturity date of 15 March 2019, which is used for payment of development
cost for the relevant project company; and
AEERBERNARB13ABET(FDNER50%  SRPEARRT
MEEERNE) BR 2019463 A 15 AR B RITEFARNEHEEE R AM
FERANR: R

other borrowing with outstanding balance of approximately RMB100.0 million
with a fixed interest rate of 7.5% per annum and maturity date of 14 June 2020,
which is used for settling the consideration for the transfer of shares in Nanjing
Yincheng to Nanjing Yingang as part of the Reorganisation.
AMERERNARK1000BE T (ERFFER75%) 1202056 A 14
AEMMEMER(EREEN D) AREERERREEZRRR
WD Z B -

General working capital

—HEEES

Intended allocation

(based on total Actual utilised

net proceeds of amount as at

HK$855.8 million) 31 December 2019

(approximately) (approximately)
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10% of total net proceeds HK$85.6 million
— HK$85.6 million
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Notes:

1. As disclosed in the Prospectus, approximately 9% of the total net proceeds were
intended to be utilised for the repayment of the outstanding bank borrowings as
referred to in items (i) and (ii) above, namely approximately HK$77.0 million in
aggregate.

2. Capitalised terms used in the above table shall have the same meanings as defined in
the Prospectus.

3. Approximately HK$25.6 million remains unutilised and is intended to be used in the
manner consistent with that mentioned in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The Company expects to utilise the remaining net
proceeds in the years after.

Future Plans for Material Investments

The Group will continue to focus on its existing property development
business and acquiring high-quality land parcels in the Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis in the PRC. No concrete plan for future investments is in place as
at the date of this annual report.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
Xuanwu Land Acquisition

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 4 July 2019, 22
August 2019, 6 September 2019, 11 October 2019 and the circular of the
Company dated 25 November 2019 (collectively, the "Xuanwu Land
Acquisition Announcements’), on 3 July 2019, Nanjing Yinjiazhen Enterprise
Management Co, Ltd. ("Nanjing Yinjiazhen"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, won the bidding in respect of the land use rights of a parcel of
land situated at the Xuanwu district of the Nanjing City in the PRC at a public
auction through a project company, Nanjing Zhijun Property Development
Company Limited (“Nanjing Zhijun"), at a consideration of RMB2,510 million
under a joint venture arrangement with a joint venture partner.

On 21 August 2019, Nanjing Yinjiazhen introduced an additional joint venture
partner to co-invest in Nanjing Zhijun for development of the acquired land by
entering into an equity transfer agreement to dispose of 25% equity interest in
Nanjing Zhijun to the new joint venture partner. As a result, Nanjing Zhijun was
owned by Nanjing Yinjiazhen, the initial joint venture partner and the new joint
venture partner as to 25%, 50% and 25%, respectively, while Nanjing Zhijun
continued to be accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company as Nanjing
Yinjiazhen shall continue to have a majority voting right in Nanjing Zhijun. On
21 August 2019, a cooperation agreement was also entered into among
Nanjing Yinjiazhen, the initial joint venture partner and the new joint venture
partner together with Nanjing Zhijun to regulate their investment and
cooperation in Nanjing Zhijun. On 6 September 2019, Nanjing Yinjiazhen and
the other two shareholders of Nanjing Zhijun entered into a supplemental
agreement to the said cooperation agreement to amend certain terms of the
cooperation agreement. For further details, please refer to the Xuanwu Land
Acquisition Announcements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Lin’an Project

As disclosed in the announcement, the circular and the poll results of the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company dated 11 July 2019, 27 March
2020 and 20 April 2020 respectively (collectively, the “Lin’an Project
Announcements’), Nanjing Yinjiayuan Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.
("Nanjing Yinjiayuan"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Lin'an Yixiang Property Development Company Limited (‘Lin’an Yixiang’) as
restructuring investors and the administrator of Zhongdu Holdings Group
Company Limited entered into a restructuring investment agreement for the
restructuring plan of the acquisition of 19 distressed companies. Pursuant to a
cooperation agreement entered into between Nanjing Yinjiayuan and Lin‘an
Yixiang, the Group in effect acquired two distressed companies at the net
acquisition consideration of RMB2,430 million (the “Lin’an Project’). For
further details, please refer to the Lin‘an Project Announcements.

Qinhuai Land Acquisition

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 14 October 2019
and 30 October 2019 (the “Qinhuai Land Acquisition Announcements’),
on 12 October 2019, Nanjing Yincheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ("Yincheng Real
Estate’), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, won the
bidding in respect of the land use rights of a parcel of land situated at the
Qinhuai District of the Nanjing City in the PRC at a public auction at a
consideration of RMB260 million. On 23 October 2019, a land use rights grant
contract was entered into between Yincheng Real Estate and the Nanjing
Planning and Natural Resources Bureau. For further details, please refer to the
Qinhuai Land Acquisition Announcements.

Xuzhou Land Acquisition

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 December 2019
(the "Xuzhou Land Acquisition Announcement”’), on 11 December 2019,
Xuzhou Yinjiahao Corporate Management Co. Ltd. ("Xuzhou Yinjiahao"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Xuzhou Tongshan
Urban Development Investment Co. Ltd. (“Tongshan Urban”) entered into an
acquisition agreement, pursuant to which Tongshan Urban agreed to sell and
Xuzhou Yinjiahao agreed to purchase the entire equity interest in Xuzhou
Tongshun Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. at a total consideration of
RMB430,806,000, which company holds a parcel of land situated at the Xuzhou
city of the Jiangsu Province in the PRC. For further details, please refer to the
Xuzhou Land Acquisition Announcement.

For further details of the acquisitions and disposals of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019, please refer to notes 35 to 38 of the Notes to
Financial Statements of this annual report.
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Subsequent Events
Hangzhou Land Acquisition

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 25 February 2020
(the "Hangzhou Land Acquisition Announcement’), on 25 February 2020,
Hangzhou Yinjiahong Corporate Management Co. Ltd. ("Hangzhou
Yinjiahong"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Shanghai
Juanlang Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. ("Shanghai Juanlang”),
Greatmind Developments (HK) Limited (“Greatmind Developments’) and
Shanghai Juanyue Property Co. Ltd. ("Shanghai Juanyue”) entered into a
cooperation agreement, pursuant to which, (i) Hangzhou Yinjiahong agreed to
purchase, and Shanghai Juanlang agreed to sell, 40% of the entire equity
interest in Shanghai Juanyue at the total consideration of RMB549,045,600; and
(i) the rights and obligations of the parties and the management and affairs of
Shanghai Juanyue and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hangzhou Juanjin Property
Co. Ltd. ("Hangzhou Juanjin’), are governed.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the equity interest in Shanghai Juanyue
will be held as to 40% and 60% by Hangzhou Yinjiahong and Greatmind
Developments, respectively. Hangzhou Juanjin holds a parcel of land situated
at the Hangzhou City of the Zhejiang Province in the PRC. For further details,
please refer to the Hangzhou Land Acquisition Announcement.

Impact of COVID-19 Epidemic to the Group

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and will continue to be implemented across the
PRC. The Group has assessed the overall impact of the situation arisen from the
outbreak of COVID-19 to its operation and has taken all possible effective
measures to limit and keep such impact under control. The Group will keep
paying close attention to the development of COVID-19 and evaluate its
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating results in order to make
timely response and adjustments as appropriate going forward.

For further details of material events of the Group subsequent to 31 December
2019 and up to the date of this annual report, please refer to note 47 of the
Notes to Financial Statements of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Qingping, aged 56, is the Chairman and a non-executive
Director. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for the formulation and provision of
guidance and development strategies for the overall development of the
Group. Mr. Huang joined the Group in September 1992. He was appointed as a
Director on 8 January 2018 and re-designated as the non-executive Director on
19 August 2018. Mr. Huang has over 25 years of experience in the real estate
industry in the PRC. Before joining the Group, Mr. Huang was the section chief
at Gulou District Urban Construction Bureau* (currently known as Gulou District
Construction, Real Estate and Transportation Bureau*), from October 1983 to
September 1992, responsible for urban planning. Mr. Huang is currently a non-
executive director of Yincheng Life Service, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922).

Mr. Huang obtained his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from
Nanjing Jinling Vocational University* in the PRC in August 1983.
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Mr. XIE Chenguang, aged 57, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Xie joined the
Group in December 1998 and was appointed as a non-executive Director on
19 August 2018. Mr. Xie is primarily responsible for the provision of guidance
for the overall development of the Group. Mr. Xie has more than 34 years of
experience in the engineering and real estate industry in the PRC. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Xie worked several positions, including vice general
engineer and chief of the technical department at Nanjing Sanjian (Group)
Company* (currently known as Nanjing Jiangong Group Co., Limited*) from
October 1983 until November 1998, responsible for construction project
management. He was chief of the technical department when he left to join
the Group. Mr. Xie is currently a chairman and a non-executive director of
Yincheng Life Service, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1922).

He obtained a diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Nanjing Jinling
Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983. He received a bachelor’s
degree in construction project management from Southeast University in the
PRC in July 1998, and his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School in the PRC in
September 2007. Mr. Xie obtained professional qualification as a senior
engineer in November 2000.

Executive Directors

Mr. MA Baohua, aged 58, is an executive Director and the President of the
Company. Mr. Ma joined the Group in February 2004 and was appointed as an
executive Director on 19 August 2018. Mr. Ma is responsible for the overall strategic
decision, business planning, and daily management and operation of the Group.
Mr. Ma has over 34 years of experience in the real estate or real estate-related
industry in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, he worked from March 1986 until he
joined the Group in February 2004 at Nanjing Urban Planning Bureau*, and was
deputy director of the General Management Department when he left to join the
Group, responsible for plan implementation management work. Prior to that, Mr.
Ma worked at the Gulou District Urban Construction Bureau* (currently known as
Gulou District Construction, Real Estate and Transportation Bureau*) from
October 1983 to March 1986, responsible for urban planning. Mr. Ma is currently a
non-executive director of Yincheng Life Service, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922).

Mr. Ma received his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Jinling
Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983. He then obtained his
bachelor's degree in urban and rural planning and land management from
Nanjing University in the PRC in July 2001, and his Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) degree from China Europe International Business
School in the PRC in September 2007. He has obtained professional
qualification as a registered urban planner since May 2001. In 2017, Mr. Ma was
recognised as one of the top 100 property managers co-awarded by Sina
Finance, Leju, China Real Estate Association, Shanghai Securities News and
China Entrepreneur Magazine.
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Mr. ZHU Li, aged 46, is an executive Director and the vice President of the
Company. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in July 1995 and was appointed as an
executive Director on 19 August 2018. He is primarily responsible for business
operations, customer service and procurement of the Group. Mr. Zhu has over
22 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC. Mr. Zhu is currently
a non-executive director of Yincheng Life Service, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1922).

Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in construction engineering from
Southeast University in the PRC in July 1999. Mr. Zhu received his Executive
Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from China Europe
International Business School in the PRC in September 2010.

Mr. WANG Zheng, aged 40, is an executive Director and the vice President of
the Company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2003 and was appointed
as an executive Director on 19 August 2018. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the investment and marketing departments of the Group. Mr.
Wang has over 14 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. Wang received a diploma in international business administration from
Nanjing Normal University in the PRC in July 2001. He obtained his Master’s
degree in administrative management from Nanjing Tech University in June
2014, and obtained his Real Estate Brokerage Practise Certificate on 24 June
2009.

Ms. SHAO Lei, aged 38, is an executive Director and the vice President of the
Company. Ms. Shao joined the Group in July 2004 and was appointed as an
executive Director on 19 August 2018. Ms. Shao has also been appointed as a
financial director of the Company with effect from 21 April 2020. She is
primarily responsible for legal, funds and securities affairs of the Group. Ms.
Shao has over 13 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC,

Ms. Shao received a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from Nanjing University
of Finance and Economics in the PRC in June 2004. She obtained professional
qualifications as an accountant in May 2005, and a certified public accountant
in February 2008.

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. CHEN Shimin, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 February 2019. He is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to the Board. He has almost 30 years of
experience in accounting. Dr. Chen is currently a professor in accounting at
China Europe International Business School in the PRC and has been in this
position since August 2008.

Prior to his current position, Dr. Chen worked as assistant professor at the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong from August 2005 to August 2008.
Dr. Chen also worked as assistant professor at Lingnan University in Hong Kong
from September 1998 to August 2005.
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He also served as an independent director of Zhejiang Wolwo Bio-
Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd.*, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300357) which is a biopharmaceutical company engaged in the
research of allergic diseases, and the development, production and sales of
treatment products, from January 2011 to January 2017. Dr. Chen also served
as an independent director of Hangzhou Shunwang Technology Co., Ltd.*, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300113) which is
principally a service provider for an internet cafe platform, from November
2009 to March 2016, an independent non-executive director of China High
Speed Transmission Equipment Group Co,, Ltd., a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 658) which is principally engaged in the manufacturing
of high-speed gear transmission equipment in China, from June 2007 to
December 2016, and an independent non-executive director of Hailan
Holdings Limited*, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2278)
which is principally engaged in the development and sales of properties in the
PRC, from June 2016 to December 2018.

Dr. Chen currently serves as an independent non-executive director,
independent director or member of the board of supervisors in several listed
companies, including those set out below:
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Huafa Industrial Co., Ltd. a company engaged in property listed on the independent director

Zhuhai development and operation

WEEREXRENERAR —REE U ER T LG EN AT

Shanghai Oriental Pearl
Media Co., Ltd.

a company principally engaged
in the provision of cultural
recreation and media services
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Sun King Power Electronics
Group Limited

a company engaged in the
production, sales and installation
of products such as electric
traction systems, control systems
and monitoring systems for rail
transit vehicles; and sales of
energy-saving and power-efficient
electronic components and
systems
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Place of listing and

Position and

Name of Entity Principal business stock code period of time
R
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Advanced Micro-Fabrication a company engaged in the provision  listed on the Shanghai independent

Equipment Inc. China of micro-fabrication equipment to
customers in the semiconductor
industry and adjacent
high-tech sectors
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Postal Savings Bank of China Co, Ltd.  a company engaged in personal
banking, corporate banking
and treasury
—EREEARITES - REERTT
EBRESEBHRA

PEEBRFEERTROER DA

Anxin Trust Co., Ltd a company principally engaged in

financial trust businesses
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Dr. Chen graduated with a bachelor's degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in the PRC in July 1982. He received his
master's degree in economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC in July 1985, and a doctor degree from the University of
Georgia in the United States of America in August 1992. He obtained his
professional qualification as a Certified Management Accountant in January
2008 from the Institute of Management Accountants in the United States of
America.

Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 18 February 2019. He is primarily responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board. Mr. Chan has
more than 20 years of experience in finance and banking.

Prior to his current position, he was the chief financial officer of Elegance
Optical International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 907) which is primarily engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of eyeglasses from October 2017 to May 2019. He served as a chief
operating officer of CITIC Merchant Co., Limited, a company primarily engaged
in the provision of merchant banking services, from January 2012 to September
2017. Prior to that, Mr. Chan was the responsible officer at Piper Jaffray Asia
Limited, a full-service investment bank, from February 2011 to November 2011.
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Stock Exchange
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Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600816)
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director since
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member of the board
of supervisors since
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independent
non-executive
director since
November 2018
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Mr. Chan also worked from March 2005 to January 2011 at BNP Paribas Capital
(Asia Pacific) Limited, a company primarily engaged in the provision of
investment banking services, and was a managing director of the corporate
finance and Greater China Coverage department at the time of his departure.

From 15 August 2000 to 4 December 2004, Mr. Chan served as an executive
director of Sanyuan Group Limited, a company delisted from the Stock
Exchange in December 2009 (stock code: 140), which was principally engaged
in the research and development of bio-pharmaceuticals. Mr. Chan was
appointed to the board of directors of Sanyuan Group Limited to handle the
restructuring of its business activities and materialising its debt restructuring
plan.

Mr. Chan graduated with a bachelor's degree in commerce from the University
of Canterbury in New Zealand in May 1989. He received his master's degree in
applied finance from Macquarie University in Australia in November 1998. Mr.
Chan has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (previously known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since
July 1993. He obtained his professional qualification as a Chartered Accountant
in November 1992 from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Australia and
New Zealand (previously known as Chartered Accountants of New Zealand).

Mr. LAM Ming Fai, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 February 2019. Mr. Lam has many years of experience in the
legal industry in Hong Kong. He is currently a partner of Messrs. D. S. Cheung &
Co. specialising in corporate finance, corporate/commercial and compliance
and regulatory matters. Mr. Lam was admitted as a solicitor of the High Court
of Hong Kong in 2001. Mr. Lam worked as an associate in the Hong Kong office
of Messrs. Sidley Austin focusing on corporate finance works. Mr. Lam joined
Messrs. DLA Piper Hong Kong as an associate focusing on corporate finance
works with his last position as a partner since 2012 till the time of his departure.
Mr. Lam graduated with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WU Wei, aged 57, is the Group's chief engineer and is responsible for the
project management of the Group. Mr. Wu joined the Group in April 2004 and
was appointed as chief engineer subsequently. He has over 13 years of
experience in the real estate industry in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Wu was deputy manager at the time of his departure at the fifth branch office
of Nanjing First Construction Engineering Group Co. Ltd* from October 1983 to
2004.

Mr. Wu obtained a diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Nanjing
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983. He obtained his
professional qualification as a senior engineer in November 1999.
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Ms. LIU Xuegian, aged 43, is the assistant to the President. Ms. Liu joined the
Group in March 2015 as assistant to the President and is in charge of the
research and design centre and the costs control centre, responsible for the
design and costs control of the Group's property projects. Ms. Liu has over 17
years of experience in architectural design management. Prior to joining the
Group, she first served as a manager of the design management department
then later served as the manager of the commercial management department
of Nanjing Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.*, currently known as China Vanke Co.,
Ltd.) from September 2008 to March 2015. Prior to that, Ms. Liu was a project
manager at (China Shanghai Architectural Design and Research Institute Co,,
Ltd) (Jiangsu Branch Office)* from July 2000 to August 2008, where she was
responsible for architectural design.

Ms. Liu received a bachelor's degree in architecture from the Nanjing Institute
of Architectural Engineering (currently known as Nanjing Tech University) in
the PRC on 3 July 2000. She obtained her professional qualifications as a
National First Class Certified Architect on 22 June 2012 and senior engineer on
13 December 2012.

Ms. WANG Yingning, aged 41, is a financial director. Ms. Wang joined the
Group in May 2018 as a financial director and is responsible for managing the
finances of the Group. Ms. Wang has over 16 years of experience in financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, she served as an audit manager at the
Nanjing Branch of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
from July 2001 to May 2018, where she was responsible for the management
of audit projects. On 21 April 2020, Ms. Wang tendered her resignation to the
Board as a financial director of the Company. Ms. Wang confirmed that she has
no disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter relating to her
resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Ms. Wang received a bachelor’s degree in financial management from the
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in the PRC on 1 July 2001. She
obtained her professional qualifications as a certified public accountant in April
2007 from the Jiangsu Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Company Secretary

Mr. WONG Yu Kit, is the company secretary of the Company and was
appointed on 6 August 2018. Mr. Wong is currently the president of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited and has over 10 years of
experience in the corporate services field. He obtained a bachelor's degree in
Business Administration and Management from the University of Huddersfield
in the United Kingdom in November 2007, and a master's degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong in November 2013.

He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
and business practises. The Company’s corporate governance practises are
based on the principles of good corporate governance as set out in the CG
Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

During the period commencing from the Listing Date and up to 31 December
2019, the Company has complied with the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the success
of the Company by providing effective leadership and direction to its business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of its operations. The Board is
responsible for all decision-making in respect of all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control systems, risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those which may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other
significant financial and operational matters. The Board has the full support of
the management of the Group to discharge its responsibilities.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the senior management
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions. All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each Director may seek
independent advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees of the Company. Further details of the Board Committees of the
Company are set out below in this corporate governance report.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for all the
Directors and officers of the Group, including company securities, employment
practises, crisis management, investigation, litigation, tax liabilities and public
relation, etc,, which is reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.
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COMPOSITION

The Nomination Committee ensures the composition of the Board a balance of
skills, experiences, qualifications and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the business and development of the Company. The
current composition of the Board consists of two (2) NEDs, four (4) executive
Directors and three (3) INEDs. INEDs are responsible for exercising independent
judgment on various Board decisions. The Directors during the year ended 31
December 2019 were set out below:

Non-executive Directors

HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang

Executive Directors

MA Baohua
ZHU Li
WANG Zheng
SHAO Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan
LAM Ming Fai

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, and each of
the NEDs and INEDs has entered into an appointment letter, with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, subject to
the retirement and re-election in accordance to the Articles of Association and
the Listing Rules, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the Director or the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. Huang Qingping, Mr. Xie
Chenguang and Mr. Ma Baohua will retire from the office of Director and shall,
being eligible for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM. The Board and the Nomination Committee has
recommended the re-election of all the retiring Directors standing for re-
election at the AGM.
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The participation of INEDs in the Board brings a diverse range of expertise, skills
and independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's strategies,
performance, conflicts of interests and management process to ensure that the
interests of all Shareholders have been duly considered. Each of the INEDs has
confirmed in writing his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Board and the Nomination Committee considered
that all INEDs are independent.

There is a balance of skills and experiences for the Board, which is appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the Board members has no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

The list of current Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this report and all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The Company also maintains on its website (www.
yincheng.hk) and on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) an
updated list of current Directors (by category) identifying their role and
function.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills as to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. In connection with the Listing, all the Directors
had received during the year ended 31 December 2019 comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction at time around or before the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of
the Group structure, Board and Board Committee meetings procedures,
business, management and operations of the Group, etc. and that he/she is
fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and applicable regulatory requirements.
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The table below summarises the participation of each of the Directors in
continuous professional development during the year ended 31 December
2019:

BB RHE

TR S EFEAREET 2019512831 BIESF
E2EFEIEHENENR

Reading Legal and
Regulatory Updates
Attending and other Reference
Name of Director xR Training Courses Materials
RIERITEGI RBRA
HEEIRE kEM2EER
Non-executive Directors FHTES
HUANG Qingping #=ET v v
XIE Chenguang HE v v
Executive Directors HITES
MA Baohua HIREE v v
ZHU Li KN v v
WANG Zheng T v v
SHAQ Lei alifs v v
Independent non-executive Directors BAFBITES
CHEN Shimin PRt B v v
CHAN Peng Kuan BRIR S v v
LAM Ming Fai ey v v

Besides, the Company will keep providing information and materials to
develop and update Directors’ knowledge and skills as and when appropriate.
Such information and materials are relevant to the Group's business, corporate
governance, rules and regulations, accounting, financial or professional skills
and/or directors’ duties and responsibilities. There are also arrangements in
place for providing continuing professional development to each Director. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense. The company secretary is responsible for keeping records of training
taken by each Director.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board should meet
regularly and Board meetings should be held at least four times a year for
reviewing and approving financial statements, operating performance,
budgets, rules and regulations, announcements and circulars issued by the
Company and considering and approving the progress of the various on-going
projects, the overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional
meetings would be arranged if and when required.

Annual meeting schedules of each meeting of the Board and for the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee are
made available to Directors in advance. Board members are provided with all
agenda and adequate information for their review before the meetings. The
Board and Committee members are provided with comprehensive meeting
papers and relevant materials within a reasonable period of time in advance of
the intended meeting date. All Directors and the Committee members are
given opportunities to include matters in the agenda for regular Board and
Committee meetings and/or their meetings, if required. To facilitate the
decision-making process, the Directors and the Committee members are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required.

After the meeting, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and Committee
members for comments. Minutes of Board meetings and Committees’
meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available for inspection
by the Directors at all times.

Directors and Committee members may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications. Directors and Committee members are
free to contribute and share their views at meetings and major decisions will
only be taken after deliberation at meetings. Directors and Committee
members who are considered to have conflict of interests or material interests
in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be counted in
the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions. Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2019, four (4) Board
meetings were held. The individual attendance records of each Director at
such Board meetings and other meetings are set out below:
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BB RHE

Attendance record of Directors at the Board meetings and other meetings held
since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2019
EESHRALTHHEREZ 2019512 831 HETH
ExgeaRHMESRNHFERTHE

Audit Nomination Remuneration General

Board Committee Committee Committee meeting

Name of Director EEH F BEEg EREEE REEEE FHEES BRRAE
HUANG Qingping =8 F 4/4 2/2 1/1 N/A >3 A 1
XIE Chenguang HES 4/4 N/A 38 N/A A3 N/A A3 A 1/1
MA Baohua BRI 4/4 N/A N3 N/A N3 A /1 1/1
ZHU Li KN 4/4 N/A N3 N/A N3 A N/A >3 A 1/1
WANG Zheng Fik 4/4 N/A N3 A N/A N3 A N/A >3 A 7l
SHAO Lei A%z 4/4 N/A N3 N/A N3 A N/A >3 A 1/1
CHEN Shimin FeR - & 4/4 2/2 11 /1 /1
CHAN Peng Kuan  BRIE$S 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 /1
LAM Ming Fai mHaE 4/4 N/A 38 N/A A3 N/A A3 A 1/1

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2019, an annual general
meeting was held.

Apart from the said meetings, matters requiring Board approval may be
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions to all Board members.

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions were
well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written resolutions are
kept by the company secretary and are available for inspection by the Directors
at all times.

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board’s chairman throughout the year is Mr. Huang Qingping, being a
NED. Mr. Ma Baohua is the Group's president and an executive Director. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company are
currently delegated to the executive Directors and the senior management of
the Group. Therefore, there is no issue of the role of the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Group being performed by the same
individual and leading to power being concentrated in any one individual.
Each of the Board members has no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
different aspects of the Company's affairs. All Committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company's website at
www.yincheng.hk. All Committees should report to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations made. All Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at
the Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 18 February 2019 with
written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board to
provide independent oversight of the Group's financial reporting and internal
control systems, and the adequacy of the external audits.

The Audit Committee currently consists of two (2) INEDs, namely, Dr. Chen
Shimin and Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, and one (1) NED, namely, Mr. Huang
Qingping. Dr. Chen Shimin currently serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, who holds the appropriate professional qualifications as required
under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, the members of the Audit
Committee should meet at least two times a year to consider the budget,
revised budget, interim report and annual report before submission to the
Board and meet the external auditors at least twice a year.

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee has
held two (2) meetings which were also with the presence of the external
auditor. During the said meetings, the following major tasks were performed:

a. reviewing and discussing the interim financial results and reports for the
six months ended 30 June 2019 and the annual financial results and
reports for the year ended 31 December 2018, the related accounting
principles and practises adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings;

b. reviewing and discussing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

C. discussing and recommending the re-appointment of external auditor.

The Audit Committee has recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditor, Ernst & Young.
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The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has properly discharged its
duties and responsibilities since its establishment and up to 31 December
2019.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the fee paid/payable to auditor in
respect of audit services provided by the auditor to the Group were as follows:

BB RHE

BERTEEBEZE2019F12A310 €
REEZLZESEYERITEBBLEE -

% BT &

HE019F1NANBIEFEE  AEE 2%
HEATRE 2 Z BRGNS EE 2 B
Banr

2018

Nature of services RIEHE 2018 4F

RMB

ARETT

Audit services ZE AR 2,800,000 2,000,000
Reporting accountant’s services in relation to Listing ~ FAYR & tEMARI L &

and others H At 1) AR 75 500,000 4,300,000

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no non-audit service had been
provided to the Group by the auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 18 February 2019
with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company's website. The Nomination Committee is delegated
with the authority from the Board to formulate and implement the policy for
nominating Board candidates for election by Shareholders and to assess INEDs'
independence and commitment.

The Company also has a Board Diversity Policy and a Nomination Policy in
place. The Nomination Policy aims at improving the transparency around the
process by setting out the criteria and factors to be taken in account by the
Nomination Committee in selecting and recommending candidates as
Directors (including NEDs and INED(s)).

In identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board,
the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. A number of factors will be taken
into account, including but not limited to age, skills, regional and industry
experience, cultural and educational background, race, gender and other
qualities. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Nomination Committee
will also take into account factors based on the Company’s own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

HE09F1NANBIFEE EXEE 2%
NPT 2 LR TS ©

RELZE®

RATIER2019F2 A18BRVIRELEES -
L 2 T G 6 ) 3R A B X T AR i e AN A R AR
MER - IREZEGREZSRE  AEVT
MR TEBREESSREAEKEBRINK
& MAHZIE N I TE B R E M M AEGE -

ARBIAFREEEEZ TEBRRRERK
R RABKRE BB HEEZENRERA
EREREZBERNENEBEESREA
(BREFTEE B FITES) BRETH
BHRAR -

RYeABaEERIETIERTENENRE
ANiBiEF  REZEERNVEBREEEZ L
BERRABEK - ARFAHEEETHR &

RIETRNFER - KB R RITERLR X
ERBEES Bk MHILEMER - HE

TZTETE  REAZBENEREARRFN
EBRAR TR HRENBERTEEEERER
% o

SR B AE B R A A

—z-nzgH 03



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o SRR i

The Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy have been reviewed and
shall continue to be reviewed on regular basis.

As to the right to nominate, both the Directors and the Shareholders may
nominate person(s) to be appointed as a Director. Upon assessing the merits
and, for INEDs, their independence, by the Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee will make recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of two (2) INEDs, namely, Dr. Chen Shimin
and Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, and one (1) NED, namely, Mr. Huang Qingping. Mr.
Huang Qingping currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, among
other things, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategies.

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2019, one (1) meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held. It had reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the INEDs and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the Nomination Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 18 February 2019
with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board
to establish, review, and make recommendations to the Board on the Group's
remuneration policy and practises. The Remuneration Committee ensures that
all employees and Directors are appropriately remunerated in accordance with
the Group's strategy as well as its long-term and short-term performance.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one (1) executive Director, namely
Mr. Ma Baohua, and two (2) INEDs, namely Dr. Chen Shimin and Mr. Chan Peng
Kuan. Mr. Chan Peng Kuan currently serves as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, making recommendations to the Board on the
Group's policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for assessing the performance of the Directors
and approving the terms of their service contracts.

The aggregate remuneration (including salaries, allowances, performance-
related bonuses, pension scheme contributions and social welfare, share-based
payment and other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was approximately RMB8,636 million.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and performance of the Group. Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of
the CG Code, the annual remuneration of the senior management (non-
director and non-chief executive) by band for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out below:

BB RHE

BEEHM2EMELLBRARMYANES -
BEENRERARBEARAEENREE
TE o IRIBFEE AT RIBSF RIS E B 56 -
HZE2019F 12 A3 HILFERRERRE EE
ERFETETHRAB)NFEFTHNEEH T I
T

Number of employees

Remuneration band 3 B 5 = EE®E
p1 L) 2018
2019 2018 4F
HK$500,000 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,000 78 7T & 1,000,000 78 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 78 7T 2 -

HK$21,000,001 to HK$21,500,000

21,000,001 & 7T 2 21,500,000 78 7T - 1

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (4) of them (2018:
three (3)) are the executive Directors and one (1) of them is a NED (2018: one
(1)). Details of the remuneration of each Director and the five individuals with
the highest emoluments in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2019, one (1) meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held. It had reviewed the Company’s
remuneration policy and the remuneration package for the Directors and
senior management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company's corporate
governance policies and practises, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company's policies
and practises on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Anglo Chinese, the Company’s compliance adviser, save for the
compliance agreement entered into between the Company and Anglo
Chinese dated 8 June 2018 in connection with the Listing, none of Anglo
Chinese or its directors, employees or close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in the Group as at 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this report, which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rule.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited, external service provider, and Mr. Wong Yu Kit has been appointed as
the Company’s company secretary. The primary contact person at the
Company whom the service provider can contact is Ms. An Qi, director of
Investor Relations of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the company secretary had taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out on pages 140 to 146 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Securities Dealing Code.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Securities Dealing Code since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this report.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code was noted by
the Company since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains sound risk management and internal control systems
within the Group and to review the effectiveness of the systems.

Such systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks inherent in the
Group's business to an acceptable level, but not eliminating the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility to
oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the Group on an
on-going basis and to review the effectiveness of the systems annually. The
review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Under the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure, the management is responsible for the design,
implementation and maintenance of risk management and internal control
systems to ensure, amongst others, (i) appropriate policies and control
procedures have been designed and established to safeguard the Group'’s
assets against improper use or disposal; (ii) relevant laws, rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with; and (iii) reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.

The Company has an internal audit function which aims at helping the
Company accomplish its objectives by applying a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

The Group's internal control system includes a well-established organisational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. The day-to-
day departmental operations are entrusted to individual department which is
accountable for its own conduct and performance and is required to operate
its own department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority and
to implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the
Company from time to time. Each department is also required to keep the
Board informed of material developments of the department’s business and
implementation of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular
basis.
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With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company has adopted the Inside
Information Policy which governs the disclosure of inside information and
strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside information and has communicated
that to all relevant staff. The Board is aware of its obligations to announce any
inside information in accordance with the Listing Rules and conducts the affairs
with reference to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012. In addition, only the
Directors and delegated officers can act as the Group’s spokesperson and
respond to external enquiries about the Group's affairs. No incident of non-
compliance of the procedure, and internal controls in the Inside Information
Policy was noted by the Company since the Listing Date and up to 31
December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards. The
review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular, the Board
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions. The review was made by discussions with the
management of the Company and its external internal control consultant and
the assessment conducted by the Board. The Board believes that the existing
internal control system is adequate and effective, in particular, for financial
reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the Group’s
business, performance and strategies.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company
and the Directors always make efforts to fully address any questions raised by
the Shareholders at the annual general meetings of the Company. The
chairman of the Board will attend the annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The auditor of the Company will also attend the
annual general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit.

The AGM of the Company will be held on Friday, 29 May 2020, the notice of
which shall be sent to the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles, the
Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals

Pursuant to the Articles, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary
general meetings. Any one or more members of the Company holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the "Eligible Shareholder(s)") shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a written requisition
(the "Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 4502, 45/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the company secretary.

The Requisition must state clearly the name, the contact information of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, the reason(s) to convene an EGM, the
agenda proposed to be included, the details of the business(es) proposed to
be transacted in the EGM, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned. The
Eligible Shareholder(s) must prove his/her/their shareholding in the Company
to the satisfaction of the Company.
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The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and the shareholding
of the Eligible Shareholder will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar. If the Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM within 2 months
and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On the contrary, if
the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not
call for an EGM and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the
Eligible Shareholder at the EGM.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are
available on the website of the Company.

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to its principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 4502,
45/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong or such
other means of contact as set out in the website of the Company from time to
time.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business, performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an ongoing dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman of the
Board, the chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a Dividend Policy in effect. The Dividend Policy sets out the
factors that the Board will take into account in deciding the declaration of
interim dividends, special dividends and final dividends. The Dividend Policy
aims at enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the
Shareholders and investors to make informed investment decisions relating to
the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The dividend that the Directors may recommend or declare in respect of any
particular financial year or period will be subject to the Group’s operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition,
contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and future development
requirements, Shareholders’ interests and other factors which the Directors
may deem relevant at such time.

No arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive
any dividends was made by the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The existing Articles were adopted on 18 February 2019 and became effective
on 6 March 2019.

A copy of the Articles is posted on the designated website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.yincheng.hk).

There had been no changes to the Articles since the Listing Date and up to 31
December 2019.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Qingping

Chairman and non-executive Director
15 April 2020
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Stock Exchange on 6 March 2019. The Company and its
subsidiaries now comprising the Group underwent a reorganisation plan as set
out in the Prospectus. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group were involved in property
development, hotel operations and property investment.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. A review and
analysis of the Group's performance, including details of its material
acquisitions and disposals, for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections in this annual report. For future business development, the Group will
continue to focus on its existing property development business and acquire
high-quality land parcels in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis in China. Save
as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Subsequent Events” in this annual
report, the Group has no significant events after the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
of this annual report. A financial summary of the Group for the five years ended
31 December 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, respectively as extracted from
the published audited financial statements have been set out on pages 307 to
308 in this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of final dividend of HK$0.0232 per
Share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil) to Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Monday, 8 June 2020. The proposed final dividend is expected to
be paid in or about August 2020 following Shareholders’ approval at the AGM.
The Company will make announcement regarding the exact payment date of
the final dividend as and when appropriate in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

72

BEEMARERARERAEEH E2019F 12
A31 BILFE 2 EEZRG AT BRE

FTEEBREBERE

ARABB—HEEZERAR - RARRMDRH
2019F 3 A6 H7EBE P £ o TR AL
ERARNTNEMBARSREMATE - HF
BEABIRERA - HZE2019F12A31 81k
FE AEFABETHERNESHEM -
BIEEENEHERE

ARABEBHBRARNEZEBABHNEGE
WIS EE 1 c REEEZE 201912 A31 8
IEFEZRR (BREESEAKEBERIEFE) B
AEROMERAFRIEERE | RIEEE
MR B c BARREBEE A%
ESEER TR E RN E I ER S ERREP
ER-ALCERWEEL R BAFRIE
BEAWEDT — nBES  UHELELRE
FR—HEREE] —fATIETEEIN  HZE2019F
RANBLEVERFERREEARFRHEH
REBIWEBERNEM o

¥ Il‘ﬁ & Hﬁ /§\

REBEHZE2019F 1283 BILFEZEEH
RAEFHRIFAEEREMEANEE - HikE
BB CEZM B RERNANEBEE 20154
20164F ~ 20174F ~ 20184F K 2019F 12 A31E
1R EFE 2 B R E 5 B &R AN F 3R 5 307
E308H °

EECREREHE2019FN2ANBILEE
2 REARS B A% 0023278 7T (20184F + ) TR
20006 A8 H (2 —) BERHEERFRT
RABIRAMAZARE - #RA RSB
RIERERRERF K EHEZRR 2020F8 A
AR o ANARIBRIE LR A Z R EE
BB B R B R B A -



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group faces, among others, the following principal risks and uncertainties:
(i) uncertainty as to obtaining adequate financing to fund the Group's projects
and future development; (i) uncertainty as to business expansion into new
cities and regions; (iii) risks relating to the performance of the PRC property
markets; (iv) uncertainty as to acquiring desired land reserves for development
at locations suitable for the Group'’s development and at acceptable prices; (v)
risks relating to profitability of property projects; (vi) risks relating to fluctuation
in cost such as construction materials and labour costs; and (vii) risks relating to
the government policies and regulations affecting the PRC property markets.

For details of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer to the
section headed "Risk Factors” in the Prospectus, and for details of the financial
risks and the related risk management policies and practises used by the
Group, please refer to note 44 headed “Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies” to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2019 in the
share capital of the Company are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the amounts and movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s aggregate reserves available for
distribution to Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB817.2 million
(2018: RMB674.2 million).
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NOTES ISSUE

Details of the issue and sale of the senior notes by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Notes
Issue” in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue derived from the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 0.92% (2018: approximately
0.38%) of the Group's total revenue for the year; whereas, revenue derived from
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% at
approximately 1.65% (2018: approximately 1.18%) of the Group’'s total revenue
for the year.

During the year, purchases from the Group's largest supplier accounted for
approximately 8.95% (2018: approximately 22.38%) of the Group’s total
purchases for the year; whereas, purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% at approximately 25.81% (2018:
approximately 43.14%) of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year under review, that any of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has any
interests in any of the above five largest customers and suppliers of the Group
for the year.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers, customers
and/or other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance practises as adopted by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report “ on
pages 56 to 71 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as protecting the environment by minimising the
negative impact of the Group’s existing business activities on the environment
and complying with the applicable environmental laws and regulations.

The administrative procedures in relation to environmental protection for
property development projects may vary depending on the practise of the
local government authorities. For cities such as Zhenjiang, each of the Group’s
property projects must undergo an environmental impact assessment; and the
Group shall submit the relevant environmental impact study report to the
environmental authorities for approval before commencement of construction
of our projects, and submit the relevant environmental impact analysis table to
the environmental authorities for record-filing. For cities such as Nanjing and
Hangzhou, the Group submits the relevant environmental impact table for
construction projects to the environmental authorities for record-filing. Upon
completion of each property construction, pursuant to the Administrative
Regulations on the Environmental Protection of Construction Projects and
other relevant laws and regulations, the environmental protection facilities are
subject to corresponding checks and acceptance procedures.

Under the Group's standard construction contracts, the Group requires its
contractors to strictly comply with the relevant environmental and safety laws
and regulations. The Group's legal and audit department and human resources
and administration centre also provide trainings to other departments on the
updates in PRC environmental laws and regulations.

None of the Group’s properties had received any material fines or penalties
associated with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations since the
commencement of their operations during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report in this annual
report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. To the best
of the Company’s knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Group is not aware of any non-compliance in any
material respect with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Details of the Company's compliance with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in the Listing Rules are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this annual report were:

Non-executive Directors

HUANG Qingping (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang

Executive Directors

MA Baohua
ZHU Li
WANG Zheng
SHAO Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHEN Shimin
CHAN Peng Kuan
LAM Ming Fai

In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. Huang
Qingping, Mr. Xie Chenguang and Mr. Ma Baohua will retire from the office of
Director and shall, being eligible for re-election at the AGM, offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of all the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 49 to 55 of this report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that
all the INEDs as independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, and each of
the NEDs and INEDs has entered into an appointment letter, with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which may
be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
the Director or the Company.

Pursuant to the individual service contracts or, as the case may be,
appointment letters, each of the executive Directors and the NEDs is entitled to
a fixed amount of emolument and discretionary bonus to be determined by
the Board. For the INEDs, pursuant to the then individual appointment letters,
each of them is entitled to a fixed director’s fee.

All of the executive Directors’ service contracts and the NEDs’ and INEDs' letters
of appointment entered between the Company and the respective Director
has been reviewed and ratified by the Nomination Committee. None of the
Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 927 (2018: 836) employees. The
emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated by the
Remuneration Committee based on their merit, qualifications and competence.
It is the Group's policy to compensate each employee fairly and equitably. The
Group has a system for measuring employees’ performance against agreed-
upon goals with specific performance standards. Performance discussion is
carried out on an ongoing basis and a formal evaluation is conducted at least
once a year to review employees’ overall performance, achievements, and
areas in need of improvement. Salary review will be based on both Group’s
performance and individual performance and subject to the Group's discretion.

The Group entered into labour contracts with all of its employees. The Group
offer its employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic
salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. To incentivize its employees and promote the long-term growth of
the Company, the Group had adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme’). Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
sections headed "Director’s report — Share Option Scheme” of this annual
report.

The emoluments of the Directors are generally decided by the Remuneration
Committee and then recommended to the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics. All
the emoluments of Directors have been reviewed and approved or ratified by
the Remuneration Committee.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, no amount was paid to
the Directors or the five highest paid individuals, as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group. In addition, no compensation was paid to the Directors or
past Directors for the same period in connection with the loss of office as a
director of any member of the Group or of any other office in connection with
the management of the affairs of any member of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid employees
of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 18 February 2019, the Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved
and adopted by the then shareholders of the Company and its implementation
is conditional on the Listing. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a means of incentivising or rewarding the
Participants (as defined below) for their contributions or potential contributions
to the Group, and to motivate employees to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Company and attract and retain an on-going
relationship with Participants whose contribution are or will be beneficial to
the long-term growth of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at
any time within the period of 10 years after the adoption date, being 18
February 2019 to 17 February 2029, to grant options to, among others, any
director or employee of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Participant’).

No offer shall be made and no option shall be granted to any Participant in
circumstances prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Participant
would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules
or by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may be
granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified to
the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval of
the Company's results for any year, half-year, quarterly or other interim period;
and (i) the deadline for the Company to an announcement of its annual results
or half-year, or quarterly or other interim period (whether or not required under
the Listing Rules); and ending on the date of actual publication of such results
announcement.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other share
option schemes existing at such time of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 141,704,813 Shares (representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as of the Listing Date, the “Scheme Mandate
Limit"), which represents approximately 9.8% of the total number of Shares in
issue as at the date of this annual report (based on the total number of Shares
inissue as at the date of this annual report, i.e., 1,446,962,138 Shares).
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to any Participant under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12 month period shall not
at the time of grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue, unless otherwise
separately approved by Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted more than
10 years after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to a
Participant but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Participants are required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of
an option granted to them.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the Prospectus. During the period from 18 February 2019 and up to 31
December 2019, no option had been granted or agreed to be granted by the
Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and directors
of the Company's subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Huang Qingping, Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding
Limited, being the Controlling Shareholders, have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to the
Company under a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition’) entered into between the Controlling Shareholders and the
Company dated 20 February 2019 during the period under review. Details of
the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with
by the Controlling Shareholders during the period under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE FOR PROVISION
OF SERVICES

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report and in note 41 to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, there were no contracts of significance for the
provision of services to the Group by any Controlling Shareholder or substantial
Shareholder or any of the subsidiaries or companies controlled by any
Controlling Shareholder or substantial Shareholder, which subsisted at the end
of or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report and in note 41 to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, there were no transaction, arrangement, or
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies was a party and in which any Director or any entities connected
with a Director, the controlling Shareholders, the substantial Shareholders had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which are (a) recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard dealings by Directors as referred to the Model Code, were as
follows:

BEERFETHRAERAATREM
BELERMD - HEROREEZNE
BRAE

R2019F 128318 EFEHARAETETHR
ABRAQATSEMB AR (E&LES M
1EFIZEXVER) PR (a) BRE R IRIE B S N H
GBI E3GEBFRE 2B LMAMNER R
KE (BREREES LR EEN 2B RIIE R
EWERSIBAEREZERZNLAR) bR
BIZETAABESETI NN TIZEMA
BITHE AR R KRBTz S AR T ¢

P
=
‘(&
=

Long Positions in the Shares N ZHFE

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding

interest

Number of in the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares (Note 7

RAEDQ TR IRRE

EEHE ERMtE BREE BHAED

(Wizt7)

Mr. Huang Qingping ®ee? Interest in controlled corporation 539,089,534 37.26%
EN=R e L LB R

Mr. Xie Chenguang ®ete? Interest in controlled corporation 78,085,490 5.40%
Bl =Pivbiels ULl LB R

Mr. Ma Baohua Mot Interest in controlled corporation 71,919,056 497%
EIREE S A W) R EE R

Mr. Zhu Li More9) Interest in controlled corporation 36,192,609 2.50%
oK 71 5 A i) SN

Mr. Wang Zheng Mot Interest in controlled corporation 10,627,861 0.73%
F g g A (Es) LB R

Ms. Shao Lej MNere® Interest in controlled corporation 10,627,861 0.73%
Bl &z Zr - i) SN

82 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2019



Notes:

Q) Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and sole shareholder of each of Silver Huang
Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding Limited and is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by each of Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Vally Holding Limited
under the SFO.

(2) Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xie Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Xie Holding Limited

under the SFO.

(3) Mr. Ma Baohua is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Ma Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Ma Holding Limited under
the SFO.

(4) Mr. Zhu Li is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Li Holding Limited and is

deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Li Holding Limited under the SFO.

(5) Mr. Wang Zheng is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Wang Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Wang Holding
Limited under the SFO.

6) Ms. Shao Lei is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Shao Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Shao Holding Limited under
the SFO.

(7) The percentage shareholding interest was calculated based on the total number of

Shares inissue as at 31 December 2019, i.e. 1,446,962,138 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had registered an interest or
short position in any Shares or underlying Shares and/or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or that was required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares and Debentures

At no time since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a
party to any arrangement which would enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2019, the following persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company whose interests are disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” above) have interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRREOGREERSF
HYfE R

BEMEZEERARATTIETHRAERM B
2009 12A31H MTFTALT(REXEER
FETBRABRAERRREEBEER S « 18
Bl MEEENESEAR | —BRENS
BHRARAEETHABEZRIN) RIRH X
AERMD P HEE RN AR TIREESKE
158 336 (6 7BIF B B o Mr R sA R ¢

Long positions in the Shares RO ZHE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
interest
Number of in the Company
Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares (Note 3
RA A B KRR
FTERRHE ERME BRHEHE BHABED
(Rfzts)
Silver Huang Holding Limited ®°r” Beneficial owner 517,833,810 35.79%
Silver Huang Holding Limited 1 BB A
Silver Dai Holding Limited ®o«? Beneficial owner 187,777,351 12.98%
Silver Dai Holding Limited "2/ EmHEA A
Mr. Dai Chengshu et Interest in controlled corporation 187,777,351 12.98%
B E ST e R AR
Silver Zhu Holding Limited ®oe3 Beneficial owner 101,730,089 7.03%
Silver Zhu Holding Limited "3/ EmHEA A
Mr. Zhu Linnan Mot Interest in controlled corporation 101,730,089 7.03%
SRR 5 A ) R AR
Silver Xie Holding Limited "ete? Beneficial owner 78,085,490 5.40%
Silver Xie Holding Limited 4 EmHEA A
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Notes:

Q) Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Huang Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Huang Holding
Limited under the SFO.

(2) Mr. Dai Chengshu is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Dai Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Dai Holding Limited under
the SFO.

3) Mr. Zhu Linnan is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Zhu Holding Limited
and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Zhu Holding Limited under
the SFO.

(4) Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xie Holding
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Silver Xie Holding Limited
under the SFO.

(5) The percentage shareholding interest was calculated based on the total number of
Shares inissue as at 31 December 2019, i.e. 1,446,962,138 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors were not aware
of any other person who had or deemed to have interests or short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares which has disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them, their or any of their executors or administrators, shall or
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices
or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own
fraud or dishonesty. Such provision shall be in force from the Listing Date. The
Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance that provides appropriate
cover for the Directors.
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COMPETING INTEREST

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Yincheng Real Estate” and
“Delineation of Business” in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus, during the year ended 31
December 2019, none of the Directors or the Controlling Shareholders or their
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is interested in any business
which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group nor any conflicts of interest which has or may have with
the Group of interests with the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total bank and other borrowings of
RMB10,500.0 million, compared with RMB10,191.4 million as at 31 December
2018. The Group's borrowings are mainly denominated in Renminbi.

The details are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Indebtedness” of this
annual report.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year end 31 December 2019 was the Company, or any of
its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right
to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. No equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2019.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save as described in the Prospectus and those related to the reorganisation
referred therein, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any securities of the Company from the Listing
Date and up to the date of this report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient
prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required
under the Listing Rules from the period from the Listing Date and up to the
date of this report.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Anglo Chinese, the Company’s compliance adviser, save for the
compliance agreement entered into between the Company and Anglo
Chinese dated 18 June 2018 in connection with the Listing, none of Anglo
Chinese or its directors, employees or close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in the Group as at 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this report, which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rule.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board Committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are published on
the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at www.yincheng.hk.

All the Committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at the
Company's expense.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In connection with the Listing, on 6 March 2019, 354,262,000 Shares were
issued at a price of HK$2.38 per Share and 1,058,534,993.4660 new Shares were
issued pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the Prospectus). On 3
April 2019, as a result of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the
Prospectus) being partially exercised, 29,914,000 new Shares were allotted and
issued at the price of HK$2.38 per Share. The total net proceeds raised from the
global offering (including the issuance of Shares pursuant to the partial
exercise of the Over-allotment Option), after deducting all the underwriting
commissions, transaction levy and trading fee (as applicable) and all other
listing expenses in connection with the global offering, was approximately
HK$855.8 million.

The details of use of proceeds by the Group are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity, Financial and Capital
Resources — Use of Proceeds from the Initial Public Offering” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
o=

EELARERE

REARRFAFAFEMMRERAA - N
AFELTAHEREEARE B HHFHER
ETMRARE T T DRERITIRG 25% 8

WRRFFRE -

ERER N ER

BANREAEN  BRAQREES EWETL
HHIA2018F 6 A 18 HBE BRI * 722019
FNANAREEARELR A5 E
E EEXERBEACEER EMRR) BE
RAEBBEERE ETARBEAI9EENS
R BRI E R o

EXEZEY

EFeCRU R8T AEZEZES - F
ZEEMREEE S EUBREARRERNE

EElE - MEERUNEZEZESHEHIER
WRENSEBEEE - TS8R AT,
www hkexnews hk & 28 A B4 A www.yincheng hk ©

FIEZBENBREFERERSAEHAIR
RAEHE - TEEFSLZEQ@REHANE
BRABITRENBE WA ASEERTINE
EBERTESKBLEXER - ERAANREE

RTRORERAZREERS
FIE

oET M S R2019%F3A868 0 KR A
354,262,000 i 10 LA AR 2. 38 B T B 48 81T -
NMAR YR & AR (b 8173517 1,058,534,993.4660 I ¥
D (EEBBIRER) - N2019F4 838
HRNBEERE(EERBRER)ESLST
i+ #029,914,000 B2 ¥ % 10 1% & A% (D 2.38 78
LR EBIRERL T R BT - BIEREI DTSR
R REEITIRG (KB ERERS - X
SHERRZE(WER) REMELIREES
R WY 2REEMEREFELA S
HB8558BHEBTT °

AEBEFERMAERAIFBERAFREE
Bimhkot —RBES  MBEREANER
—BERARBEMFRERE] —& -

SR B AE B R A A

—z-nzgH O/



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ek

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Yincheng Real Estate and Yincheng Life Service are owned as to approximately
53.11% and 40.85% by Mr. Huang Qingping, respectively, and they are thus close
associates of Mr. Huang Qingping who is one of the Controlling Shareholders.
Therefore, Yincheng Real Estate and Yincheng Life Service are connected persons
of the Company.

The Company has entered into the following transactions with the Yincheng
Real Estate Group and/or the Yincheng Life Service Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019 which constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules and has on the dates indicated in the table below
entered into written agreements with Yincheng Real Estate and/or Yincheng
Life Service to govern such continuing connected transactions:

BRI E KR AETE RS D B R EIS R AT
BHI5311% K% 4085% * Bt - A BIERARE
2 —EBBFRENBEZHEA - Eitt - R
ERBMAETERS AR R BINEEAL -

BE209F12A3HIEFE - ARQFEHR
W EEE K KR EERGSEBERI ST
X5 ERBEEMRAERSERERS I
R TR B HR SRR W 2 &SRR IR A VE AR
BEVEAHRAETEZSRHERERS ¢
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Transaction amount
Description of continuing for the year ended
connected transactions Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement  Term Annual cap 31December 2019
HZ2019%128318
FRERER S 2EL ik ] ELE TR MR FELR LEEZRZE
1. Yincheng Real Estate agreed to grant to the - Trademark Licensing 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;  From the Listing Date to N/A. On royalty N/A. On royalty
Group non-transferrable licence to use Agreement and the expiry date of the — free basis — free basis
several trademarks registered in the PRCand (2) the Company relevant trademark
inHong Kong registration
RUMERERTAEBAAERNT BRTTHE WI9E2A188 (1) HHHE: R BrTHSEE TER - ZeH TER - ZeN
E - ERENEEEMRAS EEE 2 ARF ABEIREMER B 4 RRERE RRERE
Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to Master Hotel Services 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate; ~ From the Listing Date Will not exceed RMB2.2 Approximately
provide to the Group hotel accommodation, ~ Agreement and until 31 December 2021 million, RMB2.6 million RMB1,503,000
conference facilities and catering services in (2) the Company and RMB4.0 million
return for service fees for each of the three
years ending
31 December 2021,
respectively
ROMESERERARERMEEE EERBEGE W9F2A18E (1) BEHE: R BLHREEE BZ01 5128318 MARE 15030007
B SRARERERRE - NARRE 2 ARF 2021128318 L=EFERE
- B2 RIT AR
ARELEETL:
ARBLU6EETR
ARBWEET
Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to Vehicle Rental 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate; ~ From the Listing Date Will not exceed RMB0.42 Approximately
provide two vehicles for the Group's daily Agreement and until 31 December 2021 million, RMBO0.42 million RMB420,000
business operations in return for a monthly (2) the Company and RMB0.42 million for
rental of RMB35,000 (inclusive of insurance each of the three years
fees) ending 31 December
2021, respectively
PUMESERERATEENBRES NERERS 01927188 () REBE: R g EmASEE HZ001F12A318 MAR% 4200007
EERAMFAE NAREGAREA 2 ARE WIE12A318 Lt=EFERE
RE35000T(ERRE) #0 B TR
AEMOQBEET
ARBLBETLR
ARE0LEBT
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Transaction amount
Description of continuing for the year ended
connected transactions Agreement Dateof agreement  Parties toagreement ~ Term Annual cap 31December 2019
BZE2019%128318
FERERS 2HEL ik ELEE i PAIE D] HR EELR LEEZRSH
4. The Group agreed to lease from Yincheng  First Master Property 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate; ~ From the Listing Date Will not exceed RMB5.60 Approximately
Real Estate certain offices situated at 19thto ~ Lease Agreement and until 31 December 2021 million, RMBS.60 million RMB4,546,000
21st Floor, Block A, Yincheng Plaza, 289 (2) the Company and RMBS.60 million for
Jiangdongbeilu, Nanjing, the PRC with total each of the three years
GFA of 2870 sq.m. with a monthly rental of ending 31 December
RMB377,883 (inclusive of management fees) 2021, respectively
and 160 car parking spaces situated at the
basement of Yincheng Plaza, 289
Jiangdongbeilu, Nanjing, the PRC with a
monthly rental of RMB88,000 (inclusive of
management fees)
TEERERBICEREUNTER F-NWFEEL  2000F2A18E (1) BHHE: R BLTRMEE BZE021F12A318 BARRE 45460007
RIRLBRRAESARI9EYN Wik @ AAF 2016128318 L=EFERE
BRETHER(BREERAL80T #A 5T
x - BRAREAARKISTL(E ARMSEOEET
ERE)) RANTEERIRILH 289 ARESOEBTR
FRABSHEN 60 EB(5AHS ARESGOBEET
AARKSB00TL(REEE))
5. Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to lease ~ Second Master 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;  From the Listing Date until Will not exceed RMB48.55 Approximately
from the Group the properties whichareto  Property Lease and 31 December 2021 million, RMB69.10 RMB2,213,000
be used as gymnastic centre, long-term Agreement (2) the Company million and RMB69.10
leasing apartments and elderly home, million for each of
respectively (Note) the three years ending
31 December 2021,
respectively
PUHESEREAASERENE - F_OWFEEL  2009F2A18E (1) BHHE: R BEmASEE HZ01 5128318 MARE 22130007
BRNERARAERSDL  RED  BE 2 ARE WIE12A318 L=REFERE
BRzER (M) B RITEA
AR 4RSS HET
AR¥6910EBTR
ARKI0EET
6. Yincheng Real Estate agreed to provide Master Property 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate;  From the Listing Date until Will not exceed RMB45.94 Aggregated with the
property management services in respect of  Management and 31 December 2021 million, RMB75.12 transaction amount
the unsold property units and the sold Services Agreement (2)  the Company million and RMB76.80 under the New Master
property units prior to the agreed delivery million for each of Property Management
date as set out on the property purchase the three years ending Services Agreement,
contract for projects developed by the 31 December 2021, approximately
Group including maintaining sales offices of respectively RMB25,093,000
property projects of the Group
RUMERERASERFRERNY NEERRER W9F2A18E (1) BEHE: R BrmHSRE HZ01%128318 EHNEERRBE
(BEANFEBERNRHANRAE B 2 AR W1FENA3A IE=AFERE ek TR 5
EMEELREENZBAREANEE BRI R A8
R BEARASENZARHE ARE4SUEET AR 2509300070
MER ARENESTR
ARB7680EET
7. Yincheng Life Service agreed to provideto  New Master Property 21 October 2019 (1) Yincheng Life Service; ~ From 6 November 2019 until  Will not exceed RMB45.94 Aggregated with the
the Group the property management Management Services and 31 December 2021 million, RAMB75.12 millionand  transaction amount
services as originally provided by Yincheng ~ Agreement (2) the Company RMB76.80 million for each under the Master
Real Estate under the Master Property of the three years ending Property Management
Management Services Agreement 31 December 2021, Services Agreement,
respectively approximately
RMB25,093,000
PHAETREAEAFEERARER TNEEERBE 2019510808 () FWEERB R B019F11B6BEE Bz F12A3BIE BEERRFLGE
NEEBRBGLBHETRRLERSE B 2 ARF 2021F 124318 “EEERFRARNTE  THRHEAN
HEERRE BARBSUEET AR 250930007
ARE7NESTR
ARBT60EET

PR AR RAER AR
—E-NEER
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Transaction amount
Description of continuing for the year ended
connected transactions Agreement Date of agreement  Partiestoagreement  Term Annual cap 31December 2019
HZ20195128318
FERERS 2HEL ik e iE PAIE ] HR FELR LEEZREH
8. Yincheng Real Estate Group agreed to Master Marketing 18 February 2019 (1) Yincheng Real Estate; ~ From the Listing Date until Will not exceed RMB16.0 million, ~ Approximately
provide marketing and sales services, and Sales Services and 31 December 2021 RMB25.6 million and RMB40.0 RMB14,958,000
including but not limited to providing Agreement (2) the Company million for each of the three
market and sales services to the on-site sales years ending 31 December
office of the Group 2021, respectively
RHMESERERETSREHR THEREHRBE  009F28188 () BEHE:R BEMASEZ01E12A BE00E12A8318 MARK 149580007
% BEETERAAEERSHER HE 2 ARHF 318 IE=AFEREF
BRERTISRE HRG BRI A
AEBI60BET
ARBB6EETLR
ARE400EET

Note: Since 3 April 2019, part of the properties which is used as gymnastic centre has been
leased to the Yincheng Life Service Group.

Compliance with the Listing Rules:
1. TrademarkLicensing Agreement

As the right to use the licenced trademarks is granted to the Group on a
royalty-free basis, the transaction under the Trademark Licensing
Agreement falls within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule
14A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2. Master Hotel Services Agreement

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the aggregated annual caps in relation to the hotel services is
expected to be less than 0.1%, the transactions under the Master Hotel
Services Agreement will be exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders” approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

3. Vehicle Rental Agreement

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the aggregated annual caps in relation to the Vehicle Rental
Agreement is expected to be less than 0.1%, the transactions under the
Vehicle Rental Agreement will be exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

4. First Master Property Lease Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the First Master Property Lease
Agreement is expected to be less than 5%, the transactions under the
First Master Property Leasing Arrangement will be subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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Second Master Property Lease Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the Second Master Property
Lease Agreement is expected to be less than 5%, the transactions under
the Second Master Property Leasing Agreement will be subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Master Property Management Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the Master Property
Management Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an
annual basis, the transactions under the Master Property Management
Services Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
shareholders” approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

New Master Property Management Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the annual caps in relation to the New Master Property
Management Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an
annual basis, the transactions under the New Master Property
Management Services Agreement will be subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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Master Marketing and Sales Services Agreement

As each of the applicable percentage ratios for the Master Marketing and
Sales Services Agreement is expected to be less than 5% on an annual
basis, the transactions under the Master Marketing and Sales Services
Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

In respect of the transactions under the First Master Property Lease
Agreement, Second Master Property Lease Agreement, Master Property
Management Services Agreement and Master Marketing and Sales
Services Agreement which are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
Shareholders” approval requirement, pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of the
Listing Rules, the Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has
granted, waivers exempting the Company from strict compliance with
the announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
subject to the condition that the aggregate amounts of such continuing
connected transactions for each financial year shall not exceed the
relevant amounts set forth in the respective annual caps stated above.

For further details of the continuing connected transactions as
mentioned above, please refer to the section headed “"Continuing
Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

The continuing connected transactions (except for the granting of
trademark licence under the Trademark Licensing Agreement) as
mentioned above also constitute related party transactions of the
Company under the IFRS(s), details of which are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. Save for the
transactions disclosed above, the other related party transactions as set
out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transaction which
require announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules.
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Annual Report 2019

5K E HRE A S

HRNA TS K R B & PrY &
EEBRALEEMSTITBEBEFASE
5% MBREHRBEB BRI LIRS
HAET EMARAUBUATIE T HE
FEEHRASHE  HERRETE
SCRHLERE ©

ME—OWEREEDRE  F0OWE
HEvms METERBAHZEAR
MEREHEBREBHZE TN Z2RZM
T OHAEBTHR TERIRAER
RGBT B R R ALER T
BiE R EF 14A105 1% - KA R H
BERBMRFTERERE AN R BRI EST
FTHRAEUAZTNRERT  HEIEGE
EEVBEENZERERERING
ETSEE S g FE ERATHAE
e -

FRLASEMERSINE—FFHE -
F2HBRER (FERERS | —f -

mEFr - FEERER S (RIRRER S
IR T EISRFT A BRI AR A R BIR
BERTEREENNEBAIRS - &
BERAFREE M BHRERM TS - B
EXFRBEENR B RE MR RKRN
R4 PENE MR T X 5 MR AR
S ETRAUNATHRE - FEEH B
VERFRERENRER ZAIFERE

%5



Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all the INEDs have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that they have been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)~ onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practise Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been audited by Ernst & Young, the auditor of the Company, who will
retire at the conclusion of the AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

AGM

The forthcoming AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 29 May 2020, the
notice of which will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders as soon
as practicable in accordance with the Articles of Association and the Listing
Rules.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM

For the purpose of determination of eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 26 May 2020 to Friday, 29 May 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer of Shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, 25
May 2020.

To be entitled to the proposed final dividend

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 4 June 2020 to Monday, 8 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to establish
entitlements to the proposed final dividend, all transfer of Shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday,
3 June 2020.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report
form part of this annual report.

Notes:

In this annual report, English names of PRC entities marked “*" are translations of their Chinese
names for identification only. If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names and
their English translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.

Amounts and percentage figures included in this annual report, including information
presented in thousands or millions of units, have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, totals of rows or columns of numbers in tables may not be equal to the apparent
total individual items.

By order of the Board
Huang Qingping
Chairman

Nanjing, 15 April 2020
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

From 2018, the Company ("Yincheng International’ or “We") and the Group
publish the Environmental, Social and Governance report (the "ESG Report”)
every year. The ESG Report summarises the work and quantitative performance
of environmental, social and governance aspects from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019 (hereinafter referred to as the "Reporting Period” or the
“Year").

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the disclosure obligations
and reporting principles in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” (the “Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities issued by the Stock Exchange. Readers may refer to the last
section headed “Appendix Il: Content Index of Hong Kong Stock Exchange ESG
Reporting Guide” for quick referencing. The detailed information on the
corporate governance is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” from the annual report and the official website of the Group (http://
www.yincheng.hk/).

Scope of the Report

The content of general disclosure in the ESG Report will cover the core
business of the Group, but the Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs") disclosed
herein will be adjusted from time to time. As the Group's offices are the
principal place of business, and most of its construction projects are jointly
developed with third-party property developers in the form of associates and
joint ventures, it has difficulties in collecting the environmental KPIs of the
construction projects. Therefore, only the environmental KPIs of Nanjing offices
(including the headquarters, Nanjing Hongquan Real Estate Co,, Ltd ("Nanjing
Hongquan’), Nanjing Hongyou Real Estate Co,, Ltd ("Nanjing Hongyou"),
Nanjing Yinguang Real Estate Co,, Ltd ("Nanjing Yinguang")) and Nanjing
Yinzhuo Real Estate Co., Ltd (“Nanjing Yinzhuo")) and Wuxi office (namely
Wuxi Century Garden Real Estate Co,, Ltd ("Wuxi Century Garden")) and the
social KPIs of the Group were recorded in the ESG Report for the Year, and
where applicable, the data from previous years were provided for comparison
and analysis. In addition, the three projects with Two-star Green Building
Design Logo are disclosed in detail in this ESG Report, including Nanjing
Yincheng Huihu Yaju Yihu Garden Building 1-11, Huihu Yaju Huiya Garden
Building 1-9 and Huihu Yaju Huisong Garden Building 1-8.

DATA COLLECTION

The information cited in this Report come from the official documents and
statistics of the Group and has been passed to the relevant departments of the
Group for review.

CONTACT INFORMATION

Your opinions will be highly valued. If you have any enquiries or suggestions,
please email at ir@yincheng.hk.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

In addition to focusing on business development, the Group establishes good
communication with stakeholders and implements sustainable development
strategy, which will benefit our long term development. We are committed to
identifying material topics of environmental, social and governance in our
operations and embodying our emphasis on corporate social responsibility by
complying with relevant laws, regulations, policies and decisions.

Stakeholder Communications

In order to effectively promote and plan for sustainable development, we
regularly collect opinions from stakeholders who are closely related to the
business or operations through different channels, and make improvement
accordingly to meet their needs, and build long-term relationships with them.
For the main stakeholders and communication channels, please refer to the
table below:

Stakeholder
HFHE

Communication channel

BHEIE

AFEERS

AEERBEIFHERIN SHEBNERIR
HHER  ERASBEZRIHMEREER
BH - ZPIBMAOBAIESETHRE  HER
ERMEER |$E§% 33 48 8 1B AR BE R K
Mo BRMRR - BREMHEREETMEN
EX I

K ERE
REBHES R HEER -
XU L ERREBRENTNEATRRER
SRR RBREAMEH AR RMMIFENR - Tr5E
B PR RENEER - TEZHNENER
REFM2H TR

HMEMe R

Shareholders/investors

Annual general meeting and other general meetings, interim and annual reports, results

announcements, shareholders’ visit programmes, investors' meeting, senior management
meeting, conference and environmental, social and governance (ESG) meeting

HERERESG) TE

RAZFEHENTE TPBELER

MRS

B REE Hx%ﬂﬁj(é\éﬁiﬁﬁtﬂxﬁﬁ’* H HA s o5 B %ZE/W‘E RELEES KEE
2% PREEAEEE  SREANRE -

Customers Customer satisfaction survey and feedback form, customer service centre, activities for
increasing customer loyalty, site visit by customer relationship managers, daily operation/
interaction, online service platform, telephone and mail box

®P %Tiiiﬁiif“méﬂ%‘\i%% C BPRBHLO
7 BEEE /R BLERBKTE - BEMNBAE

Employees Employee survey, employee feedback channels (forms or suggestion box), performance
assessment, group discussion, conference, work performance review, voluntary event and
seminar/workshop/talk

BT EIﬁEEHE BTITXREZRNRB (R BERES)  ITHERRTIZ -

CEEA  TERBER BLESHNMTE TIES, GEE

Business partners

BB REGMEAFRR ~ A
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Strategic cooperation projects, exchanges, meeting, visit and talk
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Stakeholder Communication channel

BiE S8R5 E

Suppliers Suppliers management system, meetings, suppliers/contractors assessment system and site
visit

Y HEEEERRF - 2% HER /ARG ENE R ER

Media Press conference, news release, senior management interview, results announcement and
gathering with media

EE FEEhE  HERE SREEASNME  ZEEAMGNEEES

Community/non-governmental
organisations

L, BT E RS
Public
N

Regulators

EEKE

Green building, environmental information disclosure, green construction, voluntary event,
donation, community programme and seminar/talk/workshop

HEEE RECEEEE - eI 21EH - BE - HtREBMHANE B
B,/ T

Media information, websites and events of the Group

HReER  SERSUNEEED

Conferences, industry events and consulting

G TERDNEA

SR B AE B R A A 97
—E-NFER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRbE - e R

Materiality Assessment and Matrix

During the Year, in addition to daily communication, we invited 39 internal and
45 external stakeholders to participate in online questionnaires to assess the
materiality in the aspects of (1)economy and operations; (2)employment and
labour practises; (3)environment; and (4)community, the results of which will
influence the disclosure structure of the ESG Report for the Year and the
Group's priority in responding to and managing the four major ESG material

issues abovementioned.

Listing ESG issues of importance

JIHEEMNESCGERE

Rating the issues based on the importance
in the questionnaire

RESESEZENEZMETR

Questionnaire results

BEER

EEMIMERER

REEAR BRMAAFEERFT9BAM
KAasBHNBRMELRPLERERHE - FAh
HENOEERZE: QEBRRBBER Q)R
B OHREZECERY  GREFELRFE
ESGHREMMBEAEBNAEERY MERE Fat
PORESGEEMHBERINELRF -

Refer to the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and the Guide

List 31 issues on economic, environmental, social and governance
2E2HREEHAS (GR) A (HES1D

I H3ERLH - IRIR - 8 REAEBRZERE

Rank the importance of issues using a scale of 1 to 10

1 being not important at all and 10 being very important
RIZ10NSEREHENEEIEETIR
1THTETEE  10RFEEE

Consolidate data to draw an importance matrix
Adjust disclosure structure
MEARRUR A /BBl E 2 AR [

SRR ER A

SR EIPR - E R AR feE [

Yincheng International — Materiality Matrix

PR EHERE

7
[=]

)
LYo

®15

Importance towards External Stakeholders

8

1@ High-materiality
issues
mEEHERE

[ Jo)

13
14

ow

Medium-materiality
issues

° hE2EEE

Low-materiality
issues

EERMHE

HIRPBRNER T

Importance towards Yincheng International
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Materiality Matrix of Yincheng International

RPN ERMAER

High-materiality issues

SERMERE

Medium-materiality issues
hEEMEE

1 Compliance with laws and regulations Economy and operations
1 BT IRRER BN B
3 Quality control Economy and operations
3 BEES P N B
6 Health and safety of product/service Economy and operations
6 Em/ RISHREREZ 2 1P N B
8 Complaint and response mechanisms Economy and operations
8 B IR AR A 0 S A A E N R

2 Responsible procurement Economy and operations

2 B EERE P N B

5 Customer privacy protection Economy and operations

5 EFMLBRE 1N B

7 Anti-fraud and anti-corruption Economy and operations

7 REFEMR &S BB

10 Employment rights Employment and labour practises
10 |EFE#ED BEREHER

11 Labour relations Employment and labour practises
11 (BEHE BENMSHER

12 Occupational health and safety Employment and labour practises
12 |(BEXRFREEZE BEREHER

13 Employee training and development Employment and labour practises
13 |BTEJIMER BENMSHER

14 Qualifications and professional conduct Employment and labour practises
14 | EENMEREST BEMEHER

18 Community investment and engagement Community

18 |iHEKREMSE ZaN

BRI A R A A
—E-NEER
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Materiality Matrix of Yincheng International

BB EEMIERE
Low-materiality issues
REEMRE

4 Technology development and application Economy and operations
4 P 3 R & e BN B
92 Promotion and labels of product and service Economy and operations
9 B MERRBIZER P N B
15 Energy consumption and efficiency Environment
15 |BERBRENME RIR
16 Use of material/resource Environment
16 | MK ERER R
17 Environmental awareness of employees Environment
17 | BEIHRRER RIR
Importance Matrix of Yincheng International SRR PRV E E M A [

The ESG Report determined the order of "Our Operations’, “Our Employees’, ESGHREGRIEFELE R BT [ HMANE

"Our Society” and “Our Environment” based on the matrix results and disclosed & [HMHE T ] [HR AL | & [

related business ideas and measures one by one. FIRE | WIEF - WE —HEAENLCEES
RERFE -
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OUR OPERATIONS

The Group has been recognised by the Jiangsu Real Estate Association as one
of the top 50 enterprises in the property development industry of Jiangsu
Province in terms of comprehensive strength consecutively for 17 years, and
ranked the second place in 2018. By adopting standardised property
development procedures, we persist in the compliance operation and provide
high-quality property products to consolidate over 18 years of development
experience and brand awareness.

Strict Quality Control

Adhering to the developmental concept of leading quality, excellent services
and innovative future, Yincheng International was awarded the title of “2019
China Quality Real Estate Award (2019 4F [£ A B 4 & #b = 4¥)". The Group
establishes standardised procedures and adopts targeted and strict quality
control measures in different development cycles to ensure quality. In addition
to focusing on development projects, we also invested resources in the
following three major city optimization and maintenance plans:

EMNEE

AEEEBERI7TFRIHEFHED @E3F7E'_'r
Ié%%imﬁﬁ'ﬁ%é%rm%iﬁsoﬁ;%m%z—
R2018FHRFE = - RPIBFARE 1&3’]5%?”6
BF AAEEXGREHREBEYMRE -

B 18 F R B LR AR mENEE -

BRREHEE

R BB BT M SR RIS E - BIFTARK
RFIEEIE S TG [2010FER R R EE
MR AEEREVFEEEHER - WRD
[F) 53 A AR ER R ET 4T 14 B B AR B 242 53 i -
WRFBEE - RIEABEBN - SFENE
AEERNERRAT = KRBT RREE

EE

g

;
\’T EHES
-y I

2019

L 1 oy

b

AR BE v [ G 0T My

‘E;_g

(]

Investment

BRAER

Plan

=&

“Excellent City Plan” (8385t 2) (Continuous A total of 19 projects were implemented, involving 10 communities, and covering

optimization and improvement plan on new
projects)
BhET &I (3118 B R L BuERt ) H#T19

EB|E - F k&

11,856 households in Nanjing and Wuxi

1018 BEN856 FRARMESHET

“Bright City Plan” (5235 5T 2) (Reconstruction “Bright City Plan” was executed by the headquarters. 19 projects were implemented,

and renovation plan on established projects)
SoYET B (ZhEIE B BuE B ¥EtEl)
BT

“House Examination” (5= /= B4 ) (Special
service for house maintenance in old
communities)

FEER(ZNRAFPEEREZERY)

(out of 10)

HEZ19

B/ N& K 2797 F - 4

involving 12 communities, and covering 13,645 households in Nanjing and Wuxi
A AR R T SR AT B - EHEIE A 1918

S NNRI12ME  BE13645FE RN

Covering a total of 19 communities and 2,797 households, with overall score of 9.33

BE2S(E 933 (LA10OD ARD)

SR B AE B R A A
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During the Reporting Period, none of projects of the Group was required to be
recalled for safety and health reasons.

In order to standardise the daily inspection of the Engineering Management
Centre for the purpose of improving the quality and management level of the
project, all projects under construction of Yincheng International will strictly
follow the “Guidelines for Daily Inspection of the Project’({ T2 B % ¥ T {E
#531)). We will arrange regular inspections and hold reporting meetings with
relevant departments on a regular basis to summarise opinions and conduct
rectification of problems found. After each inspection, the “Daily Inspection
Report by Project Management Centre” T2 B A0 B H KR BERE))
will be issued within a specified time based on the inspection results.

We will also carry out strict inspection and acceptance by project basis
according to custom design requirements and specifications, and the results
will be reviewed by at least three professionals for confirmation. We will
maintain record keeping in place.

Publicity

We abide by and implement the “Examination Rules for Marketing Planning”
(& HRE LB MmFEEAAY), to strictly monitor all websites, our WeChat
public accounts, advertising and marketing plans, to ensure no mistakes or
misleading information and violations of the Advertising Law and Regulations
Real Estate Advertising Release and other related laws and regulations. The
information will be reviewed and approved by the relevant departments such
as the Marketing Centre, Legal Centre and Customer Relationship Centre within
a specified time before disclosing to the public. If the information is used and
leaked without approval, the Group will impose punishment on the relevant
persons to enhance the relevant awareness of employees.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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BUSINESS INTEGRITY

The Group encourages employees to be honest, self-disciplined and loyal to
their duties. we will seriously manage employee discipline under the “Measures
for the Management of Employee Discipline” ({ 8 T 42 & & 12 # /£ ) and
realise our core values of "Honesty, Responsibility, Cooperation and Innovation”.
To ensure the compliance operation, we will comply with the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Corruption Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other relevant laws and regulations, and develop targeted policies
based on the actual situation of the Company. During the Year, the Group, its
subsidiaries and employees had not involved any corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering lawsuits and complaints.

Yincheng Group joined the Enterprise Anti-Fraud Alliance initiated by
Guangdong Enterprise Institute for Internal Controls in the second half of the
Reporting Period to further strengthen the exchange and collaboration on
internal control and anti-fraud risk management among enterprises, and learn
advanced management methods and management experience.

EBEEE

AEBEREETIFHRASBNENEE K
(BTLREEWDBRLEER T LR &

BIHE & /—\f’E BIFT | R L EBER -
ﬁff’ﬁ@ﬁﬁ% EEEE - BT(REARKM

BREEZE) (FEARKMBERETE)
(REARAMBERE) SH@ERER  XE
HBERAERBRHEHHENEE - AEH
RAFERBEES REMHEAER  F2
AINREBTABES B R REFERA
RERFFAASRIT

RMEENBRERN T FMARBERELE
MEREHIH S BN DR RIFREGSE - &~

g 1> 5% PR B PO BB 4% 1) B e S B[R e T B D A2

MEWE - BBREEE ST ANETEER -
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b

In terms of organisational structure of risk management and internal control,  7EEREIE R AEESIRERE HHE - FHE
the following three lines of defence has been established by Yincheng B%}%jTJ;{‘FEiE@?,& WHESEE EFERER
International, and are fully responsible by the Board/audit committee and E@NSHEEE2HAEE  ER2EEARE
senior management to achieve comprehensive risk control. 28 o

Risk Management

THE FIRST LINE OF DEFENCE
All core business departments

System and process
development

Daily management

and control

System implementation

THE SECOND LINE OF DEFENCE
All functional departments

Financial control

Human resource management
Compliance management
Operations management

Risk monitoring

THE THIRD LINE OF DEFENCE

Legal Audit Department
Internal audit and
supervision

BB
EBEE

and inspection Safety management . NZPERETEEE
Quality management
E—EhE Informatization management
BB P
GIEPSHiT L
HEE IR LA

HIERITIRE

EERE

B EFREEERFT
B 4 51
ADER
/\ﬁ%ﬁ
BEER
[ B BE A7
LB
EE fi
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Prevention Measures

The Group may effectively and specifically mitigate risks in operations by
adopting the following prevention measures.

We regularly organise the Functional Centres by the Operation Management
Centre or appoint external consulting agencies to review our processes and
policies, establish internal organisational structures at all levels, and clear
division of responsibilities from a professional perspective. They will establish
new systems and carry out revisions and updates according to actual business
conditions and needs. In addition, the Legal Audit Department will review the
compliance of the system as for checking, monitoring and evaluating the
implementation of each system; and each functional department is responsible
for establishment, promotion and training as well as the follow-up, evaluation
and improvement for the system implementation within the range of their
responsibilities.

The Group established a law academy and organised training related to
internal control. The trainer first shares cases of violations and adds the
discussion section for employees attending the training to exchange opinions,
and analyses the cases one by one from a professional perspective to ensure
that all employees improve their awareness and avoid violations in operation
after training.

We have posted the "Yincheng International Sunshine Declaration” (€ $8
BREZ Y E 5 ) at the bulletin board and prominent position at the project sites
and it plays the role of publicising the Declaration . We will answer inquiries
from customers, suppliers, construction units and employees in any time, so
that they can understand and implement consciously, to jointly build a win-
win cooperation relationship. The provisions therein can avoid any corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering during cooperation.

Complaints and Whistle-blowing Management

The Legal Audit Department of the Group has established different channels
(including hotline, letter, online e-mail or face-to-face compliant) for complaints
with high confidentiality. The Department are responsible for accepting and
handling complaints in accordance with the “Administrative Measures of
Complaints and Whistle-blowing” (€ #% & & ¥ & I #¥ /% )), recording and
collecting relevant evidence in detail to ensure fair and impartial investigations.
If whistle-blowing matter is true, the responsible department or person
responsible will be imposed punishment according to internal systems and
laws.

B S8 45 e

SEAE BRI T e SR A B S S AR
ENEETNRR

BMPeEHHELERT OAEMSEED LK
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Bk EEEEY - WRERRE - HEEK
EHIEHITOBER
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Al e BT E KRR D ZFN TR ERE
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R mEABEANEENAEE RADN
RAEB T ERIBIIRESER  #REL
BRER

B RECRBBERGATT)IRNAEH
ERRSHNABLE  THREEEEEMNA
B RMERBAREETFS  fER EIEM
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SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT

The Group has a total of 409 suppliers mainly located at Yangtze River Delta
Megalopolis, providing products and services including engineering support,
fine decoration engineering, materials and equipment, and consulting services.

We implement the following measures for effective management:

As a developer, every product and service provided by a supplier is an
important part. We have also noticed that the number of major suppliers has
increased this Year, so more effective and strict management is needed to
ensure that they are in line with the Group's expectations. In addition, as green
buildings have also been one of the key plans of the Group in recent years, the
demand for suppliers that can provide products and services related to
environmental protection has greatly increased. We carefully select suppliers,
including top 50 suppliers who cooperate with developers released by China
Index Academy in the previous year, and top suppliers in the industry and the
suppliers that have established cooperation relationship with and were
satisfactory to the Group. In order to ensure that suppliers operate in
compliance with law and mitigate environmental and social risks, we will
require suppliers to submit qualification certificates and conduct background
checks and inspections, and include qualified suppliers in the appropriate
database. The Group will provide supplier grades through assessment and
manage them based on the grades. The results will also directly affect the
opportunities for cooperation in the coming year. In addition, the Group will
issue honorary certificates to suppliers rated as excellent, and invite them to
participate in group-level supplier conferences for honorary incentives.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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QUALITY CUSTOMER SERVICE

A total of 31 employees of the Group are responsible for receiving customers’
inquiries and complaints through different channels. They will regularly
participate in training to ensure a professional response to customers. The
complaint handling rate for the Year reached 94.34%.

Complaint Handling Procedures

As we understand that receiving complaints is inevitable in our operations, we
will continue to improve product quality and provide customers with
satisfactory and considerate services, for the purpose of reducing the number
of complaints and increasing the rate of closing complaints. We have
formulated the “Customer Complaint Handling Practise Guidelines” ({ & F 1% 57 &
B E2£ 45 3|)) to standardise the process of handling customer complaints and
clearly identify the responsible departments. We first classify complaints
according to their levels and then handle the complaints by following different
handling procedures. Relevant functional departments shall formulate
solutions and treatment opinions (when necessary, a special meeting will be
held to discuss the solution) upon thorough understanding of the complaint,
and provide feedback to the customer within the prescribed time, and follow
up until the customer expresses approval for the solution. Finally, the customer
service department will arrange a return visit for general customer complaints;
and the group customer complaints will be summarised and re-described in
terms of four aspects, namely the review, strategy summary, analysis of gain
and loss, reflection and summary.

Customer Satisfaction Survey

According to the survey results of third-party professional institutions this year,
the customer satisfaction of Yincheng International was 91.00%, representing
an increase of 2.00% compared with 2018. The “Customer Satisfaction
Enhancement Plan’ (& M B E 2 F+ 5t &) formulated by the Group has
been implemented based on specific, measurable, executable, time-effective
and traceable principles. The Customer Relationship Centre collects the annual
“Customer Satisfaction Enhancement Plan” ({3 F i & [E 12 7+ 5T &) from
each units for preparing the “Yincheng International Annual Satisfaction
Enhancement Proposal” (€ 8 4% B B 4F [E i = JE 32 F+ 51 &1)) for the chief
executive’s review. The implementation and feedback of the “Customer
Satisfaction Enhancement Plan” ({ & B i 2 E 12 7+ 5T £1)) will focus on the
three major aspects as follows:

each department submits report on the plan implementation and
comments to the Customer Relationship Centre on a quarterly basis;

make a satisfaction enhancement plan for the second half of the year
after reviewing the plan for the first half of the year; and

properly collect the required information to submit the annual plan
summary within the specified time.

RHEEERR
AEEBLFINZETITHEER/IAEREERE
FREMARIEF M2 EBE2El - #R
NEENAELOERF - SFEEMEREER
EZ0434% ©
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IMPROVING INFORMATION SECURITY

Employees accesses to the information and data related to employees,
customers and core business mainly through the information system, and
monitors and strictly complies with the laws and regulations, such as the Law
of the PRC on the Protection of the Rights and Interests of Consumers and the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Guarding State Secrets. The
employee’s account will be deleted after the resignation to prevent them from
still accessing to sensitive information. If necessary, relevant persons shall firstly
make application for approval, and then the information department will
increase or decrease the authority according to the actual situation.

The Group formulated and implemented the “Administrative Measures for
Information Security"({{g B b Z 2B ##)%)) to ensure the safe and stable
operation of the information system and improve the high availability of the
system. We arranged regular inspections to deal with problems and keep
records in a timely manner. The emergency flowcharts are also included
therein so that the failure, if any, can be handled by following standard
procedures. Under the 55 management standards (Organise, rectify, clean,
cultivate, sweep), The Group's computer room is installed with access control
equipment and environmental monitoring systems to prevent it from fire,
water, extreme temperature and humidity, dust damages and to control access
to prohibit non-computer room staff to enter the computer room.

In terms of regulating the collection, arrangement, storage and utilisation of
files, we effectively promote the construction of data information and realise
the effective management and efficient use of data information resources
through the “Data Management System” ({22 & 2 #|Z ). The data will be
classified by secret level with specific management. The files can be borrowed
online after fulfilling the approval procedures, and the borrowing of paper files
must be registered as required. The borrower shall not alter, cut, extract, or
damage the files; shall strictly maintain confidentiality, and shall not extract,
duplicate, copy, transmit, and release the information without permission; the
copy of any file shall be destroyed in a timely manner after use.
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OUR EMPLOYEES

Adhering to its original intention of “Establish a Platform to Cultivate Talents
and Benefit the World and Achieve Our Ambitions” (28 & 37 A ~ BitHAE),
Yincheng International continuously improves the training and development
of talents, and has been awarded the honorary titles of “China’s Best Employer
2019" ([ 2019 FBI&E{E = |) and "Top 10 Employers in Nanjing” ([ F 5 &
F1058)).

Taking into account the needs of the business, the recruitment and retain of
talents is a key task of the Group. We recognise the efforts of our employees
and are committed to establishing fair recruitment procedures, providing
attractive benefits, training and development, and paying attention to
employees’ health and safety, while also ensuring compliance with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Minors and other related laws and regulations to build a
communion with respectful and safe working environment. It always
endeavours to offering welfare benefits and on-the-job training opportunities
for employees to attract and retain talents.
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The employees of the Group during the Year and previous year are as follows: AEFESFEHFFENEEBRAOT

TOTAL WORKFORCE
EEAH

Female

ZMES

2018

2019

Total workforce
BEHH:
927

Total workforce
BEBAH:
836

Male
BltEE

WP540

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY EMPLOYEE TYPE

BERVERETNESAY
804

Junior
MJET

101 2019

Intermediate management 000

FRERE %P\P\P

2018

000

il

22

Senior management

EREIEE

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE GROUP
BRERAREINESEY
439

Below 30
30BRAT

475

30-50
30-50%

13

Above 50
5058 A £

Male
BlEE

323 ﬁ

723

Junior
MHET

20

Intermediate management

TAREEE

23
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EQUALITY AND INCLUSION

The Human Resources Management Centre has established the “Yincheng
International Recruitment Management System” ({35 4% Bl B HR 2 & 32 5115 )
to regulate recruitment, clarify recruitment authority and responsibilities, and
improve the talent selection mechanism.

FEHBTHE
ANERE L S (R E R IS E I 4
B HRRRTE BRABEROKL
AT EARH -

Management principles

EIERA

contents
RE

In line with development strategy
H 2% R BB AR T i

Matching inputs to outputs
BB HARICAD

Having both ability and virtue but
prioritise virtue

A FE - UEBRE
Impartiality, openness and fairness

NIE > AFEQF

With internal cultivation as the core and
supplemented by external introduction

NEEE AT - IMEBSERE

Principle of avoidance

(ol &t R 2

The Human Resource Management Centre of the Group is responsible for

Rationalised allocation of resources

BRaBiEE

Matching production efficiency and economic benefits

BA AR - R UT G

In line with the Company's corporate culture and values, with good professional ethics
and outstanding professional skills

BATMEEEMEER - EARFHBEER TR B ERKRE

Keep the openness for plan, impartiality in evaluate and fairness in candidate
competition, to ensure the quality of recruited talents

FEtEIAM - FFERAL BEBERATHT  REEATHEE

When vacancies arise, a combination of internal competition for posts and external
recruitment will be implemented, with priority to internal recruitment and selection
EAEERELR - BTTARREMNIINTHBEEAESNBELRN  aBEEEN
BB EINA BT

Incumbent employees are encouraged to recommend outstanding talents to the
Company, under the principle of avoidance. The recommender and the applicant
should have no relevant interest relation (such as relatives, suppliers, etc.). If the
recommended applicant does meet the Company’s employment requirements, it
should be reported to the Group's Human Resources Management Centre in advance.
In principle, the recommender and the applicant cannot work in the same unit or
department.

SEEBRETIMARMBERIAL - BREETERRE - HEARERLEER
HENREER (RS  HERS)  BHEBARERSRRRAARR - BIBA
RAMBEBRANEREEDL - REETEEER — BRIk EPITIE -

AEBANEREETLEAARBEMEZF

preparing and reviewing the annual recruitment plan and recruiting talents
from different recruitment channels. The departments in need will conduct a
survey and analysis with the Human Resource Management Centre to clarify
the responsibilities and qualification requirements for recruitment positions,
and will screen suitable candidates through professional interviews, during
which, only basic criteria such as academic qualifications, industry experience,
job experience will be considered, in regardless of their ethnicity, race, gender,
religious belief, disability and nationality. It also adopts a zero tolerance attitude
towards harassment and discrimination in the workplace.

EHREE - RTIRANHEEREFARIE - B
ANBIRSTEANEREEP LM AED
i - AEERREEUBEMNTRERER e
FRFXAAMEAENERE - HPRE

BEEEXR TELR  HULRITEMER
FE - BTBEERE Bk MR REIE
iR BREERER - RITIERITHRER
BRERTRRBNEE

o

AT R RAA
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In the labour standards, the Group will never allow child labour or forced
labour. We will collect supporting documents after recruiting employees to
check their age and prevent false information from being misled during the
background checks. In addition, labour contracts that comply with the Labour
Contract Law will be signed with employees, stipulating provisions on the
protection of rights and interests, so that forced labour can be avoided. During
the Reporting Period, the Group had not been involved in any non-compliance
incidents related to discrimination, employment of child labour or forced
labour.

The Human Resource Management Centre will handle the termination in
accordance with the contract and set a notice period to ensure a good
handover. In addition, interviews will be arranged and some suggestions will
be adopted to improve operations. Set out below is the turnover rate of the
Group for the Year and the previous year:

FEHTHEAF  AEEBIAFHRET LS
HET - RPISEEMBE TREEEANME
BERNES SHENBRETHIELLRERE
HiRE - 7O @EBTRINTE(EHAR
FINBBAR - FIAMB A RERERD - 7§
AR IR H 8 T - AEBEREMALIRA
EHRER BAETIR®RGSTHERE

-
e

ANBREEPLELIRE R E LI RRE
T ORABAE - R RETE - UhS
NERHEN  SRATNERNELE - K
FREFEREMNRRERET

(% [% TURNOVER RATE BY GENDER TURNOVER RATE BY AGE
||| [I_IX BRI RIE D R KR BREREDHIMKE
% %
50 60
50
40 o 7.0
180 40 0.0
30
30 230 19.0
20
250 322 20
10 10 21.0 203
0 0
2019* 2018 2019* 2018
B Male B Female B Below 30 | 30-50 Il Above 50
EHES M EE 30T 30-50%%, 5055 A £
THE GROUP (EMPLOYEES FROM EAST CHINA)
EEE(ZEREEES)
%
30
20
220 193
10
0
2019* 2018

Number of employees lost +(number of employees lost + number of employees at the
end of the year) x100%
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NURTURING EMPLOYEE WELFARE

Performance appraisals

Employee compensation consists of basic salary, allowances, benefits and
performance bonuses. We also adjust annual compensation based on results
of performance appraisals to motivate employees and reward their
contributions. In addition, employees can summarise their past work and make
future plan via the “Individual Performance Management System” ({{E A 455K
EIEHE)). At the same time, employees can also understand the evaluation
from their colleagues and superiors, which can facilitate the effective
improvement in their performance and processes in the coming year.

Benefits

EXE TR
HUEHA

BTWHMBELATE 20 - B RERE
B - WIS REBERABEFEFTH -

BB TMEEMB IR ERE sk -

BI A3

BUENEREEHE) BB BENTERY
RIERE - FETIEE T HIRER LRYA
CRHE - AR TR R

HE e

=R

Festive gifts, family benefits
FREE  XBRHEE

4

Monthly welfare fee, working meal allowance,
communication subsidy

HEhE - it - AL

Happiness fund, annual physical examination,

annual travel, statutory and paid holidays
RERS - FEBR - FEKF EE
K s g R

Commercial insurance

[EE3:

Communist Party members activities,
union activities

EEBEY I8E%

Share award scheme

Petn 22t 8

Newspaper subscription and birthday gift
HIFIRI - £ HES

Children’s medical business insurance and
Children’s cash gift on Children’s Day

FTREERXR REHTRE

v
.
Y
4
T
4
&
4

=(¢

External training and vocational qualification
training

A B B S AR RS |

Car parking for qualified employees

REERETREEM

BRI A R A A
—E-NEFR
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TALENT DEVELOPMENT SYSTEM ATERBEBR

We identify the needs of employees at different levels, and organise targeted K FIge Rl NRIBLAR AT ZE - 484% 7 ST RIS
training programmes, with an aim to reach the target of employees, raise their ~ IEt 2] - WA LR EMWE THLEZ BIE - 127+
competitiveness to influence positively the development of the Group. mE o THyEEE%RE -

TOP MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT PLAN £Ei& 512

This plan aims to pursue talented leadership driven by excellence, strategic arrangement, and
innovation development.

BREM - BRAR - AIERE - ERET R

MIDDLE MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT PLAN &35 51 2|

Middle Management This plan aims to develop outstanding managers that have a broader horizon,
th B 4 5B recognise the values of other colleagues and promote them, and are capable of
S achieving self-worth.

REE - RBMA - RILEH - AR KR

FRONTLINE MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT PLAN gt 2]

Frontline Management This plan aims to develop field specialists that focuses on performance
— ey efficiency, as well asin-depth understanding of industry expertise.

TEMEE  MEER  BE-E KABEHER

TRAINEE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 232

Management Trainees This plan provides induction training to assist new recruits in
sEoF becoming part of the business family with required skills to
complete their corporate role.

BIZRM - BALE  RELTF  TRAGER

As a result of these plans, we noticed that our annual training programmes 8 R &It - RAEEZIFEOEITIEFIR
were conducive to improving customer satisfaction and project performance. P MEERIEREENRA -
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Annual training programme & £ 1% | 5+ 2l

New employees may deepen their understanding of the background
and policies of the Group by accessing induction manuals, internal
brochures, and other channels. Each new employee will be
accompanied by an induction coach who guides and advises such
new employee on the work procedures, and assist such new
employee to tap into his/her potential within the shortest period of
time.

METIREBABTMEARERFRENREEESSEHR
REIENTHE SHETHRE—([EARBSIZA 5| EAE
REFESIMIIETENES - BB TAESEREABIENR
Eo

Our 2019 Management Trainee Project covered 8 days of military
training, 4 days with 15 course training, 6 introductory videos of
corporate values, and 20-kilometre walk to revisit the history of the
Group which assisted our management trainee in becoming part of
the company, as well as understanding our industry and
professionalism.

2019EEHEHRBELREI - 4R 15FIREHF - 6EAREX
R MBM0 N EEERMKES  HNEBERADRE
GED £

Capitalising on the premier faculty resources at Nanjing University
Business School, the Group established the one-year Nanjing
University miniEMBA programme for our middle and senior
management cadres, which was aimed at improving their leadership.
SEKTRARAZHERNESNE  RTEEERRITHR
AHEFEEAmINEMBARRIE © B ERSIRTHFIRE S HIK
o

To accommodate the total talent requirements for our projects, we
established partnership with an external consulting agency to carry
out a one-year project manager echelon development programme
with ten terms of courses, which is aimed at developing project
talents and assisting rapid business expansion of the Group.
REZRRHBERBATHNFR - BINERARBEEIEERT
BRABKIEEE  BERM I F - HKARI0OHRIE B4
BRHE AT RN EEEBRRER

RAERERARAT
—s-nreg 11D
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During the year, the Group completed 49 special training programmes with ~ ANEBERARNFE LK 7T 49THHIEE -

over 3,000 attendees for more than 20,000 hours.

PERCENTAGE OF EMPLOYEES TRAINED BY GENDER
WWZS N T
%

100

80

60

784 65.0
40

20

Male Female

BtEE ZItES

™\ AVERAGE TRAINING HOURS COMPLETED PER
%> & )] EMPLOYEE BY GENDER

fm@ BERETRZIN TR

A% 3,000 AR EL - B38 20,000 FZREF o

PERCENTAGE OF EMPLOYEES TRAINED BY
5o EMPLOYEE CATEGORY

RERENEINZIEET DL
%
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w

Junior Intermediate Senior
MEET management management

RAREEE BRELE

\'/ AVERAGE TRAINING HOURS COMPLETED PER
(O~ 7)) EMPLOYEE BY EMPLOYEE CATEGORY

(7 SERBERBIHTEIRH

— ZMRIE D — RERERES
Hour Hour
/B AN
35 35
28 28
21 21
255 20.5
14 14
183
7 7
0 0 }
Male Female Junior Intermediate Senior
BiHES LHES TEET management management

PROMOTION OF HEALTH AND SAFETY

hARERE BRERE

REREZZ

We provide regular education and training sessions dedicated to know-how {9 7F BRI B 45 Eh & & AT A A0 ahk - B SERRELA
about labour safety and hygienic practises, occupational skills, and laws and [ 2 Eh{REM B AR A2 E NEEH

information related to labour protection.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any case involving ~ AREERFFEARI R AR LI THEZ - B

work-related death, but reported 187.00 lost days due to work-related injuries,

HIBK 18700 KA THBEAMBE - ¥k EF

representing a decrease of 19.74% as compared to last year. The relevant  E 4> 719.74% ° fHEE P s AN a0 $R R 3 &K

department had a detailed record of the incidents, the approaches to resolve

B BRIETENERITER - BFIH A SR

such incidents, and remedy plans. We paid particular attention to all of these  FIf8)T » @IZEERFETIEET M THH
incidents by carrying out work-related injury assessment according to the R - B R &@sR - WAL 7T UA T EHE
established procedures to identify the work-related injury and arrange the  Jif :

social insurance, the countermeasures of which are summarised as follows:

11 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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continue to emphasise safety education and raise the protection
awareness among our employees;

eliminate the safety hazards by conducting procedural inspections over
the sales office and project sites;

reduce evening shift outdoor work; and

reduce significantly sports activities during our employee events, and
redouble the efforts to carry out education activities and promotions as
to sports safety

Construction site safety

The crucial elements in the construction industry are to safeguard the safety of
construction workers at the worksites. In compliance with various laws and
regulations, including the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases, Work Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Regulations on Environmental Protection of Construction
Projects, Regulations on the Administration of Work Safety of Construction
Projects, Regulations on the Safety Technical Operation of Construction
Workers and Regulation on the Reporting, Investigation and Handling of Work
Safety Accidents, we formulate the “Project Safety Management Policy” (I8 B
%2 X A E I | £ ), which contains pictures and texts that provide clear
instructions for targeted audiences. All construction workers shall have a
thorough understanding of various systems and attend safety training sessions
before commencing their construction work. In case of any violation, they are
subject to penalties, and rectification will be carried out for improvement
purposes.

The Group also identifies common worksite accidents, and the relevant
personnel shall take timely actions to minimise the impacts in accordance with
the “Emergency Rescue Plan for Production Safety Accidents at Sites” ({ b L

RS ReEEFHRRESMRER)).

Office health and safety

Yincheng International Labour Union has recently arranged a health checkup
for eligible employees, and provided detailed reminders to ensure a successful
health checkup.

The Group also pays attention to the labour safety and health of female
employees, and is committed to providing support and address the special
difficulties in accordance with the Special Provisions on Labour Protection of
Female Workers promulgated by the State Council. These provisions prescribe
a list of issues facing female employees and specific arrangements. For any
issues raised by our female employees, the Group will take commensurate
measures to supervise and manage the labour protection of our female
employees.

MERETZE2HE R#EER

EEE HERSERUERERE B
Bz2RE
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OUR SOCIETY

The Group performs corporate social responsibility to make contribution and
give back to society. During the Year, the Company donated a total of RMB3.65
million and 1,312 employees and customers participated together, benefiting
2,280,264 customers and community members. We organised more public
welfare activities than last year, and achieved the goals set last year.

CARE FOR CHILDREN

During the Reporting Period, the Group allocated RMB3 million to fund the
“Care for Children” surgical treatment project for children with congenital heart
diseases in orphan and poor family, the “Care for Angel” medical assistance
project for children with blood diseases and tumour in orphan and poor family
and the “Care for Morningstar” medical assistance project for children with
multiple diseases in orphan and poor family under the Aiyou Charity
Foundation ( & {6 & & 2 € & ). As of the end of 2019, a total of 1,142
children with congenital heart disease, 13 children with blood diseases and 60
children with birth defects and premature babies in orphan and poor family
have been given assistance.

CHERRY BLOSSOM RUNNING

The Cherry Blossom running in spring is a great opportunity for Yincheng
International to engage with property owners and fans, and is also one of the
brand activities. The event attracted about 1,500 people to participate. The
Group will donate RMB100 on behalf of each participant in the Cherry Blossom
Running, and the proceeds from the ticket collection will be donated to the
Aiyou Charity Foundation to help children with congenital heart disease in
orphan and poor family to recover health.
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“1 YUAN PLAN” YINCHENG COMPANY’S
ANNIVERSARY DAY EVENT

This year we once again launched the 1 Yuan Plan on our Company’s
anniversary day, calling on each member of Yincheng to give out at least 1
yuan a year to help children in need. At present, the raised funds have been
used to establish two Yincheng Group spring bud classes, provide aids to 83
children in 2 school years and 41 children in 6 school years and donate 46
school uniforms.

vl 2 oL w5

AIYOU & YINCHENG CHILDREN COTTAGE

We donated RMB450,000 and joined hands with the Aiyou Charity Foundation
to support the establishment of Aiyou & Yincheng Children Cottage in two
children’s hospitals in Nanjing and Suzhou, providing psychological comfort
services for children in hospital. In 2019, a total of approximately 215 themed
activities were carried out, serving about 1,269 children in hospital and
bringing strength and hope to children in the warm cottage. The staff
volunteers went to the Hexi Branch of Nanjing Children’s Hospital near the
Children’s Day to bring a festive surprise to the children in hospital through
handcrafting with children, giving them small gifts and providing volunteering
services for comfort treatment.

[1tEr 8 REAERED

SEERMBREREBRE THE - 58
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99 PUBLIC WELFARE DAY

During the 99 Public Welfare Day, if everyone donates not less than RMBT,
Yincheng Group will make 3-6 times of donation to enable each donation to
deliver greater value. A lot of property owners, our employees, and non-profit
parties in the society have participated in online donations and offline running
at the Charity Festival organised in the properties of Yincheng to raise funds for
the “Care for Children” project. In addition, the Group cooperated with the
Aiyou Charity Foundation and encouraged Yincheng's employees and property
owners to participate in the Tencent platform to launch the Yincheng Aixinzi
(Z0F) programme for the “Care for Children” project.

YINHUOCHONG CHARITY PERFORMANCE
(SRBBOEBIE)

The Yinhuochong Charity Performance was successfully held in Nanjing and
Wuxi with each ticket costing RMB18.1, which means “One Helps One”. It
attracted nearly 2,000 property owners, and the raised funds were donated to
the Aiyou Charity Foundation to help the children with congenital heart
disease in organ and poor family to regain health.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

¢ e

Eﬁﬂ}

BB A % s
i 27 5k 1 4F ST &
Lo TR N
DI NG

The "Corporate Environmental Policies” ({ 1& 3£ Z= 3% I 28 )) implemented by
the Group this Year could continuously avoid the phenomenon of
extravagance and waste. In order to make contribution to the environmental
protection and sustainable development, the following related measures were
adopted:

Promote the corporate culture of diligence, thrift and hard work at the
Company’s annual meeting, and encouraging employees to spend
reasonably and avoid waste;

Advocate the concept of green office by adopting measures such as
water and electricity usage and printing through card, waste paper
recycling, improving business process systems and encouraging
paperless office;

Reduce unnecessary travel and meetings, and encouraging means of
video or telephone conference;

Enhance the efficiency of asset use, improve the asset registration ledger,
and promote internal allocation and use to avoid repeated purchases
and idle assets;

Encourage employees to take public transportation to reduce vehicle
pollution emissions;

Coordinate with property service companies to make intensive use of
air-conditioning, electricity and water resources in office buildings.
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CARBON EMISSION MANAGEMENT

The Group recognises that environmental factors can have a long-term impact
on operations. After the listing, we have transparently disclosed and monitored
the performance of carbon emissions and other environmental KPIs to
stakeholders through the ESG report. In the future, we will set goals for most of
the quantitative data to build our Company as an environmentally friendly
enterprise.

We continued to conduct the GHG emission audit for Nanjing offices (including
the headquarters, Nanjing Hongquan, Nanjing Hongyou, Nanjing Yinguang
and Nanjing Yinzhuo) and Wuxi office (namely Wuxi Century Garden) according
to the reporting principles of consistence and quantitativeness. The audit is
based on the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol’ ({ B E R B R B & T 2 )
developed by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development and the ISO14064-1 set by the International
Standards Organisation. The GHG emissions generated during the Reporting
Period are summarised as follows:

i HE R E

AEBRBREAZAZERMNEE KL
MR AE B & 3B BA b (A1 45 1 35 15 BB S BRI Bk
PEM R B IRIEKPISEIRIR » KK - BFIER
ABOELEBBERIBF TESERERD
R

BAER—BRERECNERRA - EEIZE
AERWFEMEYM R BESER I EEESH
BROREREBEERTE) KBRS ELA
BETERIISO14064-1 * BAKBENERNPAE
(BRREEEGI  mmsLE Bl B
RE BRIRE) MESHAR(EBHLT
B)ETAEREHEMES  BEREEHNM
ZoT

GHG Emissions Performance Unit 2019 2018

BERBHMRRR By 2019 FF 2018

GHG Emissions

BERBHHRE

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of CO, equivalent (CO,e)

HERERBYER(HBE) NS EE 16.4 180

Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes COe

B EREEH R (SBE2) N — S REE 450.2 401.0

Other Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3) Tonnes COe

Hih R =ERaE R (&BE?3) RPE—E(cRE S 105.1 230

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1,2 & 3) Tonnes COe

BERBEHINEE (8E1283) RPE—E(cRE S 571.7 4420

GHG Emissions Intensity

BERBEREE

Per square metre of floor area (Scope 1,2 & 3) Tonnes CO e/m’

FEHRERE(HBE1283) RS kg E,FHK 0.2 02

Scope 1: The direct GHG emissions generated from sources owned and controlled by the gE1: AREALREHNTRMELANEELER
Company. BB -

Scope 2:  GHG emissions indirectly generated by electricity generation, heating and cooling ~ #3[E 2 : % & « FEFR A E AT ANEENE S
or steam purchased by the Company. Fridi% S| AR = REBHEAR ©

Scope 3:  Emissions include GHG emissions indirectly generated by sources that are not  #3[E 3 : B EIEWIER AR Ak BT - (A8
owned or directly controlled by the Company but are related to the Company’s N EBEEEO R RFIEEEANLRES
business activities. REEHERN -

1 2 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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The GHG emissions could be categorised into three scopes: scope 1,
combustion of fuels in vehicle sources (direct GHG emissions); scope 2, the
consumption of electricity during the operations (indirect GHG emissions); and
scope 3, flight emissions during employees’ overseas business trips, water
consumption, wastewater discharge, waste disposal and paper consumption
(other indirect GHG emissions). The CO e of emissions include carbon dioxide
(CO,), methane (CH,), nitrous oxide (N,O), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs),
perfluorocarbons (PFCs) and Sulphur hexafluoride (SFs). Due to the additional
calculation of wastewater discharge included this Year, and the increase in
flight emissions, waste disposal and paper consumption, the emissions in
scope 3 increase during the Year.

Although the GHG emission intensity was similar to that of the previous year,
we have noticed that consumption indicators have an upward trend. The
Group understands that this is inevitable when taking into account business
development and will closely monitor changes. We intend to set targets for
certain KPIs and implement effective and feasible measures, which is expected
to improve performance in the coming year.

Flight emissions

Flight emissions is the main source of scope 3 GHG emissions. As set out in the
“Notice on the Works related to Cost Control and Efficiency Improvement” ({
R REEERWEB L ER B A ), we are committed to reducing
unnecessary business trips with strict approval procedures, using information
tools to communicate and making inevitable business travel by direct flight. In
addition, in order to reasonably reduce the frequency of travelling to attend
meetings in person, video or telephone conferences will be used for exchange
meetings, theory-discussing and study meetings.

Vehicle emissions

For convenience, the Group provides official vehicles for employees to travel,
and it also advocates carpooling to its destination. Due to the increase in the
number of projects and business, our employees make more outbound
business travels. In addition, there are long-distance projects in Lishui, Luhe,
Ma'anshan and other cities around Nanjing. The total fuel consumption
increased by 25.0% over the previous year. We added types and data of vehicle
emissions for disclosure purposes:
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Among them, the Nanjing office (including the headquarters of the group,
Nanjing Hongquan, Nanjing Hongyou, Nanjing Yinguang, and Nanjing
Yinzhuo) this year updated and added the travel mileage for disclosure during
the year, and there was a total of 130,000.0 kilometres. In the future, we will
implement stricter measures to monitor the relevant indicators and focus on
the proper use and maintenance of vehicles to reduce unnecessary emissions.

GREEN PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS

We focus our investment resources on green projects, and recognise the
importance of green energy-saving indicators and requirements in all stages of
product research and development, design, construction and after-sales, to
enhance the highlights and energy-saving performance of green buildings.
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Case Study — Nanjing Yincheng Huihu Yaju Yihu Garden Building 1-11, Huihu Yaju Huiya Garden Building 1-9 and
Huihu Yaju Huisong Garden Building 1-8
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The three projects of the Group have obtained two-star green building
certification, and have adopted the following green building designs to fully
highlight our position in the industry:

Greening

A green space rate of over 30.0%
Tree plantation in greenland and settlements

Energy conservation and use of energy

Meeting 65% of building energy efficiency requirements in accordance
with “Jiangsu Green standard for Green Building” DGJ32/J 173-2014

Built-in movable shades in the east and west

The daylighting coefficient is above 2.2% in bedrooms, kitchens, studies
and living rooms. The overall daylighting coefficient of each functional
room can meet the specifications.

Design illumination value (Lx) and lighting power density (W/m?) for
different room types

Energy-efficient lighting

Energy-saving delay switch control

Install water-saving appliances with a water efficiency rating of 3 or
higher

Renewable Energy

Use solar water heating system to provide domestic hot water for use
and save natural gas costs
Increase the proportion of renewable energy applications

Unconventional water use

Rainwater recycling technology: Rainwater collection is mixed collection.
Rainwater from the roofs, roads, and green plantation is transported to
the rainwater reservoir through the rainwater pipeline. After treatment,
the water is used for green irrigation and washing roads

Building materials

Ready-mixed concrete

Ready-mixed mortar

Calculate the utilisation percentage of different high-strength steels and
recyclable materials for different projects
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Indoor quality

The indoor noise control is below the specification requirements
Optimal design of indoor natural ventilation

Optimised design of natural daylighting

Optimised design of indoor temperature and humidity environment

Green construction

In accordance with the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Environmental Impact Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Air Pollution, and the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, we prepare
the “Green Construction Plan” ({ #% €& 3 T 73 & )) for each project upon
receiving the construction permit, and strictly proceed with the construction
work.

We evaluate the worksite parameters prior to construction, and install sufficient
equipment in suitable locations to enhance ventilation and waste discharge
efficiency. Regular measurements of air, noise, light, and water pollution must
be carried out in strict accordance with environmental quality standard
GB3095-2012, GB12524 Construction Site Noise Measurement Methods,
Comprehensive Sewage Emission Standard, and other regulations so as to
ensure all phases are in compliance with the emission standards. We also
adopt various control measures, arrange daily or irregular inspection, and
establish leading taskforces and redouble the efforts to carry out promotion,
training, and education activities to effectively achieve the five 100%
environmental indicators.
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ACHIEVEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL TARGETS

During the Reporting Period, we actively participated activities that are
conducive to environmental protection, including plantation in Wuxi and
Suzhou. Besides tremendous contributions made to urban afforestation and
private settlements, we proactively explored various channels to promote
environmental awareness among our employees.

Power consumption
Air-conditioning system

Install air-conditioners in locations that are free from direct sunlight

Clean filters/coil-based ventilators on a regular basis

Attach sealants to doors and windows to prevent the leakage of
conditioned air

Install water-cooled air conditioners

Allow employees not to wear ties and suits during summer

Allow employees to wear casual clothes on Friday if there is no business
meeting with clients
Lighting system

Turn off lights, projectors, and other equipment at the meeting room
when the meeting is over

Turn off the power supply of the sockets after work at night timely

Only keep the light on at the area where the employees are working
overtime

Keep the lighting devices and lamps clean, and improve the energy
efficiency

Separate the office into different lighting areas with separate lighting
switches for different lighting areas

Install motion sensors to areas that do not require frequent lighting
Reduce the lamps in areas that exceed the brightness requirement

Install energy-efficient lamps (such as T5 fluorescent lamps and LEDs)
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Electronic equipment and appliances

Set the standby/sleep mode for computers when idle

Turn off electronic devices completely at non-work hours

Unplug the thermal kettles and microwaves, and particularly disconnect
the power supply in offices during break days and holidays

Purchase electronic devices labelled with energy efficiency
As the Group reported an increase in projects and sales during the Year, the
number of meetings were increased and employees increased their overtime
hours. Therefore, the total electricity consumption for the Year amounted to
640,000.0 kWh with an intensity of 219.2 kWh per square metres, representing
an increase of 12.3% as compared to 195.2 kWh per square metres last year. We

recorded the power metres readings each month to monitor power
consumption and carried out measures for improvement.

Water consumption
We do not have any problem with accessing water sources, but water-saving
practises are adopted in the office areas:

Turn off faucets tightly

Attach water-saving labels in restrooms as friendly reminders

Repair water faucets immediately if leakage

Reduce water pressure to a minimum level required for consumption

Inspect regularly the water metre readings and any sign of hidden
leakage

Install water-saving faucets and urinals
Install infrared-sensing faucets and urinals
Water plants with rainwater
During the Year, the Group had a total water consumption of 2,300.0 cubic

metres with a water intensity of 0.8 cubic metres per square metre, which
remains the same as the intensity last year.
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Paper

Yincheng International promotes the paperless practise in offices by trying to
deliver documents and materials in an electronic manner; using double-sided
printing; and recycling single-sided prints for drafting non-official documents.
Internal documents required for printing are printed in smaller fonts at
narrower line gaps, and the printer is set by default as double-sided printing
and ink-saving mode. We attach reminders in noticeable areas nearby
photocopy machines to remind our employees of pursuing paperless practises
in offices. In addition, we establish a recycle station in the office so as to collect
and recycle paper-based documents, including waste paper, posters, mails,
and envelopes.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed a total 331.0 reams of
paper, which is comprised of 115.0 reams of A3 paper and 216.0 reams of A4
paper, and each employee consumed 0.9 ream, representing an increase of
28.60% in intensity as compared to last year. The increase in paper
consumption was attributable to commensurate increase in documents and
materials due to increase in our projects and sales. To deliver the best
presentation to prospective customers, our employees will print out
documents. In addition, a portion of contracts are printed out and archived for
security reasons.

Waste
We implement the following measures to reduce generation of waste and
increase recyclable items:

Apply for office supplies as needed;

Use replaceable pen refills to avoid waste of the entire pens;

Bring self-owned cups to minimise use of paper cups;
Reuse envelopes and document jackets;

Use waste recycle bins or other suitable containers to recycle waste
paper, metals, and plastic objects;

Rationally order beverage and food for entertaining customers, and
pursue the Operation Empty Plate to reduce kitchen waste;

Apply for a reasonable amount of entertainment gifts; and

Minimise product packaging
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During the Year, the Group generated 18,400.0 kilogrammes of non-hazardous
waste with each employee generating 47.9 kilogrammes. Due to an increase in
paper consumption, the intensity of non-hazardous waste increased by 19.2%
as compared to that last year. For this year, we did not generate any hazardous
waste, and all of the used ink cartridges are recycled by our consumable
suppliers for processing. Toner cartridges will be reused after being cleaned,
and used batteries will be deposited to the designated recycle box to minimise
environmental damage due to treatment of hazardous waste.

1 30 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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APPENDIX I: SUSTAINABILITY DATA

B 5 —

STATEMENTS
Unit
By
Environmental’ REBEE"
The fuel consumption from HERAEAE
mobile sources
Gasoline i tonnes A ME
GHG emissions BERE

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)

Other Indirect GHG emissions
(Scope 3)
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1,2 & 3)

Per square metre of floor area
(Scope 1,2 &3)

Non-hazardous waste

Total non-hazardous waste

Intensity of the non-hazardous
waste

Paper

Paper consumption

Intensity of paper consumption

Energy Consumption

Total electricity consumption

Electricity consumption intensity
(per square metre of floor area)

Water consumption

Total water consumption

Water consumption intensity
(per square metre of floor area)

N

HRREREBHR(HLE)

U\

H

AR = REH M (FBE2)

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%{/m:ﬁ EEFBSI
(#[E3)

BERRBRAE
(8E1,2&3)

BEHAERERE
(83E1,2&3)

BEBEZEY
BEREVRE
BEREYAE

R
AR
LR R
LR
BHEER
HERRE
(T KER)
KR R
Bk E
KRR
(I KER)

The disclosure of the environmental KPIs include Nanjing offices (including the !
headquarters, Nanjing Hongquan, Nanjing Hongyou, Nanjing Yinguang and Nanjing

Yinzhuo) and Wuxi office (Wuxi Century Garden)

tonnes CO2e
AE—A R E =
tonnes CO2e
N
tonnes CO2e
A —fbiE S
tonnes CO2e
N [ ﬁﬂﬁ RE =
tonnes CO2e/m?
A —fbiE S
K

HEIHJ

kg T2
tonnes/staff AMW8,~
BT

reams <
reams/staff &/ 8 T

kWh F FLBF
kwh/m? F FLBS
K

m? 3 7oK
mé/m2 35K
T3 K

2019

2019 F

4.5

16.4

450.2

105.1

571.7

18,400.0
47.9

331.0
0.9
640,000.0

219.2

2,300.0
0.8

EHRAE (EHELTER)

AHESRERERE

2018
2018 4F

36
18.0
401.0
23.0
442.0

0.2

16,500.0
40.2

302.0
0.7
570,000.0

195.2

2,300.0
0.8

REBEKPSEREREERANAZ(REEEA
FRohE - Bmshh - MRIEE MRERE) R
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2019
2019 &

927
387
540

804
101
22

439
475
13

22.0*
25.0*
18.0%

21.0*
23.0*
7.0*

0.0

187.0

65.0
78.4

753

100.0

93.0

2 HEKPIsHERIEREBMEBE

Unit
By
Social? HEEE?
Total workforce BEAH
Total workforce BEBH no. of people A
Female MR BB no. of people AKX
Male FEMEEBH no. of people AZX
Direct workforce by employeetype EHIZEEAMWES
(B ERED)

Junior PRET no. of people AZX
Intermediate management AR EIRE no. of people A£X
Senior management EARERE no. of people A £X
Direct workforce by age group HEEEANES

and gender (RERARRMERE D)
Below 30 30T no. of people A£X
30-50 30-50 5%, no. of people A £X
Above 50 505 A E no. of people AZX
Employee turnover rate BERKLZE
Overall turnover rate MEREEBHY %
Overall male turnover rate SMmKIEERE %
Overall female turnover rate MR R B AR %
Overall employee turnover rate EERKAH (RFERER)

by age group
Below 30 30BRIAT %
30-50 30-50 5% %
Above 50 505% A %
Occupational health and Safety BERENZE
Number of work-related fatalities TEHETHER

and injuries
Number of work-related injuries SIEEZ no. of people A£X
Lost days due to work injury ATEEARTIEBRE lost days &
Percentage of employees trained EMRESNZIEE

by gender Aot
Female ZIEES %
Male SHEES %
Percentage of employees trained EERERHNEINZIIEE

by employee category Aot
Junior TRMET %
Intermediate management RARERE %
Senior management S EIRE %
2 The disclosure of social KPIs include the data from the Group
* Number of employees lost +(number of employees lost + number of employees at the

end of the year) x100%
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2018

2018 4F

836
513
323

723
90
23

360
464
12

193
322
1.1

20.3
19.0
0.0

0.0
233.0

59.1
69.0

60.7
744
87.0

* mEEEAB -~ (RKEEAB+ FREEAR

X 100%
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Unit 2019 2018
B 2019 F 20184F
Average training hours completed SEZEEXTHKZIINFEY
per employee by gender REE — R MR B2
Female ZMEER hours /JNE 18.3 64.1
Male SHEE hours /JNE 25.5 59.2
Average training hours completed #&ZEEXTHZINFEIFH
per employee by employee — REREERE S
category
Average training hours completed per FEIHMETEHEINEE hours /)N
junior staff 20.5 426
Average training hours completed per ~ BEFHRE TFHFIEFE hours )\
intermediate management member 33.3 47.0
Average training hours completed per ~ BE®HFE TFHEFIIREFE hours )Nk
senior management member 16.8 33.7

REERERARA
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APPENDIX I1: CONTENT INDEX OF HONG KONG
STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE

s — : BEBCRE - HERE

HE ) RE RS

Indicator Related Chapter
EEAE ABES
A. Environmental
RIRER
A1:Emissions General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with | OUR ENVIRONMENT
B Disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | F fIH)3R 15
—MREE impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRERIORERBIM - MK ETHEHET -
*ﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ*%%ﬁ’]?i%ﬁ@ @B M(b)E
STHBITABEARTZENRBEERROIEER -
Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. | Carbon Emission Management
PR AR BE A K iRHERE IR
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, | Carbon Emission Management
where appropriate, intensity. Appendix I: Sustainability Data
BERABBHENERTE - Statements
MREERUE TR
figk— - IREERBIERE
A13 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Achievement of Environmental
appropriate, intensity. Targets
FEARERENEERTE - BEIRRE T
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, | Achievement of Environmental
where appropriate, intensity. Targets
FIEAREREVEEREE - Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statements
ERERAE
Mige—  AIREEREBHE
A15 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and | Carbon Emission Management
results achieved. TRBERE 12
OB E B 2 B HE b S PTG AR ©
A16 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous | Achievement of Environmental
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results | Targets
achieved. BRIRREE
HAREAENEZREEYN L  HEELE
BT R PERR -
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Indicator Related Chapter
EERE il k3
A2:Use of Resources | General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including | Achievement of Environmental
EREA Disclosure energy, water and other raw materials. Targets
— R BRERER(BRERR - KEEMRME) WK | BRARRE R
& o
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. | Achievement of Environmental
electricity, gas or oil) in total and intensity. Targets
REAESNERE R SKEEZER(IE - {/30l) | Appendix I: Sustainability Data
BEENEE - Statements
BrRREE T
figh— : AIHERRBIBERHE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Achievement of Environmental
BEKERTE - Targets
Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statements
BRREBR
Mige—  AIREEREBHE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and | Achievement of Environmental
results achieved. Targets
B R0 B a5 8 R FTISACR © BARREF
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing | Achievement of Environmental
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives | Targets
and results achieved. BRIRREE
SR ERGE A R AT A R R RE - LA RGRFA K
Wanet Bl RPTISAR o
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in|Not applicable (our Group's
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit|business does not involve
produced. packaging materials)
BN mATABEMBNEERBEERMUGERE - | TNEA  TEEBEBTIRE
Yk
A3: The Environment | General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on | Green Project Highlights
and Natural Disclosure the environment and natural resources. & /K377 A ¥ | 4k 28 B = 2h
Resources —MRHEE RERRAREREKNERNTZERNPR
RERRRER A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on | Green Project Highlights

the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
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Indicator

EEAR

Social

HEER

Related Chapter
HEAEE

B1: Employment General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with | OUR EMPLOYEES
EE Disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | Equality and Inclusion
—MRHEE impact on the issuer relating to compensation and | Nurturing Employee Welfare
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, | B89 8 T
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-| FEH R TE
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare. BT B Tigr
BB RE - BEREA - TIERE RE -
TE#E - 2ot REBERUAREMAESRER
B @BER M) BTHETABERTENN
BERERROINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age | OUR EMPLOYEES
group and geographical region. Appendix |: Sustainability Data
IR EEEL - FRARNRMESIDMES | Statements
B - BAWEL
figk— - AIEERBIERHE
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and | Equality and Inclusion
geographical region. Appendix |: Sustainability Data
TR - FERARRMEEDHEERKLE | Statements
FEHARMIE
figh— : AIHERRBIBERHE
B2: Health and Safety | General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with | Promotion of Health and Safety
BREHEZZ Disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | {REBEZ &
—MREE impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
ERRULZ2TIERERREREEHEBENR
R QB Rb)BTFTHETATERZEN
HEER LRI ER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Promotion of Health and Safety
ETEBEMITTHAZSRILE - Appendix I: Sustainability Data
Statements
RERRLZ T
Mgk — - IEERBIERE
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Promotion of Health and Safety
ATEERTIERS - Appendix |: Sustainability Data
Statements
RERERZ S
fige— : AIHERRBIERE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures | Promotion of Health and Safety
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. | fR#EZFE L2
R PR AN BB R R R B2 246 3 - DA R ABRAER
TRERAE -
1 3 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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Indicator Related Chapter
EERE il k3
B3: Development General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills | Talent Development System
and Training Disclosure for discharging duties at work. Description of training | A7 2R 82 X
BRRIEI —MRHEE activities.
BRI EERITLIERE M AE R HIBUR -
B E S -

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and | Talent Development System
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle | Appendix I: Sustainability Data
management). Statements
RUERIREEER (R ERRE PRERES) | ATBREER
EoNXIMEEAD ° figh— : AIHERRBIBERHE

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee | Talent Development System
by gender and employee category. Appendix |: Sustainability Data
RIUERREERMNE D - BREETKZINT | Statements
IR EL AT ERER

Mige—  AIREEREBHE
B4: Labour General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with | Equality and Inclusion
Standards Disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | ‘F 23 g1 T{E
S IR —MRHEE impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
BRAEZE T SoaHI5 TR : () BUR : R (b)&<F
HETABERAZENEREELBROIHER

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment | Equality and Inclusion
practises to avoid child and forced labour. FEHEFITE
st RIS E DI AR 2 8 T Moa b5 T -

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practises | Not applicable (our Group did
when discovered. not identify any violation during
R IR B RIERNRER G BIEAPERERE T | the year)

5o NNEA  AEERAFEIR
BERBERBR
B5: Supply Chain General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of | Supplier Management
Management Disclosure the supply chain. e B e
R E R — MR ERMHEENRE R ERBREBUR

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supplier Management
BB D HEREE - HEmEE

B5.2 Description of practises relating to engaging suppliers, | Supplier Management
number of suppliers where the practises are being | 1 &% & 1%

implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

AR HEEENED - mERITEBED
BHERBE - URABERNMITRERTE -
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Indicator Related Chapter

EERE HEAEE

B6: Product General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with | Strict Quality Control
Responsibility | Disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | Ex 1§ 1= $I& &
EmEE —MRHEE impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,

advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
EE@FE?%T%E%%DH&%%W@J%&%?% CEE ’f%
FZERMEEEARBERAER - @BE : kb
THBEITABEATZENMN ?ﬁi@&%ﬁﬂﬂ’]ﬁﬂ

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to | Strict Quality Control
recalls for safety and health reasons. BURIEHIE £
BEEXDEXREMERPELEEEFEIEHMMA
BB E Dt ©

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints | Quality Customer Service
received and how they are dealt with. REEEER
EEMNEmM N RGO RFEE A REE X -

B6.3 Description of practises relating to observing and | Improving Information Security
protecting intellectual property rights. = BARE
i B o T AR PR R E R R A V1B D o

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall | Strict Quality Control
procedures BARIEHIE 2
it E e E 8RR EmEIIZR o

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Improving Information Security

policies, how they are implemented and monitored. 1 | }2 FH15 BARE

OB EEERRERABERE - URBEERTR

BERE o
B7: Anti-corruption |General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with | Business Integrity
RES Disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | T i (b3
— M impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud

and money laundering.

BERADIILERES - 1R - HRFRORBER () BUEK
K2 (o) 8 T 131 /\*ﬁékwaﬂﬁﬁffﬁiéﬁﬁﬂ
EE R} o

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt | Business Integrity
practises brought against the issuer or its employees | ¥T {5 > %
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

B/\EiﬁﬁﬁW;T?*‘TT}\_JZEEE\TEﬁIEﬁ\nE’JE
VSR RASRIT YRR B K AR AR S

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-|Business Integrity
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and | T3 (%
monitored.

R By 1E b MR mER - ARMEERTRER
JE

1 3 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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Indicator

ERRR

B8: Community
Investment

HERE

Related Chapter

HEAEE
General Policies on community engagement to understand the | OUR SOCIETY
Disclosure needs of communities where the issuer operates and to | F {fIRy4L &
—MRHEE ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRI R ER T L EMEM R T EMRER
HEBKESGEBLEMRABOR
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,|OUR SOCIETY
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, | FFIE T &
sport).
HIER®E(WHE  RREE LTHEK &
Xt - 85F) -
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus | OUR SOCIETY
area. 24 (nlEokan-

EEIREMBHENR

PR AR RAER AR
—E-NEER
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To the shareholders of Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yincheng
International Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 147 to 306, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended 31 December 2019, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("lASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

3 7 A% 8 i e

BEREEXEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERBERP NN EERARERSE

Revenue recognition from property development projects (“PDP”)

FEERZER ([FHERZFER )2 Km R

Most of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019 was derived from PDP.

BEEEEZE 2019512 A31 BIEFEH RIS Wam 2k B R
b EREIEE -

Revenue from PDP is recognised when all of the following
criteria have been met:
EEEENATHEREEERERBREMERZEIER
B

(i) thesale and purchase agreement has been signed;
ERFERE G

(i) the related deposit has been received and the
arrangements for the settlement of the remaining
proceeds have been confirmed; and
EWEIEBAEE BEEERRATEHIEANGEN T
I

(i) the property has been handed over to the buyer, as
stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement.

MEERBEEHHROEXINTES ©

We identified the recognition of revenue for PDP as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the Group and because
small errors in recognition of revenue, in aggregate, for each
property development project could have a material impact on
the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2019.
EEEFMERZERBNBEERISEREZEE
RARENEMEBEENKREE SXENEZEN UK
BEFERMEER HERRER DA/ N ERELR
RATREE BEEHEZ2019F12A31 BIEFERRFIE
HEEATE -

The accounting policies and disclosures of the revenue
recognition are included in notes 2.4 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BN GEERN SRR I EBE N R A M RERN 24
K5 e

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue for PDP
included the following:

EEMEHEREERNBAERANETREFEENTERF

@)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

evaluating the design, implementation of operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the recording of
revenue for PDP;

AT B 55 3 A 7 350 B B Uk R RE R ARIRA &Y BA B2 A BB 4R
B RET BT AL

inspecting the terms of the standard sale and purchase

agreements for the sale of PDP to assess the Group's revenue

recognition policies for the sale of PDP, with reference to the

requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

BE BEEEHEFUMERNZEENEEESHHG

o LARHE EEEAHHEFRMEREIEE KRS
RBEREENERITIENEL

inspecting, on a sample basis, the sales of PDP recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2019, sale and purchase
agreements and the documents which indicated that the
properties were physically possessed or the legal titles of the
properties were obtained by the buyers and assessing
whether the related revenue had been recognised in
accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition
accounting policies;

HEE2019F 12 A3 BILFEEANFSHENZIER
HE  MEREEEWALAIAZANEEERERE
THBEXETCEBYREEMBRENMT - AN
ERAREESECRR EXENREBERASTEE
FER.

inspecting, on a sample basis, the documents which
indicated that the properties were physically possessed or
the legal titles of the properties were obtained by the buyers
before and after 31 December 2019 to assess whether the
related revenue had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period.

MRS P LAFEAR 2019F 12 431 ARV ED ER
BEAMBRENEESMEEEMBRENMS - LA
FHERBWR RN E N MR ®ER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREEREE

BREEXEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEERBERPONEERAREREE

Provision for land appreciation tax

IR E R

The Group is a property developer in Mainland China focusing
on the development of residential properties. Land
appreciation tax (“LAT") in Mainland China is one of the main
components of the Group’s taxation charge. LAT is levied on
the sale of properties at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% based on the appreciation of land value. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group estimates the provision for
land appreciation tax based on its understanding and
interpretation of the relevant tax rules and regulations, and the
estimated total sales of properties less total deductible
expenditure, which includes prepaid land lease payments,
property development costs and borrowing costs. When the
LAT is subsequently determined by tax authorities, the final tax
outcome may be different from the estimates. Significant
judgement is required in the amount of land appreciation and
its related income tax provisions. We identified the provision
for LAT as a key audit matter due to the complexity of
estimation of LAT.
EEER—RPBEANMHEMERER  FEXNHAEE
EVE - FEAMH I EER(IHEERD R B
SERBEX N ETREKT D Z — - WEHEN IR
BB o2 R 30% 2= 60% ) 2 #E T & ¥ + 1R ERARK -
RERESHR - BEEESREEEBEHREHRRSOER
BVIR R N R IR E R R AR Y R S AR
AR 2 258 (B IETEN T A ERIE - BHERZEX
ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ%°ﬁ%%%ﬁ&§iim%ﬁﬁ
iy EHBEREERINEE - B - REEL
mﬁ@iﬁﬁﬁm%% ST ERAELE AL - 28
R IBER G RERE  E5F LI EREERE
RA—HBAREZEE -

The accounting policies and disclosures of the provision for
land appreciation tax are included in notes 3 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BRI HREHRBENSABER LBEBREH NGRS MR
“MFE3IR 100
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We obtained an understanding of the key management controls
related to the LAT provision. We involved our internal tax specialist
to assist us to perform a review on the LAT provision, including the
estimates and assumptions used by the Group. We also
recalculated the LAT provision by testing the underlying data.
EECMB BB LIBETOBRELEEE - E5RBAE
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS(Conrfnued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
15 April 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 7 8 B Lt 2 T WL i 5

Year ended 31 December 2019 &{ZE 20194 12 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 5 2018 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B AR®T R ARETT

REVENUE &= 5 9,092,472 5,070,094
Cost of sales HE KA (7,613,165) (3,600,043)
GROSS PROFIT EF 1,479,307 1,470,051
Other income and gains HE MU Bz 5 65,800 324,069
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEFAX (294,980) (237,271)
Administrative expenses TR (292,408) (331,536)
Other expenses HihFAxw (22,828) (15,909)
Fair value gains on investment properties HEYEN AT B 15 106,300 14,803
Finance costs TSRS 7 (166,991) (254,007)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE R F) K fEi8
Joint ventures B (15,440) (19,716)
Associates i /NE] 81,369 111,373
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B A 5 R 6 940,129 1,061,857
Income tax expense FriSfip 10 (579,769) (566,535)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 360,360 495,322
Attributable to: THEIBRES ¢
Owners of the parent ISYNSIETZS PN 150,309 442,440
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 210,051 52,882
360,360 495,322

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A AR EERSITE AEN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BRER
THE COMPANY

Basic and diluted (RMB) EARNEE(ARE) 12 0.11 047

AT R RAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

%k 18 i B LAt e i L i G

Year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 12 831 BILFE

2019 2018
2019 % 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hft 2 HE K=
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified  7RBE# Bif&] Al BB = 875
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BIE M2 EES
Exchange differences on translation of HEGINETS 2 E N Z5E
foreign operations 33,022 -
Other comprehensive income that will not be REEE ST e ER 7R B
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BIE M2 ERE -
Equity investments designated at fair value EEZRAFEFAEMEE Y
through other comprehensive income: ZIRERE -
Change in fair value NEEEE 1,965 -
Income tax effect Frigins & (324) -
1,641 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRHME2E KR
FOR THE YEAR 34,663 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOMEFORTHE  FRZHEKFHAE
YEAR 395,023 495,322
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THATEEEEW SR
Owners of the parent ISYNETEZ V=N 184,972 44 440
Non-controlling interests IEVERRRE 210,051 52,882
395,023 495322
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A o W5 IR DL 3

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2019 2018
2019 % 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BaE AR¥T T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BMENREKE 13 1,241,223 362,642
Investment properties "EYE 15 918,200 811,900
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 16 281,354 -
Prepaid land lease payments T T ER T 16 = 258430
Intangible assets B EE 14 5,707 6,364
Investments in joint ventures REEhENKRE 17 78,103 103,739
Investments in associates REEE N AR E 18 910,513 281,185
Deferred tax assets BT IBE E 19 309,682 199,194
Equity investments designated at fair value 3§ E & A FEF AE M 2 EIRES
through other comprehensive income ([ AFEFAEMER
("FVOCI") Yozs |) BB IR & 21 326,723 -
Total non-current assets FERBEEME 4,071,505 2,023,454
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development FERYE 22 16,166,537 17,397,704
Completed properties held for sale BELEND R TYE 23 6,227,457 2,123,761
Trade receivables H 5 e IR 1,458 2
Due from related companies gk NGIE e 42 895,762 1,184,581
Prepaid land lease payments B T A ERHK 16 = 5440
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BN FIH « & & & H b fE U 108 24 2,729,374 939,409
Tax recoverable Al e U F TR 342,007 145,782
Other current assets HMREhEE 20 56,245 -
Inventories FE 890 -
Restricted cash SR HIE S 25 1,137,115 122,820
Pledged deposits BB ER 25 29 7,441
Cash and cash equivalents BENBEEEY 25 2,894,255 1,589,181
Total current assets RBEERE 30,451,129 23,516,121
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables S RENFIERENZEE 26 2,742,799 2,250,325
Other payables, deposits received HMEMZIE BhiZE R
and accruals EEtER 27 3,969,718 2,908,338
Due to related companies FETRAHS A A RIAR 41 624,499 1615416
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t /2.8217 &2 H fib f& X 30 4,917,819 5,300,063
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 16,826 -
Contract liabilities BREBE 29 10,503,434 5,274,810
Financial guarantee contracts EEREH 31 - 6,289
Tax payable FERTHRIE 10 1,293,051 504,146
Total current liabilities MEN B B AR 24,068,146 17,859,387

SR B AE B R A A
—E-NFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
f 7 JA 55K D 3

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2019 2018

2019 5 2018 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR¥ET T ARET T

NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 6,382,983 5,656,734
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERRBERE

LIABILITIES 10,454,488 7,680,188
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBAE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5 8 8R17 & E A fE X 30 5,582,140 4,891,341
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 3,072 -
Financial guarantee contracts HIIEERE K 31 - 12,578
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIAEE 19 842,471 365,970
Total non-current liabilities InBaEesE 6,427,683 5,269,389
NET ASSETS BEEFE 4,026,805 2,410,299
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners BATEEAELER

of the Company
Share capital [N 32 124,119 347
Treasury shares BTG5 32 (7) @)
Other reserves E b 33 2,384,706 1,568,259

2,508,818 1,568,599
Non-controlling interests R ER 1,517,987 841,700
TOTAL EQUITY MR 4,026,805 2,410,299
Mr. Ma Baohua Ms. Shao Lei
BRELE BELL
Director Director
= EF

1 50 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
%o 7 B A 5 ) 3R

Year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE 2019412 A31 B IEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BATEE AR

Non-
controlling
interests
FER
Bs &
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR

Investment
Merger revaluation Share
reserve*  reserve* premium*

REEM
fife RODEE: e
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR
(note 33(a)) (note33(b))
(K 33(a)) (RY&E33(h))

Statutory

surplus
reserves*
ERRE

fife

Share
capital

Total
equity

Retained
profits*

Treasury
shares

Capital
reserve*

Exchange

reserves* Total

Bx
RMB'000

AEETTR
(Note 32)

(Hfzk32)

ERRf
RMB'000
AEETTR
(Note32) (note 33(c))
(aE32) (M&3s(c)

affhE
RMB'000
ARBT R

St e
RMB'000
ARRTR

R A5
RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTT ARMTR

Asat T January 2019 RO9ETRI1A 347 (7) 6232719 - - 82,600 188,133 - 674247 1,568,599 841,700 2,410,299
Profitfor the year ERgd - - - - - - - - 150,309 150,309 210,051 360,360
Other comprehensive income FREMEENG :

forthe year:

Echange differences on translation B E SN ER ER£E

of foreign operations - - - - - - - 3302 - 3302 - 33022
Change infar value of equity BATEF A2 ENE

investmentsatfairvaluethough — ZIREREZ ATEES -

other comprehensive income, HBHE

net of tax - - - 1,641 - - - - - 1,641 - 1,641
Total comprehensive income EMEENRSE

for the year - - = 1,641 - - - 33,022 150,309 184972 210,051 395,023
Capital contrbution fiom HELAFERRRTE

non-controling shareholders

of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 509,044 509,044
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RIBAT - - - - - - - - - - (42,808)  (42,808)
Appropriations o statutory ERSETRHRE

surplus reserve - - - - - - 7,553 - (7,553) - - -
Issue of shares Bkt 123,772 - - - 631475 - - - - 155247 - 155247
Asat 31 December 2019 R09E12A318 124119 (7) 6232719 1641 631,475 82,600 195686 33,022 817,003 2,508,818 1,517,987 4,026,805

SR B AE B R A A
“E-NFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
%o 7 B i 5 B 3%

Year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F 12 A31 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

YN 2 NG
Statutory Non-
Share Treasury Merger Capital surplus Retained controlling Total
capital shares reserve* reserve® reserves* profits Total interests equity
EERR FERR
RA  ERRG  AtERE AREE fE REEA it 3 BiER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 32) (note32)  (note33(c)  (note33()  (note33(b))
(F&F32)  (WE32) (M) (HEse)  (FEs3se)
Asat 1 January 2018 R2018%F1 A1H - - 910919 - 188,133 231,807 1,330,859 655,586 1,986,445
Issue of new shares HRAET 347 0 - - - - 340 - 340
Capital contribution upon ERRTE
the Reorganisation - - (100,137) - - - (100,137) - (100,137)
Capital contribution from NGB e
non-controlling shareholders *E
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 352350 352350
Acquisition of subsidiaries IERB AR - - - - - - - 159171 159,171
Share-based payment AR BEBN TR - - - 82,600 - - 82,600 - 82,600
Acquisition of anon-controlling B B IR UREETEEIRIRER
shareholders by the then
shareholders - - (187,503) - - - (187,503) (334,025) (521,528)
Total comprehensive income FREANREE
for the year - - - - - 442440 442440 52,882 495322
Distribution declared to BEEC N
non-controlling shareholders** - - - - - - - (44,264) (44,264)
As at 31 December 2018 R2018F 128311 347 7 623279 82,600 188,133 674,247 1,568,599 841,700 2410299
* These reserve accounts represent the consolidated other reserves of RMB2,384,706000  * M2019F 12831 B - ZEREBRELGE MK

in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 (at 31
December 2018: RMB1,568,259,000).

o In2018, MASAMEEHERE AR AR, and BRRSEFREEEEREGR AR,
subsidiaries of the Company, declared total dividends of RMB90,148,000, of which,

RMB44,264,000 was attributable to the non-controlling shareholders.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

oo Bl il B R

Year ended 31 December 2019 EZE 20194 12 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 FF 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BaE AR¥T ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 7 Al ) 940,129 1,061,857
Adjustments for: A TIIFIEELFE
Depreciation of items of property, plant M - BENMKEBIEB
and equipment E 6,13 5,160 4,556
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESERE 6,16 15,708 -
Amortisation of prepaid land FE b TR & SR 5
lease payments 6,16 - 2,346
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih A & ey 6,14 681 558
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—MeeEhEls - )
Investment income of business LR EINERA TR
combinations achieved in stages wEWRA 5 (11,277) (292,672)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary &R B AR EE 5 14,739 -
Share of profits of joint ventures R TaE N /N
and associates S A (65,929) (91,657)
Fair value gains on investment properties REYEN QN FEYS 15 (106,300) (14,803)
Changes in fair value of financial M EREENATE
guarantee liabilities b=:g) 31 (18,867) (6,289)
Finance costs BAFE AR AR 7 166,991 254,007
Interest income F B A 5 (23,323) (22,561)
Share-based payment DARR D A BT 28 = 82,600
Decrease/(increase) in properties under R ENEIERES
development and completed properties 2R TWERLD (L)
held for sale 985,427 (5,854,913)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SREIRS (Lm), mH 25 (1,014,294) 08,887
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits E}fﬁﬁf R (B An) 25 7,412 (7,447)
Decrease in trade receivables Z Z EWEIER D 1,142 1,989
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and fﬁﬁ\ﬁ RIH - e REALEL
other receivables RIE R D 2,114,423 1,600,364
Increase in other current assets ﬁﬂ?ﬁ@JﬁEi il (56,245) -
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due from JEHSZF'Q RN O]
related companies W (1% j]l]) 1,005,488 (8,729)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 e TR N e S R AR N 490,853 1,237,087
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, Hﬂﬂfﬁ X8 - BlkiRe K
deposits received and accruals FEEE A C),/18Em (3,508,822) 188,742
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities S48 fiﬁjju/(;ﬁ ) 5,222,217 (740,899)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to JEH EzLiNEIE L]
related companies CRi )/iEle] (1,778,645) 6,373
BAERERARAT 153
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
% 7 Bl i A

Year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 FF 20186
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR¥T T ARETT
Cash generated from/(used in) rEmE /(R RE
operations 4,386,669 (2,500,602)
Interest received BRI & 5 23,323 22,561
Interest paid [=ENEIES) (585,287) (509,758)
Tax paid EfNHIEA (328,672) (263,274)
Net cash flows from/(used in) RESEERE (T A)
operating activities REREFHE 3,496,033 (3,251,073)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETFHFERERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYE  BELZEER
and equipment 13 (723,024) (285,061)
Purchases of prepaid land lease payments BEEMNIHHEENR 16 - (154,192)
Purchase of other intangible assets HBEEMELEE 14 (20) (6,922)
Additions in investment properties WEMERE 15 - (378,997)
Decrease of available-for-sale investments AHEERERD - 321,008
Acquisition of subsidiaries gy ==pNE 36 100,859 (378,760)
Acquisition of subsidiaries not accounted RARYBEBEH 2
for as a business combination g =N 38 (2,386,357) -
Disposal of a subsidiary & —H B AR 35 (113,890) -
Disposal of a joint venture HESSNNE 18,108 1,000
Purchase of inventories BERE (49)
Purchase of equity investments designated ~ BE B IR AFETAEMEE
at FvOC| Wzs 2 IRIERE (325,082) -
Advances to third parties RE=FER (5,063,367) (2,085,039)
Settlement of advances to third parties EEMB=ZHER 3,545,174 3,067,981
Advances to joint ventures and associates a “ﬁé%& i /NIE-E (1,750,128) (1,364,727)
Settlement of advances to joint ventures EFEMAEETER
and associates /NG| iﬂm 2,410,794 2,773,872
Advances to related companies ﬁﬁ 5? NGIE:! (3,071,289) (66,552)
Settlement of advances to related companies #& & [A] Eﬁ%’& 2R 1,706,495 66,531
Investments in joint ventures and associates EhENBENTIRE (547,959) (120,060)
Disposal of items of property, plant uﬂ EME  BEREKEEE
and equipment 2,435 65
Net cash flows (used in)/from REZE (FTA) FERE
investing activities REFHE (6,197,300) 1,390,147
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AR Bl i R

Year ended 31 December 2019 EZE 20194 12 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 % 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BaE AR¥T T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METDRERERE
ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution from non-controlling M A AR AR EE
shareholders of the subsidiaries 509,044 352,350
Payment of lease liabilities HEABERNHK 16 3,785 =
Capital contribution upon the Reorganisation E#H1&T & - (100,137)
Acquisition of additional interests WS R A R REIME R
in subsidiaries - (521,528)
Distribution declared to non-controlling BERL T3S0 e
shareholders = (44,264)
Net proceeds from issue of new shares BT FTIS SIEF 58 755,247
Advance from third parties E=F8 4,054,478 3,760,838
Repayment of advances from third parties BiEE=HR (1,982,496) (4,722,080)
Advances from related companies Bl NI E N 989,923 6,150,024
Repayment of advances from related 182 N A B
companies (188,916) (6,769,981)
Advances from joint ventures and associates & &1 % B4 A R B R 382,121 1,517,413
Repayment of advances from joint ventures B8 & &% NI & QA A2
and associates (395,400) (1,302,080)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and T BIRTT R B (& FRATISFRIE
other borrowings 8,084,690 6,328,500
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BEsRIRIT MNEMERK
other borrowings (8,206,135) (2,370,250)
Net cash flows from financing activities BE FEFERERETE 4,006,341 2,278,804
RN BB AR B R A A
—5-ngeg 10D



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
% 7 Bl i A

Year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 5 2018 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B AR®T R ARETT

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERASEEYIGMTFE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,305,074 417,878
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FRESRIRSEED

of year 1,589,181 1,171,303
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESEEY

AT END OF YEAR 2,894,255 1,589,181

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND B & RBRSZEBYEH I

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re NIBTER 25 4,031,399 1,719,442
Less: Restricted cash B XBREIRE 25 (1,137,115) (122,820)

Pledged deposits [REiVEE=N 25 (29) (7.:447)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS FEMBRRARRASRER

STATED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FiREREASEEY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS 2,894,255 1,589,181
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1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 25 e % it

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEAIREEER
The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman ARAAE—HRFASHSFMAINE
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Sertus R AT c AATW M S Eit A
Chambers, Governors Square, Suite # 5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue, Sertus Chambers, Governors Square, Suite #
P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman Islands. 5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue, P.O. Box
2547, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman
Islands ©
The Company is an investment holding company. During the year ended AR A—HEREERAR - REZRE
31 December 2019, the subsidiaries now comprising the Group were 2019F 12 A31BIEFE - AEBERKE
involved in property development, hotel operations and property THEBARINEEMERL  BELE
investment. LEHERE -
The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock RATRM R 201963 A6 BIEBR B A
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 March RGEAR AR ([BZAT]) EMR ETH o
2019.
As at the date of this report, the Company had direct or indirect interests RAREBE KRR EHWE QR E
in its subsidiaries, all of which are private limited liability companies (or, if BEEESHE#EZD FIENBRARTE A
incorporated outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar FABREERE (SRR EBEINEM
characteristics to a private company incorporated in Hong Kong), the Bz BIEAR | EE R E S s AR 2 Y AL
particulars of which are set out below: ARNBIEBHELUEE)  EFBEHWN
T
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal valueof  equity interest
establishment and registered attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
ML L it B NG
it 4 = R B HI AR & S B L AR A B BETIL FTEEK
Directly held:
HERE:
Yin Cheng Holding Limited British Virgin Islands/ USD50,000 100% Investment holding
16 January 2018
EBERES/ 50,0003 7T 100% FIEHRRR
2018451 16 H
Indirectly held
BiEsE
Yinjiacheng Holding Ltd. Hong Kong of China/ HKD1 100% Investment holding
6 February 2018
REAERERAT hEES, 187 100% &R
201852 A6 H

SR B AE B R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

158

Management Co,, Ltd.

of China (“PRC")/

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L it B A PEMG
MEDR SRS E St AR A E BEFILE TEEK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Nanjing Yingang Business People’s Republic UsD1,000,000 100% Investment holding

(“Nanjing Yingang")* Mainland China/
21 March 2018
ARFECEERFABRAA hEE ARAME 1,000,000% 7T 100% H&EZER
([FEmEE]) ([+ED,
R El At
201853 421 A
Nanjing Yincheng Real Estate Co, Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,100,100 100% Property development
24 September 2009
BARIEEEEREFRAF hE/hER, AR 1001001007T 100% FEiiER%
200949 H 24 H
Nanjing Xicheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
1 August 2002
HRAHE I ERR AR A hEhER, AR 200000007 100% FEiiER%
20028 A1 H
Nanjing Hongquan Real Estate Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB98,567,555 100% Property development
(“Nanjing Hongquan")** 15 January 2013
HRAERIERREERLA R BN, AR 98567555 7T 100% AR
(IFmahz )= 2013517158
Nanjing Hongyou Real Estate Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB236,756,621 100% Property development
(“Nanjing Hongyou")** 15 January 2013
BRSMERERERR AR hEhER, AR 236756621 7T 100% FEiiER%

(TRmahth )=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 25 e % it

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, BRI it B QA PELG
MEDR RBEHUREREE s RAEE BREFDL TEEK

Indirectly held (Continued)
BiERA (8)

Nanjing Yinguang Real Estate Co,, Ltd. **

BARREEMEREARAF

Nanjing Yinzhuo Real Estate Co,, Ltd. **

ARRERHERBERERAF

Nanjing Yicheng Real Estate
Co, Ltd. (“Nanjing Yicheng”) **
ARZBEHEREFR AT
(TR B ]) =

Nanjing Eastern Senior Living Health
Industry Co,, Ltd.
(“Eastern Senior Living”) ***
ARRTBFREEXRERERAA
([RTTEELF ) o

Nanjing Yinlan Management Co, Ltd. **

EREREXEEERAR

Nanjing Mahui Real Estate
Co, Ltd. (“Nanjing Mahui")**
ARGEEEXRERAA
((AAREg)*

PRC/Mainland China/
18 April 2014
FE B A,
2014F 4 188

PRC/Mainland China/
21 April 2014
B/ R ER,
2014F4 218

PRC/Mainland China/
25 November 2014
RE/RERL,
2014511 A 251

PRC/Mainland China/
25 March 2015

B,/ th R,
201583 A25H

PRC/Mainland China/
25 September 2014
RE/RERL,

20149 A25H

PRC/Mainland China/
19 June 2004
B/ R ER,
2004F 6 4190

RMB200,000,000

AR 200,000,000 7T

RMB210,000,000

AR 210,000,000 7T

RMB50,000,000

AR 50,000,000 7T

RMB964,000,000

AR 964,000,000 7T

RMB2,000,000

AR 2,000,000 7T

RMB286,000,000

AR 286,000,000 7T

100% Property development

100% FEihER %

100% Property development

100% BFEHIERZ

100% Property development

100% EHIERZ

75% Property development

75% FEHIER

100% Investment holding

100% &&=

88% Property development

88% EHbERIE

SR B AE B R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L it B A PEMG
MEDR SRS E St AR A E BEFILE TEEK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Nanjing Jiayun City Real Estate Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 51% Property development
(“Nanjing Jiayun City")*** 29 September 2016
HAREEREEREARAA hE B, AR 100,000,000 7T 51% FEHERE
([FEREER ) = 201699 A29H
Nanjing Jiuchengxing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 50% Property development
Co, Ltd. (“Nanjing 29 September 2016
Jiuchengxing”) *** (Note (a))
BRI EREREARAA hE BN, AR 100,000,000 7T 500 FEHAERE
(TR ) == (ML (a)) 201699 A29H
Nanjing Yinjiafeng Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 14 October 2016
BRERECEERERAA hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
2016510 A 14 H
Nanjing Yinjiajin Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 14 October 2016
BREERCEERERRA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
2016510 A 14 H
Nanjing Yinjiaze Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 14 October 2016
BRERECEERERRA hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
2016510 A 14 H
Nanjing Yinjiazhan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB51,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. 14 October 2016
(“Nanjing Yinjiazhan")**
BRERHECEEEERAT hE BN, AR 51,0000007T 100% REHER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, BRI it B QA PELG
MEDR RBEHUREREE AR A E BREFDL TEEK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Nanjing Yinjiahan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 17 November 2016
BRERRCEERERRA hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201611 4178
Nanjing Yinjiahan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 17 November 2016
BREEHCEERERAA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201611 4178
Nanjing Yinjiarun Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 99% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. *** 22 November 2016
BAREZHCEEEARAF R BN, AR 10100007T 99% REHER
201611 A 228
Nanjing Yinjialan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. 22 November 2016
(“Nanjing Yinjialan”) **(Note (b))
BREERCEEEERAT hE BN, AR 200000007T 100% REHER
(TR mEREH ) = (3£ (b)) 2016% 11 A22
Nanjing Yinze Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 27 December 2016
BRINEGEERAR LA R R E R, AR 100,000 7T 100% REHER
201612 4278
Nanjing Yinjiayuan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. 15 May 2017
(“Nanjing Yinjiayuan")**
BRERRCEEEERAT R RER, AR 10100007T 100% REHER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L it B A PEMG
MEDR SRS E St AR A E BEFILE TEEK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Nanjing Yinjiaying Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 99% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. *** 15 September 2017
BREZRCEEEARAF R RER, AR 10100007T 99% REHER
201759 A15H
Nanjing Yinjiachun Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 99% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. *** 12 September 2017
BARERZCEEEHRAF R RER, AR 10100007T 99% REHER
201759 A12H
Wuxi Century Garden Real Estate Co, Ltd. **  PRC/Mainland China/ RMB420,000,000 100% Property development
14 March 2007
EHLCREFNERE AR AR hE B, AR 420,000,000 7T 100% FithER %
200743 A 14 H
Suzhou Yinze Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 70% Property development
Co, Ltd. (“Suzhou Yinze ")*** 4 July 2017
BEMB 2R EREERAR hE B, AR 200,000,000 7T 70% BRI
([ERINRZE |) o 20177848
Wuxi Yinzerun Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 31 July 2017
EHIRERCEERERRA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
2017%7A31H
SUNAC (Jiangsu) Real Estate Co, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB300,000,000 50% Property development
(“SUNAC (Jiangsu)”) *** (Note (a)) 24 May 2017
RAIOI#) EXERAA hE B, AR 300,000,000 7T 500 FEHAERDE
(TRea CTE) 1) == (P EE () 201745 A 24H
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, BRI it B QA PELG
MEDR RBEHUREREE s RAEE BREFDL TEEK

Indirectly held (Continued)
BiERA (8)

Nanjing Yinjiaju Enterprise
Management Co, Ltd. **
ARERBERERARAR

Nanjing Yinjiahui Enterprise
Management Co, Ltd. **
ARRRECERERARAR

Nanjing Changtuo Real Estate Co,, Ltd.
(“Nanjing Changtuo")**(Note (a))

ARERFHERRAR
(TRRER]) = (@)

Wuxi Yifeng Real Estate. Co,, Ltd.
(“Wuxi Yifeng")*** (Note (a))

EHELCEXRERAA
(TEHEL ) (@)

Hefei Yincheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. **
BERBEHEREFRAR
Hefei Yinzanhong Enterprise

Management Co, Ltd. **
AEREACRERFARAR

PRC/Mainland China/
2 December 2016
RE/RERL,
20165 12H2H

PRC/Mainland China/
22 November 2016
B/ R ER,
20165 11 A 22 R

PRC/Mainland China/
5 January 2018
R/ RERL,
2018 1 A5H

PRC/Mainland China/
12 October 2011
R/ RERL,
20114104128

PRC/Mainland China/
11 April 2018
B/ R ER,
2018F4 A 118

PRC/Mainland China/
29 May 2018

FE R,
201895 4290

RMB10,000,000

AR 10,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,000 7T

RMB20,000,000

AR 20,000,0007T

RMB160,000,000

AR 160,000,000 7T

RMB100,000,000

AR 100,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,000 7T

100% Investment holding

100% & EZER

100% Investment holding

100% & EZERK

50% Property development

50% FEHIERZ

35% Property development

350 EHIERIE

100% Property development

100% EHIER%

100% Investment holding

100% & EZERK

SR B AE B R A A
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREERER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L it B A PEMG
MEDR REHUREREE AR A E BEFILE TEEK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Hefei Yinzhilu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.** 29 May 2018
ARBEECEEBERAF hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201845 429 H
Nanjing Yinjiabin Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 22 January 2018
BAREERCEERERRA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201851 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjiabo Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 22 January 2018
BREEDCEERERRA hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201851 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjiace Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 22 January 2018
BAREZACEERERRA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201851 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjiajin Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 22 January 2018
BREFECEERERRA hERERM, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201851 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjiali Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 22 January 2018
BRERECEERERRA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2018F 1 A22H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, BRI it B QA PELG
MEDR RBEHUREREE s RAEE BREFDL TEEK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Nanjing Yinjiapu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 22 January 2018
BREEBCEERERRA hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER

Nanjing Yinjiagi Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 22 January 2018
BAREEHCEERERAA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER

2018F 1 A22H

Nanjing Yinjiasong Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 21 May 2018
BARREREEERBRAF hEhER, AR 10000007T 100% REEMK

20185 A21H

Nanjing Yinjiaxian Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 22 January 2018
BAREEECEERERRA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER

2018F 1 A22H

Nanjing Yinjiayu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 22 January 2018
BHRREBEEERBRAF hEhER, AR 10000007T 100% REEMK

2018F 1 A22H

Wuxi Yincheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB600,000,000 100% Property development
1 August 2005
|HRHE I ERRARA A hE B, AR 600,000,000 7T 100% AR
20058 A1 H

SR B AE B R A A
—E-NFER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L it B FRAIERS
HELE SRS E St AR A E RERSE TEBXK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Nanjing Yinjiayuan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 1 February 2018
BREERCEERERRA hEhER, AR 10000007 100% REHER
201852418
Nanjing Yinjiazhen Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 21 May 2018
BREFECEERERRA hEhER, AR 10000007T 100% REHER
201845 421 H
Nanjing Yinke Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 15 May 2018
BRI R ERFR AR hEhER,  ARKS500000007T 100% REHER
201845 A 15H
Wuxi Yinzechen Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 14 March 2018
EHRERCEERERRA hEhER, AR 10000007T 100% REHER
201853 A 14H
Wuxi Yinzehan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 28 March 2018
EHIRERCEERERRA hEhER, AR 10000007T 100% REHER
201843 A28 H
Wuxi Yinzelan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 14 March 2018
EHRERCEERERRA hEhER, AR 10000007T 100% REHER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, BRI it B QA PELG
MEDR SR E 31 AR A E BREFDL TEEK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Wuxi Yinzexin Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 29 March 2018
EHRERCEERERRA hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201843 A29H
Xuzhou Changshun Real Estate Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
(“Xuzhou Changshun”)** 24 February 2014
HIMNRIEEXBR AT hE BN, AR 200000007T 100% EHER
([RINFRIE ) = 20142 A 24H
Zhejiang Yinze Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Property development
MIREFEWERREERF] 14 May 2018
hE B, AR 100,000,000 7T 100% FEiAERH
201845 414 H
Zhenjiang Hengrun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB105,000,000 33% Property development
Co, Ltd. (“Zhenjiang Hengrun ") *** 9 April 2018
(Note (a))
BIEEEMEREARAR hE B, AR 105000000 7T 33% FEHERE
(TTEE]) = (@) 20184 A9A
Hangzhou Yinhong Industrial Co,, Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB300,000,000 100% Property development
11 February 2018
MMBEAEEBREE DT hE B, AR 300000,0007T 100% FiiERE
201852411 H
Nanjing Airport Exhibition Investment PRC/Mainland China/ RMB200,000,000 49% Property development
Management Co,, Ltd. 18 August 2017
(“Nanjing Airport”) **(Note (a))
BREASRREEEARAA BB, AR 200,000,000 7T 49% FEithERIE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L it B FRAIERS
MEDR SRS E St AR A E RERSE TEBXK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Nanjing Yinjiang Engineering Consulting PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Consulting
Co, Ltd. ** 21 August 2018
BRIRE T2 HRARAR hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% 45
201848 421 H
Jiang Yin Yinze Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Property development
24 October 2018
IRRERMERBERRDE BB, AR 100000,0007T 100% iR
2018510 A 24 H
Xuzhou Yincheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Property development
3 August 2018
BB EHERBEBRAE) hE B, AR 100,000,000 7T 100% BiiERE
201858 A3 H
Wuxi Tianhonglixin Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 65% Property development
Consulting Co,, Ltd. 29 March 2016
(“Wuxi Tihanhonglixin ) **
‘mHRALFEEHEFABRAT R B, AR 100,000,000 7T 65% AR
([EHRANIE]) > 20163 A29H
Wuxi Xincheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 65% Property development
(“Wuxi Xincheng")** 16 March 2016
B ERE (B BERAF hE B, AR 100,000,000 7T 65% AR
([ESH I ) = 20163 A 16 H
Hangzhou Yinzheyi Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,010,000 99% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. *** 5 December 2018
MNP ERERARE E R R RER, AR 10100007T 99% REER
201812 A5 H
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, BRI it B QA PELG
MEDR RBEHUREREE AR A E BREFDL TEEK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Nanjing Zhijun Real Estate Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000,000 25% Property development
(“Nanjing Zhijun")*(Note (a)) 18 April 2019
HREERMEREARAR B BN, AR 10000000007 25% IR
(TAREE ) (@) 2019F4A18H
Nanjing Jiuhong Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Property development
22 April 2019
BRALEHEREERA R hE BN, AR 50000000 7T 100% BiiERE
201954 A 22 H
Nanjing Yinjialu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 19 April 2019
BREFBECEERERRA hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
20194 A19H
Nanjing Yinjialuo Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB9,900,990 69.7% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. *** 19 April 2019
BREFRECEEEERAF R RER, AR 9900990 7T 69.7% REERK
201954 A19H
Wuxi Yinzehao Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 25 April 2019
EHRBECEERERRA R RER, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
20194 A 25H
Jiangsu Shantui Construction PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 80% Property development
Machinery Co,, Ltd. 15 May 2003
("“Jiangsu Shantui”) ***
TR T2 AR AR hE BN, AR 20000,0007T 80% AR
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L it B FRAIERS
HELE SRS E St AR A E RERSE TEBXK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Nanjing Yinjianing Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 6 May 2019
BRERECEERERAA hEhER, AR 10000007 100% REHER
2019560
Hangzhou Yinjiarun Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 10 May 2019
MMBERECEEBEREEAF hEhER, AR 10000007T 100% REHER
201945 A 10H
Nanjing Yinjiahong Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. 28 August 2019
(“Nanjing Yinjiahong")**
BRERACEEEERAT hEhER,  ARE100000007T 100% 1REHER
(IR 20198 A28 H
Nanjing Yinjiamu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB193,000,000 51% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. *** 6 December 2019
BAREFACEEEHRAF hE/hER, AR 1930000007T 51% REERER
201912 A6 H
Wuxi Yinzehong Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 24 April 2019
EHIRERCEERBRRA hEhER, AR 10000007T 100% REHER
201944 A 24 H
Wuxi Yinzemin Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 24 April 2019
EHIRBRCEERERRA hE/hER, AR 10000007T 100% REHER
201944 A 24 H
1 70 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, BRI it B FRAERS
MEDR SR E 31 AR A E RERSE TEXK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Wuxi Yinzezhan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 24 April 2018
EHWEHCEERERRA hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201844 A 24 H
Wuxi Yinzefeng Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 24 April 2018
EHIWBECEERERRA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201844 A 24 H
Nanjing Yinjiaan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. 20 September 2019
(“Nanjing Yinjiaan")**
BRERLTCEEEERAT hEhER, AR 10000007T 100% 1REHER
((FmEERT ) 20199 A20H
Hangzhou Yinjiayuan Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB10,000,000 51% Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd. *** 9 September 2019
MMNBFRERERERDE] hE BN, AR 10000,0007T 51% REER
20199 A 9H
Hangzhou Huixingyu Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,530,200,000 36.76% Investment holding
Management Partnership 5 September 2019
(Limited Partnership)
(“Hangzhou Huixingyu")***(Note (a))
MMNERGEREEABEE B hER, AR 25302000007 36.76% REER
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER @)
(Continued)
Place and date of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of  equity interest
establishment and registered  attributable to
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AEMAR S, B 3L it B A PEMG
MEDR SRS E St AR A E BEFILE TEEK
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Xuzhou Yinjiahao Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 4 July 2019
BMBEERCEEBERAF hE BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
20197 A48
Xuzhou Yinjiahong Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 4 July 2019
BMBEZACEEBERAF R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
20197 A48
Yixing Yinze Real Estate Co,, Ltd. ** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100% Property development
18 October 2019
HEFERMEREARA R hE BN, AR 20000,0007T 100% #EEFE
2019410 A 18 H
Nanjing Yincheng Medical PRC/Mainland China/ RMB100,000,000 100% Medical management
Management Co, Ltd. ** 4 November 2019
BRI ERERARA A hE B, AR 100,000,000 7T 1000 E&EERE
201911 A4H
Nanjing Yinjiawo Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd. ** 20 September 2019
BREFACEERERRA R BN, AR 1,0000007T 100% REHER
201949 A 20H
Zhejiang Lin'an Zhongdu PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100% Property development
Properties Limited. 29 April 2003
(Lin"an Zhongdu) **
HLBRTHBEEARANA hE BN, AR 50000000 7T 100% #EEFE
(THR &)= 200344 A29H

1 7 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

PAIREBRER &)

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company Principal activities
QA PELG
BREE L TEXEK

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Place and date of
incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and registered
Subsidiaries place of operations share capital
MBI, B it B
HELE SR E 31 AR A E
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE(4)
Hangzhou Zhongdu PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000
Wonderland Hotel Co,, Ltd. 13 January 2006
(Hangzhou Zhongdu Wonderland)**
MM ES LAl KBEFR AR hE BN, AR 500000007T
(T4 R B LL AR |) = 20065 1 A13H
Nanjing Yinjiagin Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB278,430,000
Management Co,, Ltd. *** 3 December 2019
BAREFNEEEEERAF hEl/hER, AR 2784300007T
201912 A3 H
Xuzhou Tongshun Real Estate Co,, Ltd. *** PRC/Mainland China/ RMB360,806,000
6 November 2019
TRINSRIE S EE R A IR A ] B REIN, AR 360,806,000 7T
201911 A6 H
Hangzhou Yinjiahong Enterprise PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000
Management Co, Ltd. ** 10 May 2019
MMBEACEEBER AR R BN, AR 1,0000007T

20195 A10H

* & R R is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law. *
** These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. *%
xxx These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the *%%

Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the

Company's control over them.

The statutory financial statements of the above subsidiaries established
in the PRC prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable to enterprises established
in the PRC, were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

100% Hotel Operation

100% SBJE 28

69.32% Investment holding

69.32% B

90% Property development

0% EHbERE

100% Investment holding

100% & EZERK

MARIRESRETBEAREMNIEEE
-

ZERNRRARANZENBRF -

ZERAR/ARRMIEREMNE QR OM
BT AARRREZE ARG
BmAMRS BB AR

RIBEANFERZEERNBEESER
BI) Ko Bt 76505 453 A B ) bt o B B S P BB
RAEMEEMBERREREETELKE
~t B 5 P 8 K B A ED R T 2 Bk

MEVEMKE ABIER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Note (a):

Note (b):

174

FERER, BHES BRAME, EITER BREE and IMER
#4 are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group mainly because the Group
owns 51% of the voting rights according to the articles of association and
the supplemental agreement regarding voting arrangement entered into
between the shareholders, through which the Group has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with these entities and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over these entities.

AlAN GIER) and B R 24 are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group
mainly because the Group owns 100% of the voting rights according to the
supplemental agreement regarding voting arrangement entered into
between the shareholders of @l &l] (JT %) and R & Z= /8, through which
the Group has rights to variable returns from its involvement with these
entities and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
these entities.

The percentage of attributable equity interests presented is the percentage
of beneficiary interests held by the Group. The equity interests in this entity
legally held by the Group are lower than the beneficiary interests because
of the existence of the trust financing arrangement.

The Group legally transferred the equity interests in the following subsidiary
as collateral to a trust financing company as at 31 December 2019.

1.

NAIREBER &

B EE @)

i 7 (b)

MREH EHESZ BmRAME-
SEIEHE  BREARMMEEBA
RIIAREENHRBAR  xERE
EAEERBAMERMAREBRR Y
MU BRRELHNOEAHZES
S1%HIRERE - Bt - REEHLMEZ
SERBEBNIHER=ZBERN - I
ﬁbLiﬂE”TM%%i‘%‘fE’Wééﬁg/ A
[B] ¥ -

Al OTE) kB RZEB AR AARE
BEoMELR TERAZRAEER
ERAIOTE) B B IRR 2 ET
VABRRLINH T HEES 100%
MR B AREHS2EZE
BREBHNIHLBREFERN - WaE
BBAEHZSERNENIZEZSD
o

CENEEREE S L AREERE

MESESZADL ARERZER
BEFENRERETRERHFTR

MER B -

R2019F 124318 * ZEBEBRUAT
MEARNRKRESZEETEIRE
NEMEREIRE -

Percentage of
equity pledged

as at 31 December
2019

R2019F

12831 BEH
WEZEDL

Nanjing Yinjialan iR 5208
Under the aforementioned arrangement, the Group was obliged to
repurchase the equity interests at a fixed amount on a future date upon
repayment of the borrowings from the trust financing company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs,
(which include all standards and interpretations approved by the IASB,
and International Accounting Standards (“IASs”), Standing Interpretations
Committee interpretations) approved by the IASB that remain in effect,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties and equity investments
designated at FVOCI which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Adoption of merger accounting

As disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, a
business combination under common control was effected during the
year ended 31 December 2019, where the subsidiary acquired under the
business combination and the Company are under common control of
the ultimate shareholders. The business combination has been
accounted for using the principles of merger accounting. The
consolidated financial statements include the financial statements items
of the combining entity or business in which the common control
combination occur as if the combination had occurred from the date
when the combining entity first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entity are consolidated using the
existing book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the
net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest. The
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income includes the results of the combining entity from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entity first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of
the date of the common control combination.

The impact on the Group arising from the common control combination
is disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (coniinued) 2.1 iRBE%E »)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
IFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement
Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IAS 28

IFRIC-Int 23

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12
and IAS 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

2.1

2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 265 e % it

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 19, and Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group's financial statements, the nature and the
impact of the new and revised IFRSs are described below:

(@) IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-Int 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and SIC-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases
under a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles
asinlAS 17.

IFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases where the
Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method with the date of initial application of 1 January 2019.
Under this method, the standard has been applied retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initial adoption recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at 1 January
2019, and the comparative information for 2018 was not restated
and continued to be reported under IAS 17 and related
interpretations.

1 7 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)
New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset and the
right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Group elected to
use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be
applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 and IFRIC-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and
IFRIC-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease
under IFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property,
machinery, and motor vehicles. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or operating leases based
on the assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially
all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group.
Under IFRS 16, the Group applies a single approach to recognise
and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets
(elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of
12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term
commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets
and interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance
COsts).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

180

(Continued)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (Continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 and included in
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The right-of-use
assets were measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on IAS 36
on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-use assets
separately in the statement of financial position.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation) previously included in
investment properties and measured at fair value, the Group has
continued to include them as investment properties at 1 January
2019. They continue to be measured at fair value applying IAS 40.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a
lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application

Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 D HERIBEESE &)
DlSCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued) @ (&)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as EBEBA — KR EAK
operating leases (Continued) EHENHEE#®)

Impact on transition (Continued)

BEYE(E)

The impacts arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 as at 1 January 201941 B 1 B AN IR B 7%

2019 are as follows:

EHRERE 16 HEENTENT ¢

Increase/
(decrease)
g, CRd)
RMB'000
ARETT
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets 5 A EEM 20,889
Decrease in prepayments and other receivables TE A 5RI8 & E Ath FE W R R (1,247)
Increase in total assets HBAEEM 19,642
Liabilities 8fE
Increase in lease liabilities HEAGEEM 19,642
Increase in total liabilities BEBFEITE M 19,642
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the R2019F1ATENHEESFEHER
operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 are as 2018 12 A31 AW & H E A IE
follows: ZHERIAS ¢
RMB'000
ARETTT
Operating lease commitments as at 72018512 A 31 AWK EHERIE
31 December 2018 11,088
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate asat 220194 1 A1 BRI IIEF1E S
1 January 2019 CECAES 5.33%
Discounted operating lease commitments as at 20194 1 B 1 BEUITIRAL &
1 January 2019 THEAYE 15,465
Add: Payments for optional extension periods not hn: R20184F 12 A 31 BRERERK
recognised as at 31 December 2018 B IEREN R 4,177
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RN2019F1 51BN HESRE 19,642
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

182

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of IFRS 9
only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which
the equity method is applied and does not include long-term
interests that in substance form part of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture, to which the equity method has not
been applied. Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS
28, including the impairment requirements under IFRS 9, in
accounting for such long-term interests. IAS 28 is then applied to
the net investment, which includes the long-term interests, only in
the context of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture
and impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture. The Group assessed its business model for its long-term
interests in associates and joint ventures upon adoption of the
amendments on 1 January 2019 and concluded that the long-
term interests in associates and joint ventures continued to be
measured at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9.
Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRIC-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(i) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes
in facts and circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation,
the Group considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions
arising from the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on
the Group’s tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the Group
determined that it is probable that its transfer pricing policy will
be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation
did not have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material'
and IAS 8

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Other than further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group as described below, the Group expected that
the adoption of the above new and revised standards will not have any
significant financial effect on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at
a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 C BB R ERN BRI

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the
date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address the effects of interbank
offered rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or
loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now and not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of material. The
new definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information. A
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHHEME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHHEME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity instruments
designated at FVOCI at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets, properties
under development, completed properties held for sale and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 Decem

ber2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

190

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person:

0) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

i

) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group

or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and the
annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 5%
Motor vehicles 24%
Office equipment and electronic devices 19% to 32%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

the lease terms and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHHEME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset (2018: leasehold property under an
operating lease) which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the
Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for
owned property and/or accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-
of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a
transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into
account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs
to be incurred in selling the properties.

Allocation of property development cost

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to its occupied gross
floor area ("GFA") to the total occupied GFA. Construction costs relating
to units were identified and allocated specifically. Common construction
costs have been allocated according to the saleable GFA similar to land
costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:

Leasehold land 3510 50 years
Plant and machinery 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 2 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

()

@]

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and vehicles that are
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

A 25 e % it

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

24 ERETTHEREw)

(2019 F1B81RBER) (&)

FEBMEREBA ()
b) MHEEE

(©

RIS A HIREE A RED
MEEMFREERHEHERRE M
ENFREEEENK(BEELE
FE R0 AT fa] 1 & 22 B e WK
B BURREHE N E A #EE
MFRARFERRIBEFRSBERRS
NoesE - HENFTERAEE
BEEEITENBEEZENTTRE
EBRXHERIEEENSR(HEE
R R BT EEFRAZ LA
B) o NEURR 8 Bl F) K 1 m] &
MENFEHIRBEN RN EF L
e AR R R R ST

REtEREMNRNBRER - BRE
BRI EASHEE - RIAR
SERNEEMAHEREEERE
RH=E - R AHER  HEAE
T ERYIR IR AR T S AR R IR
DB - UEIN - A E e R
(AEHEZE HEFAZE (P
BHRA L ENBFEHHRKEE
MRBEEES) ABERBFEEN
BEETENEE) A BIEHE
EMEREMNERMEE -

AEBEHHEMS MREBNEREE
(BNZENFABARANERAR12E
AL TENBEREERNTEE)
FEREHHERRE R - HINEH
REAEBREENRARBITE
MEERAEKEEEEHENER
#e EHHENMEEEEEMRE
MBS N RERERRIRERERE
RBFX -

SR B AE B R A A

—z-naeg 199



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHHEME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element,
to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement of
profit and other comprehensive income or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, at fair value through profit or loss, and at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHHEME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how
it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held
for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (Continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Stage3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
the end of each of the reporting period. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSTHHERE @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case
of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables, deposits received and accruals, amounts due
to related companies, lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are held by the Company or the Group
(treasury shares) are recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s and the Group's own equity instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practises prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBERBE )

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of properties and services provided in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of taxes.

Sale of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred
to the purchaser. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the asset may transfer over time or
at a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over time if the
Group's performance:

provides benefits which are received and consumed
simultaneously by the purchaser; or

creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser controls as the
Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the purchaser obtains control of the
asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation that best depict the Group’s
performance in satisfying the performance obligation.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

For property development and sales contracts for which the control of
the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the purchaser obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has the present right to payment
and the collection of the consideration is probable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Provision of management services

Revenue from the provision of management services is recognised over
the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHHEME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria
are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to
which the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed
as incurred.

Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at
the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model,
further details of which are given in Note 28.

That cost is recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve), over the period in
which the service and, where applicable, the performance conditions are
fulfilled (the vesting period). The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum
expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the unmodified award,
provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional
expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where
an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining
element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through
profit or loss.

Other employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain proportion of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHHEME )

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional currency because the Group's principal operations are carried
out in Mainland China. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and completed
properties held for sale

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are disclosed below:

Provision of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

The Group's properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group's historical experience and the nature of the subject
properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs of
completion of properties under development, and the costs to be
incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
the carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which
such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based on
management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon the completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the
tax authorities for certain of its property development projects. The final
outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and any differences will impact on the LAT expenses and the
related provision in the period in which the differences realise.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

214

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties under construction carried at fair value were
revalued at each reporting date based on the appraised market value
provided by independent professional valuers. Such valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation,
the Group considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair value
include those related to estimated rental values with reference to the
current market rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate capitalisation rates and expected profit margin.
The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2019 was
RMB918,200,000 (2018: RMB811,900,000). Further details, including the
key assumptions used for fair value measurement, are given in note 15
to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. Further details are included in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Share-based payment

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which depends
on the terms and conditions of the grant.
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4.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s business
which includes property development and leasing by project locations
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. As all the locations have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in the nature of property development and
leasing, the nature of the aforementioned business processes, the type
or class of customer for the aforementioned business and the methods
used to distribute the properties or provide the services, and thus all
locations were aggregated as one reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

No further geographical information is presented as the Group's revenue
from the external customers is derived solely from its operation in
Mainland China and no non-current assets of the Group are located
outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common
control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 it % B ik

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. & - Ht A R k&
Revenue represents income from the sale of properties, project WHEREFENMFEIEEWR A - TBH
management income, hotel operations and rental income during the BIBILA BIERE RTESIEA o

reporting year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: i ~ B A R R

Y|

2019 2018

2019 fF 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREEFIT

Revenue Wz
Sale of properties WS 8,996,128 5,067,075
Project management income HEEEBKA 79,679 -
Hotel operations T 48 13,460 -
Rental income HEWA 3,205 3,019
9,092,472 5,070,094
2019 2018
2019 FF 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
Represented by: 15 -
Recognised at a point in time : RE—RFERER
Revenue from sale of properties REWEHEEH NS 8,996,128 5,067,075
Revenue from hotel operation REBELEH R 7,293 -
Recognised over time: R—BREHRER
Revenue from project management KEHEEEEMNKE 79,679 -
Revenue from hotel operation KA IE &L RS 6,167 -
Revenue from property lease income LIEL A PN 3,205 3,019

9,092,472 5,070,094
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. U3 HttA R WE @)
(Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the TERBTRARERENERERRE
= LA &
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities at %ﬂ @ WIIAE %’?E{Ezfﬁ@fﬁ ’ J%/Eﬁ
the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from performance FLBEHIR K 2 B A B (T RER 2 et
AT/ -
obligations satisfied in previous periods: ok

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETFIT

Revenue recognised that was included RIEHITAEHAEDN
in contract liabilities at the beginning BRI -
of the reporting period:
Sale of properties MEHEE 4,959,576 3,758,844
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBT T
Other income and gains Hh A & Wzs
Government grants B 2,799 124
Interest income B A 23,323 22,561
Forfeiture of deposits RUWIR S 1,685 1,203
Project management income HE EBBA - 6,851
Investment income on business combination LR BIREBS A
achieved in steps JEWA 11,277 292,672
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE— R B A E &8s (14,739) -
Dividend income from equity investments at fair & A BT A E M 2 E IR 2
value through other comprehensive income A& 7RI & 2 R B WA 10,990 -
Recovery of financial guarantees contracts U [0 B TS AR A 49 13,102 -
Recovery of security deposit for breaking contracts U [813& #){R 35 & 16,470 -
Others Hitb 893 658

65,800 324,069
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REEMNBRHEA SN T8 A TEIEH
B/ (GEA)BIES -
2019 2018
2019 FF 2018 FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E AR¥T AREETIT
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 23 7,534,877 3,598,812
Project management costs 1HE BEAA 39,290 -
Rental costs AERAR 1,231 1,231
Hotel operation costs B JE 4 & A AR 10,885 -
Write down of inventories to net MR T EE A 2R FAE
realisable value 23 26,882 -
Depreciation of items of property, W - BENEREIEE
plant and equipment e 13 5,160 4,556
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (2018: i F#E& EHTE (2018 4F :
amortisation of land lease payments) T b & SR ) 16 15,708 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEf LT &1 3 8
payments 16 - 2,346
Amortisation of other intangible assets  E-fth £ 12 & E= 8 £4 14 681 558
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - WERE&HE
property plant and equipment THEWEE 43 -
Rental expenses HEHX 4,126 6,067
Auditors' remuneration % £ B 3 2,800 2,000
Employee benefit expense (including BEBFNHAY (BIEESER
directors’ and chief executive’s FETHA B FH B
remuneration (note 8)): GETDE
Wages and salaries HehIE 195,493 126,927
Pension scheme contributions and BESEHEHI K
social welfare HEEH 55,938 21,829
Share-based payment LARR A7 BT R - 82,600
Fair value gains on investment properties 1% & Y2 M)A FEW = 15 (106,300) (14,803)

2 1 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BHRAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: M ARDITIT -

2019 2018

2019 fF 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT

Interest on bank and other borrowings FTEERIT R EMER 571,974 537,255

Interest on pre-sales deposits EEZRSFE 238,253 166,629

Interest on lease liabilities HERENE 1,268 =

Less: Interest capitalised B BEAREFLE (644,504) (449,877)
166,991 254,007

4= =
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFEITHAEHM

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BT ETRBIFARE - BERAGOISE

pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong 383(1)@) ~ b)* O RN IER AR (HEE

Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of ENEERDRAEZ 2 BEBORFEE

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: ENFBITMABHHMOT ¢

2019 2018
2019 F 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFT

Fees e 629 -
Other emoluments: Hib < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREER 5,114 5,985
Performance-related bonuses* FIBHMEHTEAL* 2,161 2,233
Pension scheme contributions and BEEZSFERREEEREF
social welfare 732 578
Share-based payment LARR ) A ETRAT K - 65,005
8,636 73,801
* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments * RRABETRITESEREGICANK
which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the Group. AR AN EERTE R AR LLHIEEE -

PR AR RAER AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 it % B ik

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFTETHAEHM=
REMUNERATION (Continuea)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFEHITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the RAFEEINFBIIFNITEEN
year were as follows: w|EmT

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT

Mr. Lam Ming Fai e 202 -
Mr. Chan Peng Kuan PRIA 5 & 202 -
Mr. Chen Shi Min PRt B 5 A4 225 -

629 -
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent B E2019%F &2018F 12 A318 1E
non-executive directors during the years ended 31 December FREIWMEN TEIERITEED
2019.and 2018. HtB g o

2 20 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 it e B wik

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERFETHAEFHFM =
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) HITEERIHITES

Pension

Salaries, scheme

allowances Performance- contributions
and benefits related share-based and social Total
inkind bonuses payment welfare remuneration

EE%

e 28 &5 UBRHR  EEERR
e RENEFN HEREL  ERAR HEREA Hiohast
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETR AR®TR AREMTR ARMTR AR®T:R

2019 20195
Executive directors: HITES :
— Mr. Ma Bao Hua —BRERE - 619 425 - 122 1,166
—Mr.Zhu Li —RNEE - 629 425 - 122 1,176
— Mr.Wang Zheng —THEE - 655 425 - 122 1,202
— Ms. Shao Lei —MExL - 739 425 - 122 1,286
Non-executive directors; FTES
— Mr. Huang Qing Ping —BETEE - 1,954 M - 122 2,117
— Mr. Xie Chen Guang —HEXRE - 518 420 - 122 1,060
- 5114 2,161 - 732 8,007
2018 20185
Executive directors: HITES :
— Mr. Ma Bao Hua —BRERE - 982 420 37,087 102 38,501
— Mr.Zhu L —RNEE - 1,052 40 - 102 1574
— Mr.Wang Zheng —THEE - 720 40 13,959 102 15,201
— Ms. Shao Lei —Ert - 739 420 13,959 102 15,220
- 3493 1,680 65,005 408 70,586
Non-executive directors: FEHTES :
— Mr. Huang Qing Ping —&ETRE - 1938 133 - 68 2,139
— Mr. Xie Chen Guang —HRREE - 554 420 - 102 1076
- 2492 553 - 170 3215
- 5,985 2233 65,005 578 73,801
Mr. Ma Bao Hua is the chief executive officer and an executive BIRESLEBARRTINITBHEE R
director of the Company. There was no arrangement under which WITES - NAFE - HiEES
a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any FE2THABMEXRBEREEM
remuneration during the year. SN2 HE

B R AR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 it % B ik

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AERSHMES
The five highest paid employees for the years ended 31 December 2019 HE2019F12A3BLEFE  AidEms
included five directors (2018: four directors). Details of those directors’ FHEERERRES(2018F  IEE
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for F) c ZEBEEMHFH B SN XK
the year ended 31 December 2019, which is nil (2018: one), of the 8o HE2019FNANBLEEFE &=
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief executive of FHEEAZTRQ08F: —F) HIf
the Company are as follows: FARREEFTREETRAENTSH
Bl B BB EE BN T

2019 2018
2019 fF 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYET = 671
Performance-related bonuses FIRHMHTELT - 420
Share-based payment VAR B ETE 3R = 17,595
Pension scheme contributions and BEEZSFERI KL EREF
social welfare - 102
- 18,788
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid BN IATHEMNIEES RIEFETT
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as BAEMEZSHHEB AT !
follows:
Number of employees
EBEA™
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$21,000,001 to HKS21,500,000 21,000,001 BILE 21 ,500,000 BIT = 1

2 2 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in
or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands and British Virgin Islands, the Group's subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group'’s subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong were not liable for income tax as they did not have any
assessable profits currently arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject to
PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale of properties
less deductible expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and
other property development expenditures. The Group has estimated,
made and included in taxation a provision for LAT according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant Mainland China tax laws and
regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the final review and approval
by the local tax bureau.

A 25 e % it

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

10. FRr8%

AEBEARAEERKE QAR FMHRER
FrE B el AR EE RRE /s
RERBELEMMAEE BHRASHES
LREBREZHENHBRANESR  ~&E
RASHEMABEZESFMAIAN
WEBRRDBABMERMMAER - AEE
RE B AFH B A BB AN AT
B ARZARIEZE2019F12A31H
IEFEWEREBE BIE £ ER
s F o

AEBRHERMEENMNERRFA
IR 25% TR RGN BI BRI -

=+ b 38 (B B T 4% BR 300% = 60% HY 2 3 i
RE T HIREREAK - LB EEAEY
EHEMSRERAIMBAS (8L
BN ~ & SRAK AN I B 5 b 2 5 5 B
X)) o AEBIRBEEBPRAMBI AR
MR T AT BER G - EE
NEtRBE R - TR ER A EA R
B SR R ET R R E R R -

2019 2018

2019 2018 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARET T

Current tax: BIEARLIA -

PRC corporate income tax R RS R 492,732 263,786
PRC LAT B+ b 3R E R 444,236 304,030
Deferred tax (note 19) EEFLIE (F5E19) (357,199) (1,281)
Total tax charge for the year FARIBE HERE 579,769 566,535

BB AR AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5 it % B ik

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at
the effective income tax rate for each reporting period is as follows:

10.

R =X e )

REMEHE > NABREKRI DM E
REEMAERDAERIDAERERFE
H R T R 7B B R P S B R S BIR B
RATSREAENMERAXEERNT

224

2019 2018
2019 FF 2018 FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT

Profit before tax B 15 A A 940,129 1,061,857
At the statutory income tax rate WEAEMBHERAE 235,032 265,464
Profits attributable to joint ventures and B R N E R A

associates (16,482) (22914)
Investment income recognised in acquisition W EE I B A T8N D ERIRE WA

of subsidiaries (2,819) (73,168)
Income not subject to tax BEZRFRUA (2,748) -
Expenses not deductible for tax AR IR A X 3,335 24,853
Deductible temporary differences not AIERB AR R =R

recognised 2,902 6,156
Withholding taxes on undistributed profits R BB A RIR 9 IR M a9 TE A

of the subsidiaries in the PRC 3,101 27,984
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B B BT AR IEEE (38,512) -
Tax losses not recognised RERNTIAEE 62,783 110,138
Provision for LAT T IS (E R 444,236 304,030
Tax effect on LAT TR EF ARG E (111,059) (76,008)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate EASEEBERBEGENRIAER 579,769 566,535

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position

represents:

31 December

HFAPHIRR AN EMNTIRTE

31 December

2019 2018

2019 F 20184F

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBFT

PRC corporate income tax payable R R ERTER 524,194 118,338
PRC LAT payable JE {~F Fp B £ 3 S (E AR 768,857 385,808
Total tax payable FE R IR 4B R 1,293,051 504,146

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A % e % B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREBTFT
Proposed final — HK 2.32 cents (2018: Nil) SRR S — EREER
per ordinary share 23278l (2018 F : £&) 30,062 =
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the RFEEIR AR BAFRDBIBRER
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. FEERRRBF R LHER T AEE o
= A3 22
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AR A EERBEF A AR
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRER
COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the BRERBN 2 @BHERE RF LB
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, ERFAEARBEFRNRN - REZE2019
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,369,170,287 in FNRANALEFEANDETEBRINE
issue during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 947,280,356 Y5 #01,369,170,287 & (2018 & -
shares, taking into account the effects of the issue of HKD denominated 947,280,356 BX R 17+ 48 5T M EETT AB T
shares in lieu of the cancellation of USD denominated shares and the SHERORETHEETTHERDARE
capitalisation issue (see Note 32)). AT (R B )T E -
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts ARAFEEREEL BETECEE T
presented for the year ended 31 December 2019 in respect of a dilution AR WEE2019F 1231 BIEFES
as the Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the REARBFICEDBEELTE -
year.

BB ER L RAR AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y15 - BMERRE
Office
equipment
Motor and electronic Leasehold  Construction
Buildings vehicles device improvements in process Total
WAERSE HE
BT RE REFRE NERE ERIE @
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTRE ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT AR%¥T:R
31 December 2019 2019512 A31R
At T January 2019 R2019FE1A18
Cost KA - 6,610 10,903 12,046 352,721 382,280
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHTE - (5,060) (6,171) (8,407) - (19,638)
Net carrying amount ER3E - 1,550 4,732 3,639 352,721 362,642
At January 2019, netof B 20191818
accumulated depreciation 1% Z5HTE - 1,550 4,732 3,639 352,721 362,642
Additions NE - 783 2,653 447 719,138 723,021
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB A A
(note 36) (M5t 36) 113,580 279 43,006 - 6,365 163,230
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AT - - (32) - - (32)
Disposals & - - (362) (1,636) (480) (2,478)
Depreciation provided FRTERE (Ho)
during the year (note 6) (1,356) (548) (3,005) (251) - (5,160)
At31 December 2019, netof  FA2019%F 12 A31H
accumulated depreciation  HB 2T E 112,224 2.064 46,992 2,199 1,077,744 1,241,223
At 31 December 2019: 20195128318
Cost 3% 113,580 7,672 56,168 10,857 1,077,744 1,266,021
Accumulated depreciation  23HHTE (1,356) (5,608) (9,176) (8,658) - (24,798)
Net carrying amount REFE 112,224 2,064 46,992 2,199 1,077,744 1,241,223

2 2 6 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

13. % - BMEKRE#)

Office
equipment
Motor  and electronic Leasehold Construction
Buildings vehicles device  improvements in process Total
YN HE
BF g REFR NEEE rRIR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETE ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:
31December 2018 201812 A31H
At T January 2018 R2018E1A1R
Cost AR - 429% 5441 8211 79271 97,219
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHTE - (4,242) (5131) (5,709) - (15,082)
Net carrying amount ER3E - 54 310 2,502 79271 82,137
At January 2018, netof ~ H2018F 1818
accumulated depreciation 1% 2EHTE - 54 310 2,502 79271 82,137
Additions HE - 2334 5,507 3,770 273450 285,061
Acquisition of subsidiaries  YEEHIB A ] - - - 65 - 65
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHRBEAT - - - - - -
Disposals HeE - (20 (45) - - (65)
Depreciation provided FNFEEE (fie)
during the year (note 6) - (818) (1,040) (269) - (4,556)
At31December 2018, netof 722018 12 4318 »
accumulated depreciation  HB 2T E - 1550 4732 3639 352,721 362,642
At 31 December 2018: 20185124318
Cost 3% - 6,610 10903 12,046 352,721 382,280
Accumulated depreciation  23HHTE - (5,060) (6,171) (8407) - (19638)
Net carrying amount FHFE - 1,550 4732 3639 352,721 362,642

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB112,224,000 (2018: Nil) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
30).

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB12,186,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB21,002,000). The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation was 7%, which was the EIR of the specific
borrowings.

R2019F 12 A31H @ AEEEMFELY
A AR 81122240007 (2018 4F : £ ) 1)
AETEFEMHEER UWEDRTAEEH
B —RRERTTREE (MI5E30) ©

REZE2019F12A31BIEFE - BXR1E
B AR B A R 12,186,000 7T (2018 4F
128318 AR%21,0020007T) > AR
BT AEE AU E R A S BR b &
B7%  WIERIETEBRNERFIE -

SR B AE B R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 205 i 25 B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14. B EE

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
2019 FF 2018 FF
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Software B
At the beginning of the year: REH
Cost BN 6,922 -
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (558) -
Net carrying amount REFE 6,364 -
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 74 ] 89 BR T H (B 6,364 -
Additions NE 21 6,922
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) U BE BT B 2~ 71 (T E 36) 3 -
Amortisation provided during the year FARDBEEE (o)

(note 6) (681) (558)
Carrying amount at the end of the year REREBREE 5,707 6,364
At the end of the year: RER :

Cost AR 6,946 6,922
Accumulated amortisation RETHEE (1,239) (558)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,707 6,364

2 2 8 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

A 25 e % it

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

15. REWYHE

Under
construction Completed Total
2 B%T #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 BREREE 380,900 37,200 418,100
Additions NE 378,997 S 378,997
Investment properties completed B TIREYE (774,400) 774,400
Net gain from a fair value adjustment A {EFE TS U F 58
(note 6) (KizEe) 14,503 300 14,803
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 72018 12 A31 B &
and 1 January 2019 20194F 1 A1 HRIEREAE - 811,900 811,900
Investment properties under HERSERTIKREMED
construction transferred to EEEEME
investment properties completed
Net gain from a fair value adjustment A F{EF B iS8558
(note 6) (Mtste6) - 106,300 106,300
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 20194 12 A 31 HHEREE - 918,200 918,200

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China. The
Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2019
based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at RMB918,200,000 (2018: RMB811,900,000). The Group's
senior finance manager and the chief financial officer decide, after
approval from the board of directors of the Company, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s senior finance manager and the chief financial
officer have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial
reporting.

REBNEEMEMNRPBEAN - A&
ERREMEDERBYIEESERG
BT EBITEETEREREBRAA
(MM 2817 ) BWRE-HR 2019512 A31 A
Bt A AR 9182000007T (20184 © A
R ¥8811,900,0007T) ° A% B S5
LI ISR RN NREET AR
REZEIINEHEMEEAEEMERN
9\\%1&@ BUERERIEMISMGE &

UMREERFBEEZE - KE
lﬁﬁ%i&ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁaéﬁi%ﬁ
BT SR S AR E RS RS
'TEMEI%}ETTHTEWE °

SR B AE B R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWZE )
Certain of the Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying R2019F 12 A31 B AEEREEEY
amount of approximately RMB225,087,000 at 31 December 2019 (31 AR# 225,087,000 7T (20184 12 318 -
December 2018: RMB211,182,000) have been pledged to secure bank ARME211,182,00070) K& TR EMEER,
and other borrowings granted to the Group which are disclosed in note G AAEBERNETREMER
30. YRR (R ER MR 30) ©

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using

R2019F12 31 BERANTRAINAEEFE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RERT S EATEE BEAFTEHE
HERE BB PN ¢:
(B—#) (B=#&) (B=%4) #st
Recurring fair value BATIE B #TH RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
measurement for KEMEDNFERFE AR¥ET R AR¥T R AR®T R ARET R
Investment properties REME
Completed BRT - - 918,200 918,200
- - 918,200 918,200
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements RAFE F—REE_F2EALER
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: FEFEMER  EERES N EREE
Nil). FE=H (20185 : ) o

2 30 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

A 25 e % it

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

15. REWE &)

AT REENEEEMANGELER
TEHABEBEHE

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
fRER T BERTAEHEHAYE EE R NEF
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
Completed commercial ~ Income capitalisation Estimated rental value RMB22-176 RMB64-81
properties method (RMB per sq.m. and per month)
BRI EEYE WABARE hEtis
(AR KR ARMB227t AR¥eaT
AR,/ R) ZF176 T E81TT
Capitalisation rate 5.0%-6.0% 5.0%-5.5%
BA{pLE
Commercial properties Comparison Expected profit margin Nil 15%
under construction method 8 #FI) B R 0
TEREEYE LbBOE

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined by the
income capitalisation method by taking into account the net rental
income of the properties derived from the existing leases and/or
achievable in the existing market with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to
determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where
appropriate, reference has also been made to the comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.

ERIBEVENRTFETEBERAE
RMOEBE - HERBBFREEME
RBRAEOMEE R,/ RERTHRT
AL S WA R (MBEONE
BHBAFL D BE) - REIMAER
o MIZEENER L XREERF
B MEEEEBRT2EHEEMS L
AEGHAELEREERS -

RS ARIEMOR D) BEBIREY
EWRFEABZMORD) - ER(CL
FEFABIEMORD) BEBREME
B R FHEARR D ()

REERERARA
—5-neeg 231



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWZE @)
The fair value of commercial properties under construction is determined HEBEVEN LA TFEFERLEEEE
by using the comparison method, with reference to comparable sales FOR2EMEBETIS LR ESHA AL
evidence as available in the relevant market to derive the fair value of the R SGEEN (@A) &% A NIEE
property assuming it was completed and, where appropriate, after BEEMENATE(BREEERT) :

deducting the following items:

Estimated construction costs and professional fees to be expensed . TSR EE TR ESELEGET
to complete the properties that would be incurred by a market BEKANBEEER K

participant; and

Estimated profit margin that a market participant would require to . ML EEEEMEREEZR T
hold and develop the property to completion. ERFEMGBEAIEE -
The higher the estimated construction costs, in the lower the fair value HEtEERAES - IERREDEND
of the investment properties under construction would result. FEBE -
16. LEASES 16. A
The Group as a lessee TEBEEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and machinery RNEFBHAEEKSES HRTANZERK
and motor vehicles used in its operations. Lump sum payments were ERHEEANEROEESL - IREE
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease H— R MR FRmEE AMEEER &35
periods of 35 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under ESOFMHEL BB TEREZS
the terms of these land leases. Leases of plant and machinery generally THIEEMERIELFENR - BE &
have lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while motor vehicles generally HEAENTHERBEA2ESF ME
have lease terms of 2 years. WHHERRER2F -
(a) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019) (a) FEMNTHHEENH(R2019F1A
1874
RMB'000
ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 BHWEREE 112,024
Additions NE 154,192
Recognised in profit or loss during the year RERNERER (2,346)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 720184 12 A 31 AMERE(E 263,870
Less: Current portion A BIERER (5,/440)
Non-current portion FEBNHAER 258,430
Certain of the Group's prepaid land lease payments with an R2018F 124310 - AEBEAK
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB109,678,000 as B 4 AR 109,678,000 LR & T
at 31 December 2018 were pledged to secure bank and other AN THEENROER  AARE
borrowings granted to the Group. EER A ERTT R AL E AR -

2 3 2 Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

16. LEASES (Continued) 16. H& @)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBIERAAEAE)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AREENFERAEEENRBDENTF
movements during the year are as follows: NEFHIAT :

Prepaid
land lease Plant and Motor
payments machinery vehicles Total

ANt =K

BEMNK Hes B #et
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥TRT ARBTRT AR%¥T=R

As at 1 January 2019 20191 A1 H 263,870 20,123 766 284,759
Additions NE - 2,483 - 2,483
Additions as a result of Ui — IR B A R

acquisition of a subsidiary FrE iR E

(note 36) (P&t 36) 9,328 312 - 9,640
Depreciation charge weEEH (5,439) (9,890) (379) (15,708)
As at 31 December 2019 72019512 431 H 267,759 13,208 387 281,354
Certain of the Group's right-of-use assets with an aggregate R2019F 128318 KEBAR
carrying amount of approximately RMB107,332,000 as at 31 HEH A AR 107,332,000 TH &
December 2019 have been pledged to secure bank and other TEAREECER  REKEE
borrowings granted to the Group, which are disclosed in note 30. B R ERTT I E b £ VR BRI (3%

FTAMIEE30) ©

B R AR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 205 i 25 B

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

16. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings) and the movements during
the year are as follows:

16. & (&)
REBERBFRBA (#)

(0 HERE

HEABEGIAGBRITREMBE
FOHREERFANEFHMT

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January R A1 HMEREE 19,642 -
New leases g 2,483 -
Additions as a result of acquisition of W e — IR 8 A R FTEL
a subsidiary (note 36) #ORE (K 36) 290 -
Accretion of interest recognised during FREERHF IR (FHFE7)
the year (note 7) 1,268 -
Payments (NN (3,785) -
Carrying amount at 31 December Mm12 A31 BREREE 19,898 -
Analysed into: DT
Current portion BIHAES 5 16,826 -
Non-current portion JEBNERER > 3,072 -

(d) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

d) REZPEINAEHEBREN
T:

2019
2019 &

RMB’000
ARBTR

Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEAERNS (HFE7) 1,268
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENTEE A 15,708
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIS ER R IE 28 16,976

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 34 (c) to the
financial statements.

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd.
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16.

17.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of two
commercial properties in Nanjing under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was RMB3,205,000 (2018: RMB3,019,000), details
of which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants are as follows:

A 205 5 P ik

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

16. & (&)

REEER/HAA

AEEREBELEHETHEHBEMRS
TR EYE(MIE15) - HRh B IEME
EEDE - HERRBEERKERLIMN
Be o WRERTMACHAZRS -
AEERFARRHESWARBARE
3,205,0007T (20184 = A R 3,019,000
TL) - FRRERN B RIS o

MR2019F 12 31 B » REBEBFLRT
B B0 4 8 T E T R AR 21T HA 8 E U
AITBHEEMNZT

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

2019 % 20184F

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T AREFT

Within one year —F R 19,097 3,380
After one year but within two years —FREMFR 30,149 3,249
After two years but within three years MFERE=FA 52,520 831
After three years but within four years —FRENFR 55,104 831
After four years but within five years MERERAFA 57,089 831
After five years AFE 487,186 241
701,145 9,363

INVESTMENTS IN J